United City of Yorkville
800 Game Farm Road
Yorkville, Illinois 60560
Telephone: 630-553-4350
www.yorkville.il.us

AGENDA
PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MEETING
Tuesday, December 20, 2016
6:00 p.m.
City Hall Conference Room
800 Game Farm Road, Yorkuville, IL

Citizen Comments:

Minutes for Correction/Approval: November 15, 2016

New Business:
1. PW 2016-78 Snow Operations Report
PW 2016-79 Water Department Reports for January — September 2016
PW 2016-80 Route 47 ITEP (Streetlights) — Authorizations No. 2, 3, and 4
PW 2016-81 2017 Sanitary Sewer Lining Engineering Agreement
PW 2016-82 West Washington Street Water Main Replacement Engineering Agreement
PW 2016-83 Hamman — USPS Water Main Acceptance
PW 2016-84 Well No. 3 Update and Recommendations
PW 2016-85 Solid Waste Collection Services RFP
PW 2016-86 Street Sign Sale Close-out
10. PW 2016-87 Detention Basin — Update

Old Business:

© © N o g &~ DN

1. CC 2016-47 Intergovernmental Agreement for the Sharing of Services
2. PW 2014-74 Railroad Quiet Zones
3. PW 2016-21 Leopardo Energy Update

Additional Business:

2016/2017 City Council Goals — Public Works Committee

Goal Priority Staff

“Municipal Building Needs and Planning” 3 Bart Olson & Eric Dhuse

“Capital Improvement Plan” 4 Bart Olson & Eric Dhuse

“Vehicle Replacement” 5 Bart Olson & Eric Dhuse

. . . - Bart Olson, Eric Dhuse,
Sidewalks and Trails Funding and Planning 15 Brad Sanderson & Rob Eredrickson




UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
WORKSHEET
PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE
Tuesday, December 20, 2016
6:00 PM
CITY HALL CONFERENCE ROOM

1. November 15, 2016
[ Approved
[1 As presented
[ With corrections

1. PW 2016-78 Snow Operations Report
[] Moved forward to CC consentagenda? Y N

[] Approved by Committee
[] Bring back to Committee
[] Informational Item

[] Notes




2. PW 2016-79 Water Department Reports for January — September 2016
[] Moved forward to CC consentagenda? Y N

[] Approved by Committee
[] Bring back to Committee
[ Informational Item

[] Notes

3. PW 2016-80 Route 47 ITEP (Streetlights) — Authorizations No. 2, 3, and 4
[] Moved forward to CC consentagenda? Y N

[] Approved by Committee
[] Bring back to Committee
[ Informational Item

[] Notes

4. PW 2016-81 2017 Sanitary Sewer Lining Engineering Agreement
[] Moved forward to CC consentagenda? Y N

[] Approved by Committee
[] Bring back to Committee
[] Informational Item

[] Notes




5. PW 2016-82 West Washington Street Water Main Replacement Engineering Agreement
[] Moved forward to CC consentagenda? Y N

[] Approved by Committee
[] Bring back to Committee
[ Informational Item

[] Notes

6. PW 2016-83 Hamman — USPS Water Main Acceptance
[] Moved forward to CC consentagenda? Y N

[] Approved by Committee
[] Bring back to Committee
[ Informational Item

[] Notes

7. PW 2016-84 Well No. 3 Update and Recommendations
[] Moved forward to CC consentagenda? Y N

[] Approved by Committee
[] Bring back to Committee
[] Informational Item

[] Notes




8. PW 2016-85 Solid Waste Collection Services RFP
[] Moved forward to CC consentagenda? Y N

[] Approved by Committee
[] Bring back to Committee
[ Informational Item

[] Notes

9. PW 2016-86 Street Sign Sale Close-out
[] Moved forward to CC consentagenda? Y N

[] Approved by Committee
[] Bring back to Committee
[ Informational Item

[] Notes

10. PW 2016-87 Detention Basin — Update
[] Moved forward to CC consentagenda? Y N
[] Approved by Committee
[] Bring back to Committee
[] Informational Item
[] Notes




1. CC 2016-47 Intergovernmental Agreement for the Sharing of Services
[] Moved forward to CC consentagenda? Y N

[] Approved by Committee
[] Bring back to Committee
[] Informational Item

[] Notes

2. PW 2014-74 Railroad Quiet Zones
[] Moved forward to CC consentagenda? Y N

[] Approved by Committee
[] Bring back to Committee
[ Informational Item

[] Notes

3. PW 2016-21 Leopardo Energy Update
[] Moved forward to CC consentagenda? Y N

[] Approved by Committee
[] Bring back to Committee
[ Informational Item

[] Notes
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Agenda Item Summary Memo

Title: Minutes of the Public Works Committee — November 15, 2016

Meeting and Date: Public Works Committee — December 20, 2016

Synopsis:

Council Action Previously Taken:

Date of Action: Action Taken:

Item Number:

Type of Vote Required: Majority

Council Action Requested: Committee Approval

Submitted by: Minute Taker

Name Department

Agenda Item Notes:

Have a question or comment about this agenda item?

Call us Monday-Friday, 8:00am to 4:30pm at 630-553-4350, email us at agendas@yorkville.il.us, post at www.facebook.com/CityofYorkville,
tweet us at @CityofYorkville, and/or contact any of your elected officials at http://www.yorkville.il.us/320/City-Council




DRAFT

UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE
PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE
Tuesday, November 15, 2016, 6:00pm
Yorkville City Hall, Conference Room
800 Game Farm Road

IN ATTENDANCE:

Committee Members

Chairman Chris Funkhouser Alderman Ken Koch
Alderman Jackie Milschewski Alderman Larry Kot
Other City Officials

Public Works Director Eric Dhuse
Engineer Brad Sanderson, EEI

Other Guests: None

The meeting was called to order at 6:00pm by Chairman Chris Funkhouser.

Citizen Comments: None

Previous Meeting Minutes: October 18, 2016
The minutes were approved as presented.

New Business:
1. PW 2016-74 Meeting Schedule for 2017
There was no discussion and the committee was OK with the schedule.

2. PW 2016-75 2017 Road to Better Roads Program

Mr. Sanderson said there is a recommended plan for the next FY along with a 5-year plan and they are
seeking approval. Mr. Kot asked if State St. by Hydraulic and Van Emmon is scheduled for next year
since residents had been told it would be repaved. It is currently on the alternative list and Mr. Dhuse
explained some parking lots are in very bad shape. Mr. Koch asked about Walsh Drive to Greenbriar
and said that it's worn down to the gravel in some areas. Mr. Sanderson said there is some flexibility
with the program which is based on an analysis done in 2012. City staff will monitor the streets this
winter rather than having a new study which would cost about $100,000. Mr. Dhuse added that this
year's program was a catch-up list.

Alderman Milschewski inquired about the rating system to determine the repaving schedule and an
explanation was given. There is approximately $700,000 of roadwork to be done next year (not
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including the parking lots).
The alley between State and Main was discussed and it will be staked and the matter revisited.
Kennedy Road was also discussed.

Mr. Sanderson asked for approval of the recommended list and engineering agreements so EEI can
move forward. It is hoped to obtain IDOT approval and let bids in February to take advantage of some
favorable prices. Chairman Funkhouser asked the committee to approve the 2017 program, the
alternatives and the 5-year plan and forward it to the Council on the consent agenda.

3. PW 2016-76 Professional Services Agreement for 2017 Road to Better Roads Program

This is the standard agreement to prepare the documents for bid-letting using MFT and local funds,
IDOT approval and for construction engineering. This moves forward to the November 22" consent
agenda.

4. PW 2016-77 Mill Street LAFO — Authorization No. 2

This is the second authorization for LAFO and the balancing change order is a decrease of $29,769.48.
The total decrease is $34,269.48. Ms. Milschewski said there were many compliments on the job. This
moves to the November 22" consent agenda.

Old Business: None

Additional Business:

Alderman Kot noted a shoulder drop-off near Autumn Creek and asked for gravel fill. He also asked
about electrical boxes near Kennedy and McHugh which are half open. It was determined they are
phone boxes and pose no danger.

Lights with higher wattages are still needed on both ends of Windett according to Alderman Koch and
Mr. Dhuse will address this matter.

The new street lights in the City have received favorable comments and installation is nearly complete.
Alderman Milschewski noted there is only one at the north end of the park. Placement was made there
to not block the eternal flame.

Mr. Kot requested more crossing signage on Rt. 47 near Hydraulic for safety reasons. Mr. Dhuse
replied that he does not want to encourage crossing at that point, but will make it as safe as possible.
He said 2 near accidents have occurred near pedestrian signs when driver views are obstructed due to
multiple traffic lanes.

Chairman Funkhouser requested an update on the street sale sign. Over $400 has been generated
through sales and remaining signs will be sold at another time.

There was no further business and the meeting was adjourned at 6:34pm.

Minutes respectfully transcribed by
Marlys Young, Minute Taker
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Agenda Item Summary Memo

Title: Snow Operations Update

Meeting and Date: Public Works Committee — December 20, 2016

Synopsis: Breakdown of snow removal operations for the month of December.

Council Action Previously Taken:

Date of Action: Action Taken:

Item Number:

Type of Vote Required: None

Council Action Requested: None

Submitted by: Eric Dhuse Public Works

Name Department

Agenda Item Notes:

Informational item only.

Have a question or comment about this agenda item?
Call us Monday-Friday, 8:00am to 4:30pm at 630-553-4350, email us at agendas@yorkville.il.us, post at www.facebook.com/CityofYorkville,

tweet us at @CityofYorkville, and/or contact any of your elected officials at http://www.yorkville.il.us/320/City-Council




Memorandum

To: Public Works Committee
From: Eric Dhuse, Director of Public Works
CC: Bart Olson, Administrator

Date: December 14, 2016
Subject: Monthly snow report

Summary

Monthly report of manpower, resources and time spent snow plowing and salting

Background

12/4/16 - started at approximately 12:30 pm and ended at approximately 8:45pm. 7 large dump
trucks and 2 small dump trucks were used to remove snow and salt. This is one large dump truck
short of a full crew. 9 employees earned 74.25 hours of overtime and our foreman worked 9
hours as well. Approximately 100 tons of salt were used along with 3000 gallons of brine to
complete the operation.

12/11/16 — started at approximately 5:00am and ended at approximately 12:00pm. 7 large dump
trucks and 2 small dump trucks were used to remove snow and spread salt. This is one large
dump truck short of a full crew. 9 employees earned 63 hours of overtime and our foreman
worked 8 hours as well. Approximately 100 tons of salt were used along with 3000 gallons of
brine

12/12/16 — started at 3:00 am and finished approximately 3:30 pm. 6 large dump trucks were
used, including one that the plow only angled right for the entire removal operation. At 7:00am,
we added all additional employees to plow, shovel walks and salt. 9 employees earned 36 hours
of overtime before starting their normal 8 hour work day. Our foreman also worked an extra 4
hours ahead of schedule. with the entire crew on at 7:00, we have an additional approximately
160 hours of snow removal time. The salt usage was approximately 75-100 tons and 1500
gallons of brine due to the fact that some streets did not need salt.

We had one truck in the shop with starting issues, and one that had an electrical
problem. We also had one of the small dump trucks break a drive chain for the spreader, so it
was out of commission for a few hours as well. During this time, we also had a water main
break on Appletree Ct. that took away 4 crew members for approximately 4 hours.

In hindsight, we should have been back out on Sunday night instead of waiting until early
Monday morning. Temperatures were warm enough to let traffic pack down the snow and turn it
to a sheet of ice. If we would have been right on it, we would not have any lingering slick spots
at this time. We will be right on it next time instead of trying to conserve manpower and
resources.

12/13/16 — started at 7:00 am and finished at approximately 3:30 pm. 8 large dump trucks and 2
small dump trucks were used to scrape slick spots and spread salt. Brine and salt usage were



approximately cut in half to 50 tons and 1500 gallons since we were spot salting. This has
improved our road conditions tremendously and we will continue this operation on 12/14/16 as
well.

At this time, we have approximately 150-200 tons of salt on hand, and another 460 tons
on order. With the 460 ton order, we are at our minimum order for the year through the state bid.
We can take an additional 480 tons at our bid price for a total of 1440 tons. We also have 1000
tons of salt in storage at the Kendall County Highway Department building. With the brine
making machine, we have almost unlimited brine making capabilities as well.

Recommendation

With snow forecast for Friday night into Saturday morning, we are also preparing for our
next operation. We are going to pre-wet the streets with brine to try and create a thin layer of
salt that will not allow the snow to stick to the pavement, making it easier for us to plow off the
streets. | will give a verbal report at the meeting as to how it worked out for us.
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Agenda Item Summary Memo
Title: Water Department Reports for January — September 2016
Meeting and Date: Public Works Committee — December 20, 2016
Synopsis: Monthly water reports.
Council Action Previously Taken:
Date of Action: Action Taken:
Item Number:
Type of Vote Required: Majority
Council Action Requested: Approval
Submitted by: Tom Konen Public Works
Name Department

Agenda Item Notes:

Have a question or comment about this agenda item?
Call us Monday-Friday, 8:00am to 4:30pm at 630-553-4350, email us at agendas@yorkville.il.us, post at www.facebook.com/CityofYorkville,

tweet us at @CityofYorkville, and/or contact any of your elected officials at http://www.yorkville.il.us/320/City-Council




United City of Yorkville
WATER DEPARTMENT REPORT

JANUARY 2016
MONTH / YEAR
\
NO WELL DEPTH PUMP DEPTH WATER ABOVE PUMP THIS MONTH'S PUMPAGE —]
(FEET) (FEET) (FEET) ( GALLONS)
3 1335 505 155 212,000
4 1401 665 191 17,968,000
7 1527 1105 430 6,592,000
8 1384 840 170 000
9 1368 870 498 17,204,000
TOTAL 39,766,000
CURRENT MONTH’S PUMPAGE IS 128,000  GALLONS less THAN LAST MONTH
926,000 GALLONS more THAN LAST YEAR
DAILY AVERAGE PUMPED: 1,282,774 GALLONS
DAILY MAXIMUM PUMPED: 1,402,000  GALLONS
DAILY AVERAGE PER CAPITA USE: 71.26 GALLONS
WATER TREATMENT:
\
CHLORINE: 1156 LBS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: .30 MG/L
FLUORIDE: 225 1BS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: .86 MG/L
POLYPHOSPHATE: 884 |BS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: 1.00 MG/L
WATER QUALITY:
BACTERIOLOGICAL SAMPLES ANALYZED BY ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:
23 SATISFACTORY __ 0 UNSATISFACTORY (EXPLAIN)
FLUORIDE: 3 _ SAMPLE(S) TAKEN CONCENTRATION: 1.0 MG/L
MAINTENANCE:
\
NUMBER OF METERS REPLACED: 8 NUMBER OF LEAKS OR BREAKS REPAIRED: 5
MXU'S: 6 BATTERIES REPLACED: 14
NEW CUSTOMERS:
RESIDENTIAL: 8 COMMERCIAL: 0 INDUSTRIAL/GOVERNMENTAL: __ 0 _

COMMENTS:
x
> water main breaks lost about 609,000 gallons



United City of Yorkville
WATER DEPARTMENT REPORT

FEBRUARY 2016
MONTH / YEAR
\
NO WELL DEPTH PUMP DEPTH WATER ABOVE PUMP THIS MONTH'S PUMPAGE
(FEET) (FEET) (FEET) { GALLONS)
3 1335 505 155 93,000
4 1401 665 191 17,694,000
7 1527 1105 430 5,923,000
8 1384 840 170 000
9 1368 870 463 16,771,000
TOTAL 36,627,000
CURRENT MONTH'S PUMPAGE IS 3,139,000  GALLONS less THAN LAST MONTH
670,000 _ GALLONS less THAN LAST YEAR
DAILY AVERAGE PUMPED: 1,263,000 _ GALLONS
DAILY MAXIMUM PUMPED: 1,632,000 GALLONS
DAILY AVERAGE PER CAPITA USE: 70.16 GALLONS
WATER TREATMENT:
CHLORINE: 1038 [BS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: .30 MG/L
FLUORIDE: 132 |BS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: .86 MG/L
POLYPHOSPHATE: 877 LBS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: 1.00 MG/L
WATER QUALITY:
BACTERIOLOGICAL SAMPLES ANALYZED BY ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:
23 SATISFACTORY —0___ UNSATISFACTORY (EXPLAIN)
FLUORIDE: 3 _ SAMPLE(S) TAKEN CONCENTRATION: 0.86  MG/L
MAINTENANCE:
\
NUMBER OF METERS REPLACED: 1 NUMBER OF LEAKS OR BREAKS REPAIRED: _0
MXU'S: _ 10__ BATTERIES REPLACED: 22
NEW CUSTOMERS:
RESIDENTIAL: 3 COMMERCIAL: 0 INDUSTRIAL/GOVERNMENTAL: 0

COMMENTS:
\




United Gity of Yorkville
WATER DEPARTMENT REPORT

MARCH 2016
MONTH / YEAR

NO WELL DEPTH PUMP DEPTH WATER ABOVE PUMP THIS MONTH'S PUMPAGE
(FEET) (FEET) (FEET) ( GALLONS)
3 1335 505 155 1,443,000
4 1401 665 191 17,127,000
7 1527 1105 430 7,094,000
8 1384 840 170 8,607,000
9 1368 870 463 8,780,000
TOTAL 39,225,000
CURRENT MONTH’S PUMPAGE IS 2,598,000 GALLONS more THAN LAST MONTH
824,000 GALLONS more THAN LAST YEAR
DAILY AVERAGE PUMPED: 1,265,322  GALLONS
DAILY MAXIMUM PUMPED: 1,772,000  GALLONS
DAILY AVERAGE PER CAPITA USE: 70.29 GALLONS
WATER TREATMENT:
\%
CHLORINE: 1,161 1BS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: ___ 2.00 MG/L
FLUORIDE: 81 |BS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: 0.86 MG/L
POLYPHOSPHATE: 967 LBS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: 1.00 MG/L
WATER QUALITY:
%
BACTERIOLOGICAL SAMPLES ANALYZED BY ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:
23 SATISFACTORY 0 UNSATISFACTORY (EXPLAIN)
FLUORIDE: 3 SAMPLE(S) TAKEN CONCENTRATION: 1.0 MG/L
MAINTENANCE:
%
NUMBER OF METERS REPLACED: 11 NUMBER OF LEAKS OR BREAKS REPAIRED: 0
MXU'S: 16° BATTERIES REPLACED: 32

NEW CUSTOMERS:
RESIDENTIAL: 5 COMMERCIAL: 0 INDUSTRIAL/GOVERNMENTAL: 0

COMMENTS:
e



United Gity of Yorkville
WATER DEPARTMENT REPORT

APRIL 2016
MONTH / YEAR

NO WELL DEPTH PUMP DEPTH WATER ABOVE PUMP THIS MONTH’S PUMPAGE
(FEET) (FEET) (FEET) ( GALLONS)
3 1335 505 155 000
4 1401 665 191 19,078,000
7 1527 1105 430 7,257,000
8 1384 840 170 8,815,000
9 1368 870 463 9,951,000
TOTAL 41,167,000
CURRENT MONTH'S PUMPAGE IS 1,942,000 GALLONS more THAN LAST MONTH
3,348,000 GALLONS more THAN LAST YEAR
DAILY AVERAGE PUMPED: 1,372,233  GALLONS
DAILY MAXIMUM PUMPED: 1,999,000 _ GALLONS
DAILY AVERAGE PER CAPITA USE: 76.23 GALLONS
WATER TREATMENT:
%
CHLORINE: 870 LBS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: __ 2.00 MG/L
FLUORIDE: 81 LBS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: 0.86 MG/L
POLYPHOSPHATE: 996 |BS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: 1.00 MG/L
WATER QUALITY:
%
BACTERIOLOGICAL SAMPLES ANALYZED BY ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:
23 SATISFACTORY 0 UNSATISFACTORY (EXPLAIN)
FLUORIDE: 3 SAMPLE(S) TAKEN CONCENTRATION: __0.86 MG/L
MAINTENANCE:
%
NUMBER OF METERS REPLACED: 6 NUMBER QOF LEAKS OR BREAKS REPAIRED: 0
MXUS: 9 BATTERIES REPLACED: 4
NEW CUSTOMERS:
\%
RESIDENTIAL: 2 COMMERCIAL: 0 INDUSTRIAL/GOVERNMENTAL: 0

COMMENTS:

%



United City of Yorkville
WATER DEPARTMENT REPORT

MAY 2015
MONTH / YEAR
NO WELL DEPTH PUMP DEPTH WATER ABOVE PUMP THIS MONTH'S PUMPAGE
(FEET) (FEET) (FEET) { GALLONS)
3 1335 505 155 1,259,000
4 1401 665 204 19,740,000
7 1527 1105 430 8,386,000
8 1384 840 170 9,432,000
9 1368 870 463 14,957,000
TOTAL 49,100,000
CURRENT MONTH'S PUMPAGE IS 7,933,000 GALLONS more THAN LAST MONTH
4,938,000 GALLONS less THAN LAST YEAR
DAILY AVERAGE PUMPED: 1,583,870 GALLONS
DAILY MAXIMUM PUMPED: 2,104,000 GALLONS
DAILY AVERAGE PER CAPITA USE: 87.99  GALLONS
WATER TREATMENT:
%
CHLORINE: 1,353 LBS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: 1.00___ MG/L
FLUORIDE: 135 LBS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: .86 MG/L
POLYPHOSPHATE: 1,262 LBS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: 1.00 MG/L
WATER QUALITY:
%
BACTERIOLOGICAL SAMPLES ANALYZED BY ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:
23 SATISFACTORY 0 UNSATISFACTORY (EXPLAIN)
FLUORIDE: 3 SAMPLE(S) TAKEN CONCENTRATION: 1.0 MG/L
MAINTENANCE:
%
NUMBER OF METERS REPLACED: 6 NUMBER OF LEAKS OR BREAKS REPAIRED: 1
MXUS: _4 BATTERIES REPLACED: 0
NEW CUSTOMERS:
%
RESIDENTIAL: __12_ COMMERCIAL: 1 INDUSTRIAL/GOVERNMENTAL: _ 0

COMMENTS:
§

Broken 12 inch clamp on RT. 47, lost 200,000 gallons.



United City of Yorkville
WATER DEPARTMENT REPORT

JUNE 2016
MONTH / YEAR

NO WELL DEPTH PUMP DEPTH WATER ABOVE PUMP THIS MONTH'S PUMPAGE

(FEET) (FEET) (FEET) (GALLONS)

3 1335 505 155 3,621,000

4 1401 665 204 16,351,000

1527 1105 430 9,122,000

8 1384 840 170 12,413,000

9 1368 870 463 17,017,000

TOTAL TREATED 53,526,000

CURRENT MONTH’S PUMPAGE IS 4,426,000  GALLONS Mmore THAN LAST MONTH
8,512,000 _ GALLONS more THAN LAST YEAR

DAILY AVERAGE PUMPED: 1,784,200 GALLONS
DAILY MAXIMUM PUMPED: 2,511,000 GALLONS

DAILY AVERAGE PER CAPITA USE: 99.12 GALLONS

WATER TREATMENT:
\

CHLORINE: 1,466 LBS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: 3.0 MG/L
FLUORIDE: 268 1BS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: .25 MG/L
POLYPHOSPHATE: 1,611 LBS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: 1.0 MG/L
WATER QUALITY:
BACTERIOLOGICAL SAMPLES ANALYZED BY ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:

23 SATISFACTORY —0___ UNSATISFACTORY (EXPLAIN)
FLUORIDE: __3 _ SAMPLE(S) TAKEN CONCENTRATION: _ 1.0 MG/L

MAINTENANCE:
\

NUMBER OF METERS REPLACED: __ 4 NUMBER OF LEAKS OR BREAKS REPAIRED: _ 1
MXU's: __3 BATTERIES REPLACED: 4

NEW CUSTOMERS:

RESIDENTIAL: 5 COMMERCIAL: 0 INDUSTRIAL/GOVERNMENTAL:

COMMENTS:

Repaired broken clamp on Deer Street lost 10,000 gallons

0



United City of Yorkville
WATER DEPARTMENT REPORT

JULY 2016
MONTH / YEAR

NO WELL DEPTH PUMP DEPTH WATER ABOVE PUMP THIS MONTH’S PUMPAGE
(FEET) (FEET) (FEET) (GALLONS)
3 1335 505 155 000
4 1401 665 204 9,914,000
7 1527 1105 430 9,123,000
8 1384 840 170 . 19,155,000
9 1368 870 463 21,501,000
TOTAL TREATED 54,678,000
CURRENT MONTH'S PUMPAGE IS 1,152,000 _ GALLONS more THAN LAST MONTH
5,581,000 GALLONS more THAN LAST YEAR
DAILY AVERAGE PUMPED: 1,763,806  GALLONS
DAILY MAXIMUM PUMPED: 2,300,000  GALLONS
DAILY AVERAGE PER CAPITA USE: 97.98 GALLONS
WATER TREATMENT:
_—%
CHLORINE: 1503 LBS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: 3.0 MG/L
FLUORIDE: 253 LBS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: .74 MG/L
POLYPHOSPHATE: 1061 IBS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: .97 MG/L
WATER QUALITY:
%
BACTERIOLOGICAL SAMPLES ANALYZED BY ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:
28 SATISFACTORY 0 UNSATISFACTORY (EXPLAIN)
FLOURIDE: __3  SAMPLE(S) TAKEN CONCENTRATION: _ 1.0 MG/L
MAINTENANCE:
%
NUMBER OF METERS REPLACED: 7 NUMBER OF LEAKS OR BREAKS REPAIRED: 1
MXU'S: __ 10 BATTERIES: 7
NEW CUSTOMERS:
%
RESIDENTIAL: 18 COMMERCIAL: 1 INDUSTRIAL/GOVERNMENTAL: 0

COMMENTS:
e

Main break at West Kendall, and Countryside Parkway. Lost about 270,000.



United City of Yorkville
WATER DEPARTMENT REPORT

AUGUST 2016
MONTH / YEAR

NO | WELL DEPTH PUMP DEPTH WATER ABOVE PUMP THIS MONTH'S PUMPAGE
(FEET) (FEET) (FEET) (GALLONS)
3 1335 505 155 387,000
4 1401 665 204 1,006,000
7 1527 1105 430 8,508,000
8 1384 ' 840 170 20,457,000
9 1368 870 463 26,724,000
TOTAL TREATED 52,296,000
CURRENT MONTH'S PUMPAGE IS 3,814,000  GALLONS less THAN LAST MONTH
111,000 GALLONS more THAN LAST YEAR
DAILY AVERAGE PUMPED: 1,686,967 GALLONS
DAILY MAXIMUM PUMPED: 2,122,000 _ GALLONS
DAILY AVERAGE PER CAPITA USE: 93.72 __ GALLONS
WATER TREATMENT:
\
CHLORINE: 1407 LBS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: 3.0 MG/L
FLUORIDE: 360 LBS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: 74 MG/L
POLYPHOSPHATE: 1432 LBS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: 97 MG/L
WATER QUALITY:
BACTERIOLOGICAL SAMPLES ANALYZED BY ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY-
28 SATISFACTORY 0 UNSATISFACTORY (EXPLAIN)
FLOURIDE: _ 3 _ SAMPLE(S) TAKEN CONCENTRATION: _ 1.0 MG/L
MAINTENANCE:
\
NUMBER OF METERS REPLACED: 12 NUMBER OF LEAKS OR BREAKS REPAIRED: 1
MXU'S: _ 42 BATTERIES: 7
NEW CUSTOMERS:
\
RESIDENTIAL: __ 15 COMMERCIAL: 1 INDUSTRIAL/GOVERNMENTAL: __ 0

COMMENTS:
\



United City of Yorkville
WATER DEPARTMENT REPORT

SEPTEMBER 2016
MONTH / YEAR

NO WELL DEPTH PUMP DEPTH WATER ABOVE PUMP THIS MONTH'S PUMPAGE
(FEET) (FEET) (FEET) (GALLONS)
3 1335 505 155 172,000
4 1401 665 204 000
7 1527 1105 430 8,434,000
8 1384 840 170 19,438,000
9 1368 870 463 22,417,000
TOTAL TREATED 46,061,000
CURRENT MONTH'S PUMPAGE IS 6,235,000  GALLONS less THAN LAST MONTH

165,000  GALLONS less THAN LAST YEAR

DAILY AVERAGE PUMPED: 1,535,366  GALLONS
DAILY MAXIMUM PUMPED: 1,944,000  GALLONS
DAILY AVERAGE PER CAPITA USE: 82.29 GALLONS
WATER TREATMENT:
—_—_—————
CHLORINE: 1263 LBS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: 3.0  MG/L
FLUORIDE: 277 _LBS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: .39 MG/L
POLYPHOSPHATE: 1,197 LBS. FED CALCULATED CONCENTRATION: .97 MG/L
WATER QUALITY:
e . ——— ..
BACTERIOLOGICAL SAMPLES ANALYZED BY ILLINOIS ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY:

28 SATISFACTORY 0 UNSATISFACTORY (EXPLAIN)
FLOURIDE: __3 SAMPLE(S) TAKEN CONCENTRATION: _1.0 MG/L
MAINTENANCE:
s
NUMBER OF METERS REPLACED: 0 NUMBER OF LEAKS OR BREAKS REPAIRED: __ 0

MXU’'S: 15

NEW CUSTOMERS:

RESIDENTIAL: 13 COMMERCIAL: 1 INDUSTRIAL/GOVERNMENTAL: 0

COMMENTS:

Main breaks: 0
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Memorandum

To: Bart Olson, City Administrator
From: Brad Sanderson, EEI
CC: Eric Dhuse, Director of Public Works

Krysti Barksdale-Noble, Community Dev. Dir.
Lisa Pickering, Deputy City Clerk

Date: December 8, 2016
Subject: Route 47 ITEP (Streetlights)— Authorizations 2, 3 & 4

The purpose of this memo is to present Authorizations 2, 3 & 4 for the above referenced project.

An authorization, as defined by IDOT, is the written approval of a contract change and the
written directive to the contractor to perform said work. By this definition, it alters the contract
work from that awarded under the competitive bidding process. An Authorization of Contract
Changes signed by the Regional Engineer signifies completed review of and support for the
change proposed.

Background:

The State of Illinois and Thorne Electric, Inc. entered into an agreement for a contract value of
$401,463.02 for the above referenced project. Construction began on October 11, 2016 and the
project is substantially complete.

The construction costs are being funded by ITEP funds (federal) and local funds. The maximum
federal participation amount is $390,410.00, inclusive of all change orders (authorizations)
associated with this contract.

Questions Presented:

Should the City approve Authorizations Nos. 2 ($540.00), 3 ($1,623.00) and 4 ($2,625.00) in the
amount of $4,788.00?

Discussion:

Authorization No. 2 covers additional labor and equipment required to clearing duct
obstructions, including:

e A fish tape was used to pull wire under IL-47 from Lighting Controller 1 to Handhole 7.
The fish tape was used because the pull cord which was supposed to be installed under
the IL-47 reconstruction project was not present.

e An obstruction was encountered in the existing duct from Handhole 7 to Handhole 11.
Wires were installed individually, to pass the obstruction in the duct resulting in
additional effort required to complete the work.



Authorization No. 3 covers material expenses incurred by the contractor, including:

e The existing anchor bolts at the foundations constructed during the IL-47 reconstruction
project did not have the required hardware to attach the light poles. The contractor was
required to procure the nuts, washers and lock washers in order to attach the poles.

Authorization No. 4 covers additional labor and equipment required to cleaning threads on the
existing anchor bolts, including:

e The anchor bolts at the foundations constructed during the IL-47 reconstruction project
were not protected when the concrete foundations were poured which caused the threads
to become coated in concrete paste. The paste on the threads prevented the leveling nuts
from screwing down the anchor bolts. The contractor was required to clean the threads of
the anchor bolts using hand tools and a wire brush wheel.

The net change to date for authorizations is $7,100.64 which is a 1.77% increase to the original
contract value bringing a revised contract value to date of $408,564.66. The City will be
responsible for 20% of the total or $1,420.13.

We have attached IDOT form BC-22 for Authorization Nos. 2, 3 & 4 for your information. All
authorizations have a pre-approval from the IDOT District 3 Local Agency Bureau of
Construction Engineer.

We are recommending approval of the Authorizations.

Action Required:

Consideration of approval from the City Council for Authorizations 2, 3 & 4.



lllinois Department

Authorization No.

of Transportation Sheet 1 of 1

[ ] Contract Adjustment

Change Order

[V} Consultant
(] InHouse

| FHWA-Exempt
D Non-Exempt

[ ] Major Change
@ Minor Change

Consultant's Name:  Engineering Enterprises, Inc.

Contractor:
Address:

Thorne Electric
P.O. Box 321
Wheaton IL 60189-

2

Authorization of
Contract Changes

Date: 11/12/2015
County: Kendall
Section: 13-00043-00-LS
Route FAP 326 1L-47
District: 03

Contract: 87603

Job No.: C9301215
Project No.: TE-D3(87)

The following change from the plans in the construction of the above designated section of highway improvement is authorized and directed. The
estimated quantities are shown below at the awarded contract prices except as indicated. The first addition of an item not in the original contract
under the fund type or county is indicated by an asterisk.

!Item No. * |Cat Pay Item Unit ' Quantity|

|
FAS ID: M3E2L0]

CCS Code 093003

FRC00100 | * |33 CLEARING DUCT OBSTRUC ‘ DOLLAR‘ 540,000
Amount of Original Contract: $401,463.02
Net Change To Date: $2,852.64 Percent Change: 0.71%

Project Location:

Description
and Reason:

Determination:

IL-47 from IL RTE 126 to Somonauk Street, Yorkville

Thorne had to use a fish tape to install wire from
Lighting Controller 1 to Handhole 7. The existing duct
did not contain a pull cord shown on the plans. Also,
Thorne encountered an obstruction in the duct
connecting Handhole 7 to Handhole 11.

(G4) The undersigned determine that the change is
germane to the original contract as signed, because the
change in design is necessary to fulfill the original intent
of the contract.

THE STATE OF ILL
By the Department of Tra

Unit Price A/D Addition
1.0000] A $540.00
Totals: $540.00

Net Change: 540.00

INOIS
nsportation

Randall S. Blankenhorn, Secretary

Deduction

$0.00

$0.00

Date

Jeff Heck, Chief Fiscal Officer, Director of F&A

William M. Barnes, Chief Cou

nsel

Date Regional Engineer Supervisor: Joe Spika
Supervisor
Date Engineer of Construction
Resident: Bart Olson
Date Director of Highways PI/Chief Engineer Resident
FHWA Acceptable to Proceed: e No FHWA Participation: = No

Print Date: 11/25/2016

FHWA Representative

BC22 (rev.

Date

Date

Date

Date

Date
08/16)



Labor

Trade Hours ST Wage Total
Electrician 2 2 $45.36 $90.72
Electrician 2 $45.36 $90.72
Labor = $181.44
Benefits
Hours H&W Pension Vacation Training  Total
Electrician $4.00 $20.00 $56.24 - $1.80 $78.04
Benefits = $78.04
Bond, Insurance and Tax
Rate Labor Exp. Total
FICA 7.65% $181.44 $13.88
FUTA 6.00% $181.44 $10.89
SUTA 7.60% $181.44 $13.79
Insurance 12.50% $181.44 $22.68
Bond 0.50% $181.44 $0.91
Bond, Ins. & Tax = $62.14
Labor & Benefits = $259.48
markup + 35% $90.82
Bond, Ins & Tax = $62.14
Total Labor Cost = $412.44
Equipment
Equipment Description Hours Rate Total
International 4700 T444E 2 $45.00 $90.00
Cart 1.5 $25.00 $37.50
Equip. = $127.50
Equipment = $127.50
markup + 0% $0.00
Total Equipment Cost = $127.50

Total Cost =

$539.94



"rn0lS Department Authorization No. 3 Authorization of

of Transportation gl e 1 Contract Changes
Date: 11/25/2016
Contract Adjustment ! FHWA-Exempt County: Kendall
Change Order [} Non-Exempt Section: 13-00043-00-LS
"] Major Ch -
Consultant L] R Route FAP 326 IL-47
[ InHouse /| Minor Change District: 03
Contract: 87603
Job No.: C9301215
, . . . Project No.: TE-D3(87
Consultant's Name:  Engineering Enterprises, Inc. y oy
Contractor: Thorne Electric
Address: P.O. Box 321
Wheaton IL 60189-

The following change from the plans in the construction of the above designated section of highway improvement is authorized and directed. The
estimated quantities are shown below at the awarded contract pr|ces except as indicated. The first addition of an item not in the original contract
under the fund type or county is indicated by an asterisk.

Item No. | * Cat [Pay Item Unit Quantity Unit Price/A/D Addition| Deduction|
FASID: M3E2L01 CCS Code 0930031
|
FRC00200 |* |33 LIGHT POLE MOUNTING HA } DOLLAR‘ 1,623.000 1.0000| A $1,623.00 $0.00
i ]
Amount of Original Contract: $401,463.02 Totals: $1,623.00 $0.00
Net Change To Date: $7,100.64  Percent Change: 1.77% Net Change: 1,623.00
Project Location: 1L-47 from IL RTE 126 to Somonauk Street, Yorkville THE STATE OF ILLINOIS
By the Department of Transportation
Description Existing anchor bolts did not have the hardware required
and Reason: to mount light poles to the existing foundations. Thorne
ordered the material required to secure the light poles Randall S. Blankenhorn, Secretary Date
A . . ) Jeff Heck, Chief Fiscal Officer, Director of F&A
Determination: (G4) The undersigned determine that the change is
germane to the original contract as signed, because the Date
i igni fulfill the original i
g??ﬁgigr&t?ae:;gn is necessary to fulfill the original intent William M. Barnes, Chief Counsel
Date
Date Regional Engineer Supervisor: Joe Spika
Supervisor  Date
Date Engineer of Construction

Resident; Eric Dhuse

Date Director of Highways PI/Chief Engineer Resident Date

FHWA Acceptable to Proceed: Yes No FHWA Participation: Yes No

FHWA Representative Date
i : 11/25/2016
PintBate BC22 (rev. 08/16)



Materials

Material Description

Flat Washers
Lock Washers
Hex-Nut

Quantity  Units

304 Each
152 Each
304 Each

Unit Cost

$0.62
$0.30
$3.50

Total
$0.00
$188.48
$45.60
$1,064.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00
$0.00

Material =

$1,298.08

Material = $1,298.08
markup + 25% $324.52
Total Material Cost = $1,622.60

Total Cost = $1,622.60



Authorization No. 4

Sheet 1 of 1

lllinois Department
of Transportation

Contract Adjustment

‘ V| FHWA-Exempt
Change Order

[ j Non-Exempt

I [_] Major Change

v/| Consultant
] Consu Minor Change

[ ] InHouse

Consultant's Name:  Engineering Enterprises, Inc.

Contractor: Thorne Electric
Address: P.O. Box 321
Wheaton IL 60189-

Authorization of
Contract Changes

Date: 11/25/2016
County: Kendall
Section: 13-00043-00-LS
Route FAP 326 IL-47
District: 03

Contract: 87603

Job No.: C9301215
Project No.: TE-D3(87)

The following change from the plans in the construction of the above designated section of highway improvement is authorized and directed. The
estimated quantities are shown below at the awarded contract prices except as indicated. The first addition of an item not in the original contract

under the fund type or county is indicated by an asterisk.

lltem No. | * |Cat lPay Item Unit Quantity Unit Price A/D Addition Deduction
FASID: M3E2L01 CCS Code 093003]

FRC00300 | * |33 ANCHOR BOLT THREAD CL | DOLLAR 2,625.000 1.0000| A $2,625.00 $0.00
Amount of Original Contract: $401,463.02 Totals: | el )
Net Change To Date: $7,100.64 Percent Change: 1.77% Net Change: 2,625.00
Project Location: 1L-47 from IL RTE 126 to Somonauk Street, Yorkville THE STATE OF ILLINOIS

By the Department of Transportation
Description Anchor bolt threads were not protected when the
and Reason: foundations were poured. Anchor bolts needed to be
cleaned and in some cases straighteded to accept Randall S. Blankenhorn, Secretary Date
mounting hardward and light pole base plates.
L ) . . Jeff Heck, Chief Fiscal Officer, Director of F&A
Determination: (G4) The undersigned determine that the change is
germane to the original contract as signed, because the Date
; B i -
g??ﬁgiér;t?;e;lgn is necessary to fulfill the original intent William M. Barnes, Chief Counsel
Date
Date Regional Engineer Supervisor: Joe Spika
Supervisor  Date
Date Engineer of Construction
Resident: Eric Dhuse
Date Director of Highways P1/Chief Engineer Resident Date
FHWA Acceptable to Proceed: © Yes No FHWA Participation: Yes o
FHWA Representative Date

Print Date: 11/25/2016

BC22 (rev. 08/16)



Labor

Trade Hours ST Wage Total
Electrician 5.5 5.5 $45.36 $249.48
Electrician 14.5 14.5 $45.36 $657.72
Labor = $907.20
Benefits
Hours H&W Pension Vacation Training  Total
Electrician $20.00 $100.00 $281.20 - $9.00 $390.20
Benefits = $390.20
Bond, Insurance and Tax
Rate Labor Exp. Total
FICA 7.65% $907.20 $69.40
FUTA 6.00% $907.20 $54.43
SUTA 7.60% $907.20 $68.95
Insurance 12.50% $907.20 $113.40
Bond 0.50% $907.20 $4.54
Bond, Ins. & Tax = $310.72
Labor & Benefits = $1,297.40
markup + 35% $454.09
Bond, Ins & Tax = $310.72
Total Labor Cost = $2,062.21
Equipment
Equipment Description Hours Rate Total
International 10 $45.00 $450.00
GMC 4.5 $25.00 $112.50
Equip. = $562.50
Equipment = $562.50
markup + 0% $0.00
Total Equipment Cost = $562.50

Total Cost =

$2,624.71
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2017 Sanitary Sewer Lining Program
United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, IL
Professional Services Agreement - Design and Construction Engineering

THIS AGREEMENT, by and between the United City of Yorkville, hereinafter referred
to as the "City" or “OWNER” and Engineering Enterprises, Inc. hereinafter referred to as
the "Contractor” or “ENGINEER” agrees as follows:

A. Services:

ENGINEER agrees to furnish to the City the following services: The ENGINEER shall
provide any and all necessary engineering services to the City as indicated on the
included exhibits. Design and Construction engineering will be provided for sanitary
sewer lining (see Exhibit 5 for project limits). Engineering will be in accordance with all
City, Standard Specifications for Water and Sewer Construction in Illinois, Illinois
Department of Transportation, and Illinois Environmental Protection Agency
requirements.

B. Term:

Services will be provided beginning on the date of execution of this agreement and
continuing, until terminated by either party upon 7 days written notice to the non-
terminating party or upon completion of the Services. Upon termination the ENGINEER
shall be compensated for all work performed for the City prior to termination.

C. Compensation and maximum amounts due to ENGINEER:

ENGINEER shall receive as compensation for all work and services to be performed
herein, an amount based on the Estimate of Level of Effort and Associated Cost included
in Exhibit 3. Design Engineering will be paid for as a Fixed Fee (FF) in the amount of
$7,700 and Construction Engineering will be paid for Hourly (HR) at the actual rates for
services to be performed, currently estimated at $8,929. Direct expenses are estimated at
$750. The hourly rates for this project are shown in the attached 2016 Standard Schedule
of Charges (Exhibit 6). All payments will be made according to the Illinois State Prompt
Payment Act and not less than once every thirty days.

D. Changes in Rates of Compensation:

In the event that this contract is designated in Section B hereof as an Ongoing Contract,
ENGINEER, on or before February 1st of any given year, shall provide written notice of
any change in the rates specified in Section C hereof (or on any attachments hereto) and
said changes shall only be effective on and after May 1st of that same year.



2017 Sanitary Sewer Lining Program
United City of Yorkville

Professional Services Agreement
Design and Construction Engineering

E. Ownership of Records and Documents:

ENGINEER agrees that all books and records and other recorded information developed
specifically in connection with this agreement shall remain the property of the City.
ENGINEER agrees to keep such information confidential and not to disclose or
disseminate the information to third parties without the consent of the City. This
confidentiality shall not apply to material or information, which would otherwise be
subject to public disclosure through the freedom of information act or if already
previously disclosed by a third party. Upon termination of this agreement, ENGINEER
agrees to return all such materials to the City. The City agrees not to modify any original
documents produced by ENGINEER without contractors consent. Modifications of any
signed duplicate original document not authorized by ENGINEER will be at OWNER’s
sole risk and without legal liability to the ENGINEER. Use of any incomplete, unsigned
document will, likewise, be at the OWNER’s sole risk and without legal liability to the
ENGINEER.

F. Governing Law:

This contract shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Illinois. Venue shall be in Kendall County, Illinois.

G. Independent Contractor:

ENGINEER shall have sole control over the manner and means of providing the work
and services performed under this agreement. The City’s relationship to the ENGINEER
under this agreement shall be that of an independent contractor. ENGINEER will not be
considered an employee to the City for any purpose.

H. Certifications:

Employment Status: The Contractor certifies that if any of its personnel are an employee
of the State of Illinois, they have permission from their employer to perform the service.

Anti-Bribery : The Contractor certifies it is not barred under 30 Illinois Compiled
Statutes 500/50-5(a) - (d) from contracting as a result of a conviction for or admission of
bribery or attempted bribery of an officer or employee of the State of Illinois or any
other state.

Loan Default: If the Contractor is an individual, the Contractor certifies that he/she is not
in default for a period of six months or more in an amount of $600 or more on the
repayment of any educational loan guaranteed by the Illinois State Scholarship
Commission made by an Illinois institution of higher education or any other loan made
from public funds for the purpose of financing higher education (5 ILCS 385/3).



2017 Sanitary Sewer Lining Program
United City of Yorkville

Professional Services Agreement
Design and Construction Engineering

Felony Certification: The Contractor certifies that it is not barred pursuant to 30 Illinois
Compiled Statutes 500/50-10 from conducting business with the State of Illinois or any
agency as a result of being convicted of a felony.

Barred from Contracting : The Contractor certifies that it has not been barred from
contracting as a result of a conviction for bid-rigging or bid rotating under 720 Illinois
Compiled Statutes 5/33E or similar law of another state.

Drug Free Workplace: The Contractor certifies that it is in compliance with the Drug
Free Workplace Act (30 Illinois Compiled Statutes 580) as of the effective date of this
contract. The Drug Free Workplace Act requires, in part, that Contractors, with 25 or
more employees certify and agree to take steps to ensure a drug free workplace by
informing employees of the dangers of drug abuse, of the availability of any treatment or
assistance program, of prohibited activities and of sanctions that will be imposed for
violations; and that individuals with contracts certify that they will not engage in the
manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance in
the performance of the contract.

Non-Discrimination, Certification, and Equal Employment Opportunity : The Contractor
agrees to comply with applicable provisions of the Illinois Human Rights Act (775
Illinois Compiled Statutes 5), the U.S. Civil Rights Act, the Americans with Disabilities
Act, Section 504 of the U.S. Rehabilitation Act and the rules applicable to each. The
equal opportunity clause of Section 750.10 of the Illinois Department of Human Rights
Rules is specifically incorporated herein. The Contractor shall comply with Executive
Order 11246, entitled Equal Employment Opportunity, as amended by Executive Order
11375, and as supplemented by U.S. Department of Labor regulations (41 C.F.R. Chapter
60). The Contractor agrees to incorporate this clause into all subcontracts under this
Contract.

International Boycott: The Contractor certifies that neither it nor any substantially owned
affiliated company is participating or shall participate in an international boycott in
violation of the provisions of the U.S. Export Administration Act of 1979 or the
regulations of the U.S. Department of Commerce promulgated under that Act (30 ILCS
582).

Record Retention and Audits: If 30 Illinois Compiled Statutes 500/20-65 requires the
Contractor (and any subcontractors) to maintain, for a period of 3 years after the later of
the date of completion of this Contract or the date of final payment under the Contract, all
books and records relating to the performance of the Contract and necessary to support
amounts charged to the City under the Contract. The Contract and all books and records
related to the Contract shall be available for review and audit by the City and the Illinois
Auditor General. If this Contract is funded from contract/grant funds provided by the
U.S. Government, the Contract, books, and records shall be available for review and
audit by the Comptroller General of the U.S. and/or the Inspector General of the federal



2017 Sanitary Sewer Lining Program
United City of Yorkville

Professional Services Agreement
Design and Construction Engineering

sponsoring agency. The Contractor agrees to cooperate fully with any audit and to
provide full access to all relevant materials.

United States Resident Certification: (This certification must be included in all contracts
involving personal services by non-resident aliens and foreign entities in accordance with
requirements imposed by the Internal Revenue Services for withholding and reporting
federal income taxes.) The Contractor certifies that he/she is a: x_ United States Citizen
___Resident Alien __ Non-Resident Alien The Internal Revenue Service requires that
taxes be withheld on payments made to non resident aliens for the performance of
personal services at the rate of 30%.

Tax Payer Certification : Under penalties of perjury, the Contractor certifies that its
Federal Tax Payer ldentification Number or Social Security Number is (provided

separately) and is doing business as a (check one): _ Individual __ Real Estate
Agent __ Sole Proprietorship _ Government Entity =~ Partnership _ Tax
Exempt Organization (IRC 501(a) only) x Corporation ___ Not for Profit Corporation
____Trustor Estate _ Medical and Health Care Services Provider Corp.

I. Indemnification:

ENGINEER shall indemnify and hold harmless the City and City’s agents, servants, and
employees against all loss, damage, and expense which it may sustain or for which it will
become liable on account of injury to or death of persons, or on account of damage to or
destruction of property resulting from the performance of work under this agreement by
ENGINEER or its Subcontractors, or due to or arising in any manner from the wrongful
act or negligence of ENGINEER or its Subcontractors of any employee of any of them.
In the event that the either party shall bring any suit, cause of action or counterclaim
against the other party, the non-prevailing party shall pay to the prevailing party the cost
and expenses incurred to answer and/or defend such action, including reasonable attorney
fees and court costs. In no event shall the either party indemnify any other party for the
consequences of that party’s negligence, including failure to follow the ENGINEER’s
recommendations.

J. Insurance :

The ENGINEER agrees that it has either attached a copy of all required insurance
certificates or that said insurance is not required due to the nature and extent of the types
of services rendered hereunder. (Not applicable as having been previously supplied)

K. Additional Terms or Modification:

The terms of this agreement shall be further modified as provided on the attachments.
Except for those terms included on the attachments, no additional terms are included as a
part of this agreement. All prior understandings and agreements between the parties are
merged into this agreement, and this agreement may not be modified orally or in any



2017 Sanitary Sewer Lining Program
United City of Yorkville

Professional Services Agreement
Design and Construction Engineering

manner other than by an agreement in writing signed by both parties. In the event that
any provisions of this agreement shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the
remaining provisions shall be valid and binding on the parties. The list of exhibits is as
follows:

Exhibit 1: Professional Engineering Services

Exhibit 2: Limitation of Authority, Duties and Responsibilities of the
Resident Construction Observer

Exhibit 3: Estimate of Level of Effort and Associated Cost

Exhibit4:  Anticipated Project Schedule

Exhibit 5: Location Map

Exhibit 6: 2016 Standard Schedule of Charges

L. Notices:

All notices required to be given under the terms of this agreement shall be given mail,
addressed to the parties as follows:

For the City: For the ENGINEER:

City Administrator and City Clerk Engineering Enterprises, Inc.
United City of Yorkville 52 Wheeler Road

800 Game Farm Road Sugar Grove Illinois 60554

Yorkville, IL 60560

Either of the parties may designate in writing from time to time substitute addresses or
persons in connection with required notices.

Agreed to this day of , 2016.
United City of Yorkville: Engineering Enterprises, Inc.:
Gary Golinski Brad Sanderson, P.E.
Mayor Vice President
Beth Warren Angie Smith

City Clerk Executive Assistant



EXHIBIT 1

SECTION A - PROFESSIONAL DESIGN ENGINEERING SERVICES

For purposes of this Exhibit 1 and all attachments hereto, the term “contractor” shall not refer to
Engineering Enterprises, Inc., but shall instead refer to individuals or companies contracted with, to
construct or otherwise manage the project described herein. The ENGINEER shall furnish professional

design engineering services as follows:

1. The ENGINEER will attend conferences with the OWNER, or other interested parties as may be

reasonably necessary.

2. The ENGINEER will perform the necessary design surveys, accomplish the detailed design of
the project, prepare construction drawings, specifications and contract documents, and prepare a
final cost estimate based on final design for the entire system. It is also understood that if
subsurface explorations (such as borings, soil tests, rock soundings and the like) are required, the
ENGINEER will furnish coordination of said explorations without additional charge, but the
costs incident to such explorations shall be paid for by the OWNER as set out in Section D

hereof.

3. The contract documents furnished by the ENGINEER under Section A-2 shall utilize IEPA
endorsed construction contract documents, including Supplemental General Conditions, Contract

Change Orders, and partial payment estimates.

4. Prior to the advertisement for bids, the ENGINEER will provide for each construction contract,
not to exceed 10 copies of detailed drawings, specifications, and contract documents for use by
the OWNER, appropriate Federal, State, and local agencies from whom approval of the project
must be obtained. The cost of such drawings, specifications, and contract documents shall be
included in the basic compensation paid to the ENGINEER.

5. The ENGINEER will furnish additional copies of the drawings, specifications and contract
documents as required by prospective bidders, material suppliers, and other interested parties,
but may charge them for the reasonable cost of such copies. Upon award of each contract, the



ENGINEER will furnish to the OWNER five sets of the drawings, specifications and contract
documents for execution. The cost of these sets shall be included in the basic compensation paid
to the ENGINEER. Original documents, survey notes, tracings, and the like, except those
furnished to the ENGINEER by the OWNER, are and shall remain the property of the
ENGINEER.

The drawings prepared by the ENGINEER under the provisions of Section A-2 above shall be in
sufficient detail to permit the actual location of the proposed improvements on the ground. The
ENGINEER shall prepare and furnish to the OWNER without any additional compensation,
three copies of map(s) showing the general location of needed construction easements and
permanent easements and the land to be acquired. Property surveys, property plats, property
descriptions, abstracting and negotiations for land rights shall be accomplished by the OWNER,
unless the OWNER requests, and the ENGINEER agrees to provide those services. In the event
the ENGINEER is requested to provide such services, the ENGINEER shall be additionally

compensated as set out in Section D hereof.

The ENGINEER will attend the bid opening and tabulate the bid proposal, make an analysis of

the bids, and make recommendations for awarding contracts for construction.

The ENGINEER further agrees to obtain and maintain, at the ENGINEER’s expense, such
insurance as will protect the ENGINEER from claims under the Workman’s Compensation Act
and such comprehensive general liability insurance as will protect the OWNER and the
ENGINEER from all claims for bodily injury, death, or property damage which may arise from
the performance by the ENGINEER or by the ENGINEER’s employees of the ENGINEER’s

functions and services required under this Agreement.

The ENGINEER will complete the final plans, specifications and contract documents and submit
for approval of the OWNER, and all State regulatory agencies to meet the project schedule(s) as
summarized in Exhibit 4: “Anticipated Project Schedule — 2017 Sanitary Sewer Lining
Program” dated November 23, 2016.



SECTION B - PROFESSIONAL CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING SERVICES

The ENGINEER shall furnish professional construction engineering services as follows:

The ENGINEER will review, for conformance with the design concept, shop and working
drawings required by the construction Contract Documents and indicate on the drawings the

action taken. Such action shall be taken with reasonable promptness.

The ENGINEER will interpret the intent of the drawings and specifications to protect the
OWNER against defects and deficiencies in construction on the part of the contractors. The

ENGINEER will not, however, guarantee the performance by any contractor.

The ENGINEER will evaluate and determine acceptability of substitute materials and equipment

proposed by Contractor(s).

The ENGINEER will establish baselines for locating the work together with a suitable number of
bench marks adjacent to the work as shown in the contract documents.

The ENGINEER will provide general engineering review of the work of the contractor(s) as

construction progresses to ascertain that the contactor is conforming to the design concept.

@ ENGINEER shall have authority, as the OWNER’s representative, to require special
inspection of or testing of the work, and shall receive and review all certificates of
inspections, testing and approvals required by laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, codes,
orders or the Contract Documents (but only to determine generally that their content
complies with requirements of, and the results certified indicate compliance with, the

Contract Documents).

(b) During such engineering review, ENGINEER shall have the authority, as the OWNER’s
representative, to disapprove of or reject contractor(s)” work while it is in progress if
ENGINEER believes that such work will not produce a completed Project that conforms
generally to the Contract Documents or that it will prejudice the integrity of the design
concept of the Project as reflected in the Contract Documents.



The ENGINEER will provide resident construction observation. Resident construction
observation shall consist of visual inspection of materials, equipment, or construction work for
the purpose of ascertaining that the work is in substantial conformance with the contract
documents and with the design intent. Such observation shall not be relied upon by others as
acceptance of the work. The ENGINEER’s undertaking hereunder shall not relieve the
contractor of contractor’s obligation to perform the work in conformity with the drawings and
specifications and in a workmanlike manner; shall not make the ENGINEER an insurer of the
contractor’s performance; and shall not impose upon the ENGINEER any obligation to see that
the work is performed in a safe manner. Exhibit 2 - The Limitations of Authority, Duties and

Responsibilities of the Resident Construction Observer is attached to this Agreement.

The ENGINEER will cooperate and work closely with representatives of the OWNER.

Based on the ENGINEER’s on-site observations as an experienced and qualified design
professional, on information provided by the Resident Construction Observer, and upon review
of applications for payment with the accompanying data and schedules by the contractor, the
ENGINEER:

@) Shall determine the amounts owing to contractor(s) and recommend in writing payments
to contractor(s) in such amounts. Such recommendations of payment will constitute a
representation to OWNER, based on such observations and review, that the work has
progressed to the point indicated, and that, to the best of the ENGINEER’s knowledge,
information and belief, the quality of such work is generally in accordance with the
Contract Documents (subject to an evaluation of such work as a functioning whole prior
to or upon substantial completion, to the results of any subsequent tests called for in the

Contract Documents, and to any other qualifications stated in the recommendation).

(b) By recommending any payment, ENGINEER will not hereby be deemed to have
represented that exhaustive, continuous or detailed reviews or examinations have been
made by ENGINEER to check the quality or quantity of contractor(s)’ work as it is
furnished and performed beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to ENGINEER
in the Agreement and the Contract Documents. ENGINEER’s review of contractor(s)’



10.

11.

12.

13.

work for the purposes of recommending payments will not impose on Engineer
responsibility to supervise, direct or control such work or for the means, methods,
techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction or safety precautions or programs
incident thereto or contractor(s) compliance with laws, rules, regulations, ordinances,
codes or orders applicable to their furnishing and performing the work. It will also not
impose responsibility on ENGINEER to make any examination to ascertain how or for
what purposes any contractor has used the moneys paid on account of the Contract Price,
or to determine that title to any of the work, materials equipment has passed to OWNER
free and clear of any lien, claims, security interests, or encumbrances, or that there may
not be other matters at issue between OWNER and contractor that might affect the

amount that should be paid.

The ENGINEER will prepare necessary contract change orders for approval of the OWNER, and

others on a timely basis.

The ENGINEER will make a final review prior to the issuance of the statement of substantial
completion of all construction and submit a written report to the OWNER. Prior to submitting
the final pay estimate, the ENGINEER shall submit the statement of completion to and obtain the
written acceptance of the facility from the OWNER.

The ENGINEER will provide the OWNER with one set of reproducible record (as-built)
drawings, and two sets of prints at no additional cost to the OWNER. Such drawings will be
based upon construction records provided by the contractor during construction and reviewed by
the resident construction observer and from the resident construction observer’s construction
data.

If State Statutes require notices and advertisements of final payment, the ENGINEER shall assist

in their preparation.

The ENGINEER will be available to furnish engineering services and consultations necessary to
correct unforeseen project operation difficulties for a period of one year after the date of
statement of substantial completion of the facility. This service will include instruction of the
OWNER in initial project operation and maintenance but will not include supervision of normal



14.

15.

operation of the system. Such consultation and advice shall be at the hourly rates as described in
the attached Exhibit 6: Standard Schedule of Charges dated January 1, 2016. The ENGINEER
will assist the OWNER in performing a review of the project during the 11th month after the
date of the certificate of substantial completion.

The ENGINEER further agrees to obtain and maintain, at the ENGINEER’s expense, such
insurance as will protect the ENGINEER from claims under the Workman’s Compensation Act
and such comprehensive general liability insurance as will protect the OWNER and the
ENGINEER from all claims for bodily injury, death, or property damage which may arise from
the performance by the ENGINEER or by the ENGINEER’s employees of the ENGINEER’s

functions and services required under this Agreement.

The ENGINEER will provide construction engineering services in accordance with the periods
summarized in Exhibit 4. “Anticipated Project Schedule — 2017 Sanitary Sewer Lining
Program” dated November 23, 2016.

If the above is not accomplished within the time period specified, this Agreement may be terminated by
the OWNER. The time for completion may be extended by the OWNER for a reasonable time if

completion is delayed due to unforeseeable cases beyond the control and without the fault or negligence

of the ENGINEER. Pursuant to Paragraph D “Changes in Rates of Compensation”, the contract shall be

designated on-going consistent with the project schedule.



SECTION C - COMPENSATION FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES

The OWNER shall compensate the ENGINEER for professional design engineering services in
the amount of Seven Thousand Seven Hundred Dollars — Fixed Fee (FF) ($7,700 FF) as
summarized on Exhibit 3: “Estimate of Level of Effort and Associated Cost for Professional

Engineering Services for 2017 Sanitary Sewer Lining” dated November 23, 2016.

@) The compensation for the professional design engineering services shall be payable as

follows:

1) A sum which does not exceed ninety percent (90%) of the total compensation
payable under Section C-1 shall be paid in monthly increments for work actually
completed and invoiced, for grant administration and for the preparation and
submission to the OWNER and/or IEPA of the construction drawings,

specifications, cost estimates and contract documents.

2) A sum which, together with the compensation paid pursuant to Section C-1(a)(1)
above, equals one hundred percent (100%) of the total compensation due and
payable in accord with Section C-1 above, shall be due immediately after the

award of construction contract(s) is approved by the corporate authorities.

The OWNER shall compensate the ENGINEER for the construction administration, construction
staking, construction observation (including the Resident Construction Observer), and any
additional consultation and surveying services on the basis of Hourly Rates (HR) as described on
the attached Exhibit 6: Standard Schedule of Charges dated January 1, 2016. The estimated
values are included in Exhibit 3: “Estimate of Level of Effort and Associated Cost for
Professional Engineering Services for 2017 Sanitary Sewer Lining” dated November 23, 2016
and are estimated at $8,929 Hourly (HR).

(a) The compensation for the construction administration, construction staking, construction
observation (including the Resident Construction Observer), and any additional
consultation and surveying services shall be payable as follows:



1) A sum which equals any charges for work actually completed and invoiced shall

be paid at least once per month.

The OWNER shall compensate the ENGINEER for direct expenses as identified in the contract

and as noted on Exhibit 3 at the actual cost or hourly cost for the work completed.

1) A sum which equals any charges for work actually completed and invoiced shall be paid

at least once per month.

The compensation for any additional engineering services authorized by the OWNER pursuant to

Section D shall be payable as follows:

@) A sum which equals any charges for work actually completed and invoiced shall be paid

at least once per month.



SECTION D - ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES

In addition to the foregoing being performed, the following services may be provided UPON PRIOR
WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION OF THE OWNER.

1.

10.

Site surveys outside of the project limits and other similar special surveys as may be required.

Laboratory tests, well tests, borings, specialized geological soils hydraulic, or other studies
recommended by the ENGINEER.

Property surveys, detailed description of sites, maps, drawings, or estimates related thereto;

assistance in negotiating for land and easement rights.

Necessary data and filing maps for litigation, such as condemnation.

Redesigns ordered by the OWNER after final plans have been accepted by the OWNER and
IEPA.

Appearances before courts or boards on matters of litigation or hearings related to the project.

Preparation of environmental impact assessments or environmental impact statements.

Making drawings from field measurements of existing facilities when required for planning

additions or alterations thereto.

Services due to changes in the scope of the Project or its design, including but not limited to,

changes in size, complexity, schedule or character of construction.

Revising studies or reports which have previously been approved by the OWNER, or when

revisions are due to cases beyond the control of the ENGINEER.
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16.
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Preparation of design documents for alternate bids where major changes require additional

documents.

Preparation of detailed renderings, exhibits or scale models for the Project.

Providing special analysis of the OWNER’s needs such as owning and operating analysis, plan
for operation and maintenance, OWNER’s special operating drawings or charts, and any other

similar analysis.

The preparation of feasibility studies, appraisals and evaluations, detailed quantity surveys of

material and labor, and material audits or inventories by the OWNER.

Additional or extended services during construction made necessary by (1) work damaged by
fire or other cause during construction, (2) defective or incomplete work of the contractor, and/or

(3) the contractor’s default on the Construction Contract due to delinquency or insolvency.

Providing design services relating to future facilities, systems and equipment which are not

intended to be constructed or operated as a part of the Project.

Providing other services not otherwise provided for in this Agreement, including services
normally furnished by the OWNER as described in Section E — SPECIAL PROVISIONS -

Owner’s Responsibilities.

Payment for the services specified in this Section E shall be as agreed in writing between the OWNER
and the ENGINEER prior to commencement of the work. The ENGINEER will render to OWNER for

such services an itemized bill, separate from any other billing, once each month, for compensation for

services performed hereunder during such period, the same to be due and payable by OWNER to the

ENGINEER on or before the 10th day of the following period. Payment for services noted in D shall be
at Actual Cost (AC), Fixed Fee (FF) or Hourly (HR).

10



SECTION E - SPECIAL PROVISIONS

OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(@)

Provide to the ENGINEER all criteria, design and construction standards and full

information as to the OWNER’s requirements for the Project.

Designate a person authorized to act as the OWNER’s representative. The OWNER or
his representative shall receive and examine documents submitted by the ENGINEER,
interpret and define the OWNER’s policies and render decisions and authorizations in
writing promptly to prevent unreasonable delay in the progress of the ENGINEER’s

services.

Furnish laboratory tests, air and water pollution tests, reports and inspections of samples,
materials or other items required by law or by governmental authorities having

jurisdiction over this Project, or as recommended by the ENGINEER.

Provide legal, accounting, right-of-way acquisition and insurance counseling services
necessary for the Project, legal review of the construction Contract Documents, and such
auditing services as the OWNER may require to account for expenditures of sums paid to

the contractor.

Furnish above services at the OWNER’s expense and in such manner that the
ENGINEER may rely upon them in the performance of his services under this Agreement

and in accordance with the Project timetable.

Guarantee full and free access for the ENGINEER to enter upon all property required for

the performance of the ENGINEER’s services under this Agreement.
Give prompt written notice to the ENGINEER whenever the OWNER observes or

otherwise becomes aware of any defect in the Project or other event which may

substantially affect the ENGINEER’s performance of services under this Agreement.

11



(h) Protect and preserve all survey stakes and markers placed at the project site prior to the
assumption of this responsibility by the contractor and bear all costs of replacing stakes

or markers damaged or removed during said time interval.

Delegation of Duties - Neither the OWNER nor the ENGINEER shall delegate his duties under

this Agreement without the written consent of the other.

The ENGINEER has not been retained or compensated to provide design services relating to the
contractor’s safety precautions or to means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures
required by the contractor to perform his work but not relating to the final or completed
structure. Omitted services include but are not limited to shoring, scaffolding, underpinning,

temporary retainment of excavations and any erection methods and temporary bracing.

The ENGINEER intends to render his services under this Agreement in accordance with

generally accepted professional practices for the intended use of the Project.

Since the ENGINEER has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment or services
furnished by others, or over the contractor(s) methods of determining prices, or over competitive
bidding or market conditions, his opinions of probable Project Costs and Construction Costs
provided for herein are to be made on the basis of his experience and qualifications and represent
his best judgment as an experienced and qualified professional engineer, familiar with the
construction industry. The ENGINEER cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids or
actual project or construction cost will not vary from opinions of probable cost prepared by him.
If prior to the bidding or negotiating phase OWNER wishes greater assurance as to project or

construction costs he shall employ an independent cost-estimator.

Access to Records:
€)) The ENGINEER agrees to include subsections E-6(b) through E-6(¢) below in all

contracts and all subcontracts directly related to project services which are in excess of
$25,000.

12



(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

The ENGINEER shall maintain books, records, documents and other evidence directly
pertinent to performance of Agency loan work under this Agreement consistent with
generally accepted accounting standards in accordance with the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants Professional Standards (666 Fifth Avenue, New York, New
York 10019; June 1, 1987). The Agency or any of its duly authorized representatives
shall have access to such books, records, documents and other evidence for the purpose
of inspection, audit and copying. The ENGINEER will provide facilities for such access

and inspection.

Audits conducted pursuant to this provision shall be in accordance with generally

accepted auditing standards.

The ENGINEER agrees to the disclosure of all information and reports resulting from
access to records pursuant to subsection E-6(b) above, to the Agency. Where the audit
concerns the ENGINEER, the auditing agency shall afford the ENGINEER an
opportunity for an audit exit conference and an opportunity to comment on the pertinent
portions of the draft audit report. The final audit report will include the written

comments, if any, of the audited parties.

Records under subsection E-6(b) above shall be maintained and made available during
performance on Agency loan work under this agreement and until three years from date
of final Agency loan audit for the project. In addition, those records which relate to any
“dispute” appeal under an Agency loan agreement, or litigation, or the settlement of
claims arising out of such performance, costs or items to which an audit exception has
been taken, shall be maintained and made available until three years after the date of

resolution of such appeal, litigation, claim or exception.

Covenant Against Contingent Fees - The ENGINEER warrants that no person or selling agency

has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or

understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bonafide

employees. For breach or violation of this warranty, the loan recipient shall have the right to

annul this agreement without liability or in its discretion to deduct from the contract price or

13
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consideration or otherwise recover, the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage,

or contingent fee.

Covenant Against Contingent Fees - The loan recipient warrants that no person or agency has
been employed or retained to solicit or secure a PWSLP loan upon an agreement or
understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee. For breach or
violation of this warranty, the Agency shall have the right to annul the loan or to deduct from the
loan or otherwise recover, the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or

contingent fee.

Certification Regarding Debarment — The ENGINEER certifies that the services of anyone that
has been debarred or suspended under Federal Executive Order 12549 has not, and will not, be

used for work under this Agreement.

Affirmative Action — The ENGINEER agrees to take affirmative steps to assure that
disadvantaged business enterprises are utilized when possible as sources of supplies, equipment,
construction and services in accordance with the Clean Water Loan Program rules. As required
by the award conditions of USEPA's Assistance Agreement with IEPA, the ENGINEER
acknowledges that the fair share percentages are 5% for MBEs and 12% for WBEs.

The ENGINEER shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in the
performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 40 CFR
Part 33 in the award and administration of contracts awarded under EPA financial assistance
agreements. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this

contract which may result in the termination of this contract or other legally available remedies.

14



EXHIBIT 2

THE LIMITATIONS OF AUTHORITY, DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE RESIDENT
CONSTRUCTION OBSERVER ARE AS FOLLOWS:

The Resident Construction Observer shall act under the direct supervision of the ENGINEER,
shall be the ENGINEER’s agent in all matters relating to on-site construction review of the
contractor’s work, shall communicate only with the ENGINEER and the contractor (or
contractor’s), and shall communicate with subcontractors only through the contractor or his
authorized superintendent. The OWNER shall communicate with the Resident Construction
Observer only through the ENGINEER.

The Resident Construction Observer shall review and inspect on-site construction activities of
the contractor relating to portions of the Project designed and specified by the Engineer as

contained in the Construction Contract Documents.

Specifically omitted from the Resident Construction Observer’s duties is any review of the
contractor’s safety precautions, or the means, methods, sequences, or procedures required for the
contractor to perform the work but not relating to the final or completed Project. Omitted design
or review services include but are not limited to shoring, scaffolding, underpinning, temporary

retainment of excavations and any erection methods and temporary bracing.

The specific duties and responsibilities of the Resident Construction Observer are enumerated as

follows:

@) Schedules: Review the progress schedule, schedule of Shop Drawing submissions and
schedule of values prepared by contractor and consult with ENGINEER concerning their

acceptability.

(b) Conferences: Attend preconstruction conferences. Arrange a schedule of progress
meetings and other job conferences as required in consultation with ENGINEER and
notify those expected to attend in advance. Attend meetings and maintain and circulate
copies of minutes thereof.

15



(©)

(d)

(€)

Liaison:

1)

(2)

(3)

Serve as ENGINEER’s liaison with contractor, working principally through
contractor’s superintendent and assist him in understanding the intent of the

Contract Documents.

Assist ENGINEER in serving as OWNER’s liaison with contractor when
contractor’s operations affect OWNER’s on-site operations.

As requested by ENGINEER, assist in obtaining from OWNER additional details
or information, when required at the job site for proper erection of the work.

Shop Drawings and Samples:

(2)

3)

(3)

Receive and record date of receipt of Shop Drawings and samples.

Receive samples which are furnished at the site by contrctor, and notify

ENGINEER of their availability for examination.

Advise ENGINEER and contractor or its superintendent immediately of the
commencement of any work requiring a Shop Drawing or sample submission if

the submission has not been approved by ENGINEER.

Review of Work, Rejection of Defective Work, Inspections and Tests:

1)

()

Conduct on-site inspection of the work in progress to assist ENGINEER in
determining if the work is proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents
and that completed work will conform to the Contract Documents.

Report to ENGINEER whenever he believes that any work is unsatisfactory,
faulty or defective or does not conform to the Contract Documents, or does not
meet the requirements of any inspections, test or approval required to be made or

16



(f)

(9)

(h)

(3)

(4)

has been damaged prior to final payment; and advise ENGINEER when he
believes work should be corrected or rejected or should be uncovered for

inspection, or requires special testing, inspection or approval.

Verify that tests, equipment and systems start-ups, and operating and maintenance
instructions are conducted as required by the Contract Documents and in presence
of the required personnel, and that contractor maintains adequate records thereof;
observe, record and report to ENGINEER appropriate details relative to the test
procedures and start-ups.

Accompany visiting inspectors representing public or other agencies having
jurisdiction over the Project, record the outcome of these inspections and report to
ENGINEER.

Interpretation of Contract Documents: Transmit to contractor ENGINEER’s clarifications

and interpretations of the Contract Documents.

Modifications: Consider and evaluate contractor’s suggestions for modifications in

Drawings or Specifications and report them with recommendations to ENGINEER.

Records:

1)

(2)

Maintain at the job site orderly files for correspondence, reports of job
conferences, Shop Drawings and samples submissions, reproductions of original
Contract Documents including all addenda, change orders, field orders, additional
drawings issued subsequent to the execution of the Contract, ENGINEER’s
clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents, progress reports, and

other Project related documents.
Keep a diary or log book, recording hours on the job site, weather conditions, data

relative to questions of extras or deductions, list of visiting officials and

representatives of manufacturers, fabricators, suppliers and distributors, daily

17



1)

(k)

0]

activities, decisions, observations in general and specific observations in more

detail as in the case of observing test procedures. Send copies to ENGINEER.

(4) Record names, addresses and telephone numbers of all contractor’s,

subcontractors and major suppliers of materials and equipment.

Reports:

1) Furnish ENGINEER periodic reports as required of progress of the work and
contractor’s compliance with the approved progress schedule and schedule of

Shop Drawing submissions.

2 Consult with ENGINEER in advance of schedule major tests, inspections or start

of important phases of the work.

3 Report immediately to ENGINEER upon the occurrence of any accident.

Payment Requisitions: Review applications for payment with contractor for compliance
with the established procedure for their submission and forward them with
recommendations to ENGINEER, noting particularly their relation to the schedule of
values, work completed and materials and equipment delivered at the site but not

incorporated in the work.

Certificates, Maintenance and Operating Manuals: During the course of the work, verify
that certificates, maintenance and operation manuals and other data required to be
assembled and furnished by contractor are applicable to the items actually installed; and
deliver this material to ENGINEER for his review and forwarding to OWNER prior to

final acceptance of the work.

Completion:

1) Before ENGINEER issues a Statement of Substantial Completion, submit to

contractor a list of observed items requiring completion or correction.

18



(2 Conduct final review in the company of ENGINEER, OWNER and contractor
and prepare a final list of items to be completed or corrected.

3) Verify that all items on final list have been completed or corrected and make

recommendations to ENGINEER concerning acceptance.
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neering Enterprises, Inc. EXHIBIT 3
ESTIMATE OF LEVEL OF EFFORT AND ASSOCIATED COST FOR
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR
2017 SANITARY SEWER LINING PROGRAM
United City of Yorkville, IL
November 23, 2016

ENTITY:| ENGINEERING SURVEYING DRAFTING ADMIN. WORK

PRINCIPAL SENIOR SENIOR SENIOR ITEM COosT

WORK PROJECT ROLE:| IN PROJECT PROJECT PROJECT PROJECT PROJECT PROJECT CAD PROJECT HOUR PER

ITEM CHARGE MANAGER ENGINEER | ENGINEER MANAGER SURVEYORII TECHNICIAN MANAGER TECHNICIAN ADMIN. SUMM. ITEM

NO. |WORKITEM HOURLY RATE: $185 $180 $141 $129 $163 $150 $117 $163 $117 $78
2.1 |Project Management and Administration 4 - 4 - - - - - - 913 1,421
2.2 |Project Meetings 1 1 - - - - - - - - 2] 365
2.3 |Bid Package, Specifications and Estimates 4 - 28 - - - - 3 35]% 4,683
2.4 |Bidding and Contracting 1 2 - 4 - - - - - 2 9] s 1,217
Final Engineering Subtotal:| 3 11 - 36 - - - - 3 2 55]$ 7,686
CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING
3.1 |Contract Administration 2 6 6 1415 2,224
3.2 |Construction Layout and Record Drawings 1 113 180
3.3 |Observation and Documentation 4 45 49| $ 6,525
Construction Engineering Subtotal:| 2 11 - 51 - - - - - - 64| $ 8,929
PROJECT TOTA| 16,615
DIRECT EXPENSES LABOR SUMMARY
Printing = | $ 250 Engineering Expenses = | $ 16,108
Mileage=| $ 500 Surveying Expenses = | $ -

Material Testing= | $ - Drafting Expenses = | $ 351
Environmental Assessment = | $ - Administrative Expenses = | $ 156
DIRECT EXPENSES = | $ 750 TOTAL LABOR EXPENSES = | $ 16,615
TOTAL EXPENSES $ 17,365

2017 Sanitary Sewer Li I 3- Level of Effort sy



EXHIBIT 4

ANTICIPATED PROJECT SCHEDULE
2017 SANITARY SEWER LINING PROGRAM

UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, IL
November 23, 2016

FINAL DESIGN ENGINEERING

Project Management and Administration

WORK Year: 2016 2017
ITEM Month: December January February March April May June July August September
WORK ITEM Week Starting:

2.2 |Project Meetings

2.3 [Bid Package, Specifications and Estimates

Bidding and Contracting
UCTION ENGINEERING

Contract Administration

3.2 [Construction Layout and Record Drawings

3.3 [Observation and Documentation
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Exhibit 6

Standard Schedule of Charges

January 1,2016

EMPLOYEE DESIGNATION CLASSIFICATION HOURLY RATE
Senior Principal E-4 $190.00
Principal E-3 $185.00
Senior Project Manager E-2 $180.00
Project Manager E-1 $163.00
Senior Project Engineer/Planner/Surveyor Il P-6 $150.00
Senior Project Engineer/Planner/Surveyor | P-5 $141.00
Project Engineer/Planner/Surveyor P-4 $129.00
Senior Engineer/Planner/Surveyor P-3 $117.00
Engineer/Planner/Surveyor P-2 $108.00
Associate Engineer/Planner/Surveyor P-1 $ 97.00
Senior Project Technician |l T-6 $141.00
Senior Project Technician | T-5 $129.00
Project Technician T-4 $117.00
Senior Technician T-3 $108.00
Technician T-2 $ 97.00
Associate Technician T-1 $ 84.00
Engineering/Land Surveying Intern -1 $ 80.00
GIS Technician G-1 $ 65.00
Administrative Assistant A-3 $ 78.00

CREW RATES, VEHICLES AND REPROGRAPHICS

1 Man Field Crew with Standard Survey Equipment $153.00
2 Man Field Crew with Standard Survey Equipment $240.00
1 Man Field Crew with RTS or GPS * $190.00
2 Man Field Crew with RTS or GPS * $276.00
Vehicle for Construction Observation $15.00
In-House Scanning and Reproduction $0.25/5q. Ft. (Black & White)

$1.00/Sq. Ft. (Color)

*RTS = Robotic Total Station / GPS = Global Positioning System

52 Wheeler Road, Sugar Grove, IL 60554 ~ (630) 466-6700 tel ~ (630) 466-6701 fax ~ www.eeiweb.com
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Memorandum

To: City Council
From: Bart Olson, City Administrator
CC:

Date: December 15, 2016
Subject: 2017 Sanitary Sewer Lining Program engineering agreement

Summary

Approval of an engineering agreement with EEI for design and construction engineering of the
2017 sanitary sewer lining program.

Background

The City adopted the 2017 Road to Better Road program map at the last City Council meeting.
This engineering agreement would authorize EEI to design and monitor the construction of the 2017
sanitary sewer lining program. Funding for the contract is included within the FY 17 budget. The
agreement is set at $7,700 for design engineering and estimate of $8,299 for construction monitoring.
The map of the area set to receive lining is attached, and generally occurs in the neighborhood bound by
the Fox River, Route 47 and Route 126.

Recommendation

Staff recommends approval of the attached engineering agreement with EEI.



Reviewed By: Agenda Item Number

Legal
Finance

NB #5

Engineer

City Administrator
Human Resources
Community Development
Police

Tracking Number

PW 2016-82

Public Works
Parks and Recreation

] |

Agenda Item Summary Memo

Title: West Washington Street Water Main Replacement Engineering Agreement

Meeting and Date: Public Works Committee — December 20, 2016

Synopsis:  See attached.

Council Action Previously Taken:

Date of Action: Action Taken:

Item Number:

Type of Vote Required: Majority

Council Action Requested: Approval

Submitted by: Bart Olson Administration

Name Department

Agenda Item Notes:

Have a question or comment about this agenda item?

Call us Monday-Friday, 8:00am to 4:30pm at 630-553-4350, email us at agendas@yorkville.il.us, post at www.facebook.com/CityofYorkville,
tweet us at @CityofYorkville, and/or contact any of your elected officials at http://www.yorkville.il.us/320/City-Council




West Washington Street Water Main Replacement
United City of Yorkville, Kendall County, IL
Professional Services Agreement - Design and Construction Engineering

THIS AGREEMENT, by and between the United City of Yorkville, hereinafter referred
to as the "City" or “OWNER” and Engineering Enterprises, Inc. hereinafter referred to as
the "Contractor” or “ENGINEER” agrees as follows:

A. Services:

ENGINEER agrees to furnish to the City the following services: The ENGINEER shall
provide any and all necessary engineering services to the City as indicated on the
included exhibits.  Design and Construction engineering will be provided for
approximately 910 linear feet of 8-inch water main improvements on West Washington
Street (see Exhibit 5 for project limits). Engineering will be in accordance with all City,
Standard Specifications for Water and Sewer Construction in Illinois, Illinois Department
of Transportation, and Illinois Environmental Protection Agency requirements.

B. Term:

Services will be provided beginning on the date of execution of this agreement and
continuing, until terminated by either party upon 7 days written notice to the non-
terminating party or upon completion of the Services. Upon termination the ENGINEER
shall be compensated for all work performed for the City prior to termination.

C. Compensation and maximum amounts due to ENGINEER:

ENGINEER shall receive as compensation for all work and services to be performed
herein, an amount based on the Estimate of Level of Effort and Associated Cost included
in Exhibit 3. Design Engineering will be paid for as a Fixed Fee (FF) in the amount of
$19,600 and Construction Engineering will be paid for Hourly (HR) at the actual rates for
services to be performed, currently estimated at $19,541. Direct expenses are estimated at
$1,425. The hourly rates for this project are shown in the attached 2016 Standard
Schedule of Charges (Exhibit 6). All payments will be made according to the Illinois
State Prompt Payment Act and not less than once every thirty days.

D. Changes in Rates of Compensation:

In the event that this contract is designated in Section B hereof as an Ongoing Contract,
ENGINEER, on or before February 1st of any given year, shall provide written notice of
any change in the rates specified in Section C hereof (or on any attachments hereto) and
said changes shall only be effective on and after May 1st of that same year.



West Washington Street Water Main Replacement
United City of Yorkville

Professional Services Agreement

Design and Construction Engineering

E. Ownership of Records and Documents:

ENGINEER agrees that all books and records and other recorded information developed
specifically in connection with this agreement shall remain the property of the City.
ENGINEER agrees to keep such information confidential and not to disclose or
disseminate the information to third parties without the consent of the City. This
confidentiality shall not apply to material or information, which would otherwise be
subject to public disclosure through the freedom of information act or if already
previously disclosed by a third party. Upon termination of this agreement, ENGINEER
agrees to return all such materials to the City. The City agrees not to modify any original
documents produced by ENGINEER without contractors consent. Modifications of any
signed duplicate original document not authorized by ENGINEER will be at OWNER’s
sole risk and without legal liability to the ENGINEER. Use of any incomplete, unsigned
document will, likewise, be at the OWNER’s sole risk and without legal liability to the
ENGINEER.

F. Governing Law:

This contract shall be governed and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Illinois. Venue shall be in Kendall County, Illinois.

G. Independent Contractor:

ENGINEER shall have sole control over the manner and means of providing the work
and services performed under this agreement. The City’s relationship to the ENGINEER
under this agreement shall be that of an independent contractor. ENGINEER will not be
considered an employee to the City for any purpose.

H. Certifications:

Employment Status: The Contractor certifies that if any of its personnel are an employee
of the State of Illinois, they have permission from their employer to perform the service.

Anti-Bribery : The Contractor certifies it is not barred under 30 Illinois Compiled
Statutes 500/50-5(a) - (d) from contracting as a result of a conviction for or admission of
bribery or attempted bribery of an officer or employee of the State of Illinois or any
other state.

Loan Default: If the Contractor is an individual, the Contractor certifies that he/she is not
in default for a period of six months or more in an amount of $600 or more on the
repayment of any educational loan guaranteed by the Illinois State Scholarship
Commission made by an Illinois institution of higher education or any other loan made
from public funds for the purpose of financing higher education (5 ILCS 385/3).



West Washington Street Water Main Replacement
United City of Yorkville

Professional Services Agreement

Design and Construction Engineering

Felony Certification: The Contractor certifies that it is not barred pursuant to 30 Illinois
Compiled Statutes 500/50-10 from conducting business with the State of Illinois or any
agency as a result of being convicted of a felony.

Barred from Contracting : The Contractor certifies that it has not been barred from
contracting as a result of a conviction for bid-rigging or bid rotating under 720 Illinois
Compiled Statutes 5/33E or similar law of another state.

Drug Free Workplace: The Contractor certifies that it is in compliance with the Drug
Free Workplace Act (30 Illinois Compiled Statutes 580) as of the effective date of this
contract. The Drug Free Workplace Act requires, in part, that Contractors, with 25 or
more employees certify and agree to take steps to ensure a drug free workplace by
informing employees of the dangers of drug abuse, of the availability of any treatment or
assistance program, of prohibited activities and of sanctions that will be imposed for
violations; and that individuals with contracts certify that they will not engage in the
manufacture, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance in
the performance of the contract.

Non-Discrimination, Certification, and Equal Employment Opportunity : The Contractor
agrees to comply with applicable provisions of the Illinois Human Rights Act (775
Illinois Compiled Statutes 5), the U.S. Civil Rights Act, the Americans with Disabilities
Act, Section 504 of the U.S. Rehabilitation Act and the rules applicable to each. The
equal opportunity clause of Section 750.10 of the Illinois Department of Human Rights
Rules is specifically incorporated herein. The Contractor shall comply with Executive
Order 11246, entitled Equal Employment Opportunity, as amended by Executive Order
11375, and as supplemented by U.S. Department of Labor regulations (41 C.F.R. Chapter
60). The Contractor agrees to incorporate this clause into all subcontracts under this
Contract.

International Boycott: The Contractor certifies that neither it nor any substantially owned
affiliated company is participating or shall participate in an international boycott in
violation of the provisions of the U.S. Export Administration Act of 1979 or the
regulations of the U.S. Department of Commerce promulgated under that Act (30 ILCS
582).

Record Retention and Audits: If 30 Illinois Compiled Statutes 500/20-65 requires the
Contractor (and any subcontractors) to maintain, for a period of 3 years after the later of
the date of completion of this Contract or the date of final payment under the Contract, all
books and records relating to the performance of the Contract and necessary to support
amounts charged to the City under the Contract. The Contract and all books and records
related to the Contract shall be available for review and audit by the City and the Illinois
Auditor General. If this Contract is funded from contract/grant funds provided by the
U.S. Government, the Contract, books, and records shall be available for review and
audit by the Comptroller General of the U.S. and/or the Inspector General of the federal



West Washington Street Water Main Replacement
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Professional Services Agreement
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sponsoring agency. The Contractor agrees to cooperate fully with any audit and to
provide full access to all relevant materials.

United States Resident Certification: (This certification must be included in all contracts
involving personal services by non-resident aliens and foreign entities in accordance with
requirements imposed by the Internal Revenue Services for withholding and reporting
federal income taxes.) The Contractor certifies that he/she is a: x_ United States Citizen
___Resident Alien __ Non-Resident Alien The Internal Revenue Service requires that
taxes be withheld on payments made to non resident aliens for the performance of
personal services at the rate of 30%.

Tax Payer Certification : Under penalties of perjury, the Contractor certifies that its
Federal Tax Payer ldentification Number or Social Security Number is (provided

separately) and is doing business as a (check one): _ Individual __ Real Estate
Agent __ Sole Proprietorship _ Government Entity =~ Partnership _ Tax
Exempt Organization (IRC 501(a) only) x Corporation ___ Not for Profit Corporation
____Trustor Estate _ Medical and Health Care Services Provider Corp.

I. Indemnification:

ENGINEER shall indemnify and hold harmless the City and City’s agents, servants, and
employees against all loss, damage, and expense which it may sustain or for which it will
become liable on account of injury to or death of persons, or on account of damage to or
destruction of property resulting from the performance of work under this agreement by
ENGINEER or its Subcontractors, or due to or arising in any manner from the wrongful
act or negligence of ENGINEER or its Subcontractors of any employee of any of them.
In the event that the either party shall bring any suit, cause of action or counterclaim
against the other party, the non-prevailing party shall pay to the prevailing party the cost
and expenses incurred to answer and/or defend such action, including reasonable attorney
fees and court costs. In no event shall the either party indemnify any other party for the
consequences of that party’s negligence, including failure to follow the ENGINEER’s
recommendations.

J. Insurance :

The ENGINEER agrees that it has either attached a copy of all required insurance
certificates or that said insurance is not required due to the nature and extent of the types
of services rendered hereunder. (Not applicable as having been previously supplied)

K. Additional Terms or Modification:

The terms of this agreement shall be further modified as provided on the attachments.
Except for those terms included on the attachments, no additional terms are included as a
part of this agreement. All prior understandings and agreements between the parties are
merged into this agreement, and this agreement may not be modified orally or in any



West Washington Street Water Main Replacement
United City of Yorkville

Professional Services Agreement
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manner other than by an agreement in writing signed by both parties. In the event that
any provisions of this agreement shall be held to be invalid or unenforceable, the
remaining provisions shall be valid and binding on the parties. The list of exhibits is as
follows:

Exhibit 1: Professional Engineering Services

Exhibit 2: Limitation of Authority, Duties and Responsibilities of the
Resident Construction Observer

Exhibit 3: Estimate of Level of Effort and Associated Cost

Exhibit4:  Anticipated Project Schedule

Exhibit 5: Location Map

Exhibit 6: 2016 Standard Schedule of Charges

L. Notices:

All notices required to be given under the terms of this agreement shall be given mail,
addressed to the parties as follows:

For the City: For the ENGINEER:

City Administrator and City Clerk Engineering Enterprises, Inc.
United City of Yorkville 52 Wheeler Road

800 Game Farm Road Sugar Grove Illinois 60554

Yorkville, IL 60560

Either of the parties may designate in writing from time to time substitute addresses or
persons in connection with required notices.

Agreed to this day of , 2016.
United City of Yorkville: Engineering Enterprises, Inc.:
Gary Golinski Brad Sanderson, P.E.
Mayor Vice President
Beth Warren Angie Smith

City Clerk Executive Assistant



EXHIBIT 1

SECTION A - PROFESSIONAL DESIGN ENGINEERING SERVICES

For purposes of this Exhibit 1 and all attachments hereto, the term “contractor” shall not refer to
Engineering Enterprises, Inc., but shall instead refer to individuals or companies contracted with, to
construct or otherwise manage the project described herein. The ENGINEER shall furnish professional

design engineering services as follows:

1. The ENGINEER will attend conferences with the OWNER, or other interested parties as may be

reasonably necessary.

2. The ENGINEER will perform the necessary design surveys, accomplish the detailed design of
the project, prepare construction drawings, specifications and contract documents, and prepare a
final cost estimate based on final design for the entire system. It is also understood that if
subsurface explorations (such as borings, soil tests, rock soundings and the like) are required, the
ENGINEER will furnish coordination of said explorations without additional charge, but the
costs incident to such explorations shall be paid for by the OWNER as set out in Section D

hereof.

3. The contract documents furnished by the ENGINEER under Section A-2 shall utilize IEPA
endorsed construction contract documents, including Supplemental General Conditions, Contract

Change Orders, and partial payment estimates.

4. Prior to the advertisement for bids, the ENGINEER will provide for each construction contract,
not to exceed 10 copies of detailed drawings, specifications, and contract documents for use by
the OWNER, appropriate Federal, State, and local agencies from whom approval of the project
must be obtained. The cost of such drawings, specifications, and contract documents shall be
included in the basic compensation paid to the ENGINEER.

5. The ENGINEER will furnish additional copies of the drawings, specifications and contract
documents as required by prospective bidders, material suppliers, and other interested parties,
but may charge them for the reasonable cost of such copies. Upon award of each contract, the



ENGINEER will furnish to the OWNER five sets of the drawings, specifications and contract
documents for execution. The cost of these sets shall be included in the basic compensation paid
to the ENGINEER. Original documents, survey notes, tracings, and the like, except those
furnished to the ENGINEER by the OWNER, are and shall remain the property of the
ENGINEER.

The drawings prepared by the ENGINEER under the provisions of Section A-2 above shall be in
sufficient detail to permit the actual location of the proposed improvements on the ground. The
ENGINEER shall prepare and furnish to the OWNER without any additional compensation,
three copies of map(s) showing the general location of needed construction easements and
permanent easements and the land to be acquired. Property surveys, property plats, property
descriptions, abstracting and negotiations for land rights shall be accomplished by the OWNER,
unless the OWNER requests, and the ENGINEER agrees to provide those services. In the event
the ENGINEER is requested to provide such services, the ENGINEER shall be additionally

compensated as set out in Section D hereof.

The ENGINEER will attend the bid opening and tabulate the bid proposal, make an analysis of

the bids, and make recommendations for awarding contracts for construction.

The ENGINEER further agrees to obtain and maintain, at the ENGINEER’s expense, such
insurance as will protect the ENGINEER from claims under the Workman’s Compensation Act
and such comprehensive general liability insurance as will protect the OWNER and the
ENGINEER from all claims for bodily injury, death, or property damage which may arise from
the performance by the ENGINEER or by the ENGINEER’s employees of the ENGINEER’s

functions and services required under this Agreement.

The ENGINEER will complete the final plans, specifications and contract documents and submit
for approval of the OWNER, and all State regulatory agencies to meet the project schedule(s) as
summarized in Exhibit 4: “Anticipated Project Schedule — West Washington Street Water Main
Replacement” dated November 23, 2016.



SECTION B - PROFESSIONAL CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING SERVICES

The ENGINEER shall furnish professional construction engineering services as follows:

The ENGINEER will review, for conformance with the design concept, shop and working
drawings required by the construction Contract Documents and indicate on the drawings the

action taken. Such action shall be taken with reasonable promptness.

The ENGINEER will interpret the intent of the drawings and specifications to protect the
OWNER against defects and deficiencies in construction on the part of the contractors. The

ENGINEER will not, however, guarantee the performance by any contractor.

The ENGINEER will evaluate and determine acceptability of substitute materials and equipment

proposed by Contractor(s).

The ENGINEER will establish baselines for locating the work together with a suitable number of
bench marks adjacent to the work as shown in the contract documents.

The ENGINEER will provide general engineering review of the work of the contractor(s) as

construction progresses to ascertain that the contactor is conforming to the design concept.

@ ENGINEER shall have authority, as the OWNER’s representative, to require special
inspection of or testing of the work, and shall receive and review all certificates of
inspections, testing and approvals required by laws, rules, regulations, ordinances, codes,
orders or the Contract Documents (but only to determine generally that their content
complies with requirements of, and the results certified indicate compliance with, the

Contract Documents).

(b) During such engineering review, ENGINEER shall have the authority, as the OWNER’s
representative, to disapprove of or reject contractor(s)” work while it is in progress if
ENGINEER believes that such work will not produce a completed Project that conforms
generally to the Contract Documents or that it will prejudice the integrity of the design
concept of the Project as reflected in the Contract Documents.



The ENGINEER will provide resident construction observation. Resident construction
observation shall consist of visual inspection of materials, equipment, or construction work for
the purpose of ascertaining that the work is in substantial conformance with the contract
documents and with the design intent. Such observation shall not be relied upon by others as
acceptance of the work. The ENGINEER’s undertaking hereunder shall not relieve the
contractor of contractor’s obligation to perform the work in conformity with the drawings and
specifications and in a workmanlike manner; shall not make the ENGINEER an insurer of the
contractor’s performance; and shall not impose upon the ENGINEER any obligation to see that
the work is performed in a safe manner. Exhibit 2 - The Limitations of Authority, Duties and

Responsibilities of the Resident Construction Observer is attached to this Agreement.

The ENGINEER will cooperate and work closely with representatives of the OWNER.

Based on the ENGINEER’s on-site observations as an experienced and qualified design
professional, on information provided by the Resident Construction Observer, and upon review
of applications for payment with the accompanying data and schedules by the contractor, the
ENGINEER:

@) Shall determine the amounts owing to contractor(s) and recommend in writing payments
to contractor(s) in such amounts. Such recommendations of payment will constitute a
representation to OWNER, based on such observations and review, that the work has
progressed to the point indicated, and that, to the best of the ENGINEER’s knowledge,
information and belief, the quality of such work is generally in accordance with the
Contract Documents (subject to an evaluation of such work as a functioning whole prior
to or upon substantial completion, to the results of any subsequent tests called for in the

Contract Documents, and to any other qualifications stated in the recommendation).

(b) By recommending any payment, ENGINEER will not hereby be deemed to have
represented that exhaustive, continuous or detailed reviews or examinations have been
made by ENGINEER to check the quality or quantity of contractor(s)’ work as it is
furnished and performed beyond the responsibilities specifically assigned to ENGINEER
in the Agreement and the Contract Documents. ENGINEER’s review of contractor(s)’
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11.

12.

13.

work for the purposes of recommending payments will not impose on Engineer
responsibility to supervise, direct or control such work or for the means, methods,
techniques, sequences, or procedures of construction or safety precautions or programs
incident thereto or contractor(s) compliance with laws, rules, regulations, ordinances,
codes or orders applicable to their furnishing and performing the work. It will also not
impose responsibility on ENGINEER to make any examination to ascertain how or for
what purposes any contractor has used the moneys paid on account of the Contract Price,
or to determine that title to any of the work, materials equipment has passed to OWNER
free and clear of any lien, claims, security interests, or encumbrances, or that there may
not be other matters at issue between OWNER and contractor that might affect the

amount that should be paid.

The ENGINEER will prepare necessary contract change orders for approval of the OWNER, and

others on a timely basis.

The ENGINEER will make a final review prior to the issuance of the statement of substantial
completion of all construction and submit a written report to the OWNER. Prior to submitting
the final pay estimate, the ENGINEER shall submit the statement of completion to and obtain the
written acceptance of the facility from the OWNER.

The ENGINEER will provide the OWNER with one set of reproducible record (as-built)
drawings, and two sets of prints at no additional cost to the OWNER. Such drawings will be
based upon construction records provided by the contractor during construction and reviewed by
the resident construction observer and from the resident construction observer’s construction
data.

If State Statutes require notices and advertisements of final payment, the ENGINEER shall assist

in their preparation.

The ENGINEER will be available to furnish engineering services and consultations necessary to
correct unforeseen project operation difficulties for a period of one year after the date of
statement of substantial completion of the facility. This service will include instruction of the
OWNER in initial project operation and maintenance but will not include supervision of normal
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15.

operation of the system. Such consultation and advice shall be at the hourly rates as described in
the attached Exhibit 6: Standard Schedule of Charges dated January 1, 2016. The ENGINEER
will assist the OWNER in performing a review of the project during the 11th month after the
date of the certificate of substantial completion.

The ENGINEER further agrees to obtain and maintain, at the ENGINEER’s expense, such
insurance as will protect the ENGINEER from claims under the Workman’s Compensation Act
and such comprehensive general liability insurance as will protect the OWNER and the
ENGINEER from all claims for bodily injury, death, or property damage which may arise from
the performance by the ENGINEER or by the ENGINEER’s employees of the ENGINEER’s

functions and services required under this Agreement.

The ENGINEER will provide construction engineering services in accordance with the periods
summarized in Exhibit 4: “Anticipated Project Schedule — West Washington Street Water Main
Replacement” dated November 23, 2016.

If the above is not accomplished within the time period specified, this Agreement may be terminated by
the OWNER. The time for completion may be extended by the OWNER for a reasonable time if

completion is delayed due to unforeseeable cases beyond the control and without the fault or negligence

of the ENGINEER. Pursuant to Paragraph D “Changes in Rates of Compensation”, the contract shall be

designated on-going consistent with the project schedule.



SECTION C - COMPENSATION FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES

The OWNER shall compensate the ENGINEER for professional design engineering services in
the amount of Nineteen Thousand Six Hundred Dollars — Fixed Fee (FF) ($19,600 FF) as
summarized on Exhibit 3: “Estimate of Level of Effort and Associated Cost for Professional
Engineering Services for West Washington Street Water Main Replacement” dated November
23, 2016.

@ The compensation for the professional design engineering services shall be payable as

follows:

(1) A sum which does not exceed ninety percent (90%) of the total compensation
payable under Section C-1 shall be paid in monthly increments for work actually
completed and invoiced, for grant administration and for the preparation and
submission to the OWNER and/or IEPA of the construction drawings,

specifications, cost estimates and contract documents.

2) A sum which, together with the compensation paid pursuant to Section C-1(a)(1)
above, equals one hundred percent (100%) of the total compensation due and
payable in accord with Section C-1 above, shall be due immediately after the
award of construction contract(s) is approved by the corporate authorities.

The OWNER shall compensate the ENGINEER for the construction administration, construction
staking, construction observation (including the Resident Construction Observer), and any
additional consultation and surveying services on the basis of Hourly Rates (HR) as described on
the attached Exhibit 6: Standard Schedule of Charges dated January 1, 2016. The estimated
values are included in Exhibit 3: “Estimate of Level of Effort and Associated Cost for
Professional Engineering Services for West Washington Street Water Main Replacement” dated
November 23, 2016 and are estimated at $19,541 Hourly (HR).

(@) The compensation for the construction administration, construction staking, construction
observation (including the Resident Construction Observer), and any additional

consultation and surveying services shall be payable as follows:



1) A sum which equals any charges for work actually completed and invoiced shall

be paid at least once per month.

The OWNER shall compensate the ENGINEER for direct expenses as identified in the contract

and as noted on Exhibit 3 at the actual cost or hourly cost for the work completed.

1) A sum which equals any charges for work actually completed and invoiced shall be paid
at least once per month.

The compensation for any additional engineering services authorized by the OWNER pursuant to

Section D shall be payable as follows:

@) A sum which equals any charges for work actually completed and invoiced shall be paid

at least once per month.



SECTION D - ADDITIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES

In addition to the foregoing being performed, the following services may be provided UPON PRIOR
WRITTEN AUTHORIZATION OF THE OWNER.

1.

10.

Site surveys outside of the project limits and other similar special surveys as may be required.

Laboratory tests, well tests, borings, specialized geological soils hydraulic, or other studies
recommended by the ENGINEER.

Property surveys, detailed description of sites, maps, drawings, or estimates related thereto;

assistance in negotiating for land and easement rights.

Necessary data and filing maps for litigation, such as condemnation.

Redesigns ordered by the OWNER after final plans have been accepted by the OWNER and
IEPA.

Appearances before courts or boards on matters of litigation or hearings related to the project.

Preparation of environmental impact assessments or environmental impact statements.

Making drawings from field measurements of existing facilities when required for planning

additions or alterations thereto.

Services due to changes in the scope of the Project or its design, including but not limited to,

changes in size, complexity, schedule or character of construction.

Revising studies or reports which have previously been approved by the OWNER, or when

revisions are due to cases beyond the control of the ENGINEER.
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Preparation of design documents for alternate bids where major changes require additional

documents.

Preparation of detailed renderings, exhibits or scale models for the Project.

Providing special analysis of the OWNER’s needs such as owning and operating analysis, plan
for operation and maintenance, OWNER’s special operating drawings or charts, and any other

similar analysis.

The preparation of feasibility studies, appraisals and evaluations, detailed quantity surveys of

material and labor, and material audits or inventories by the OWNER.

Additional or extended services during construction made necessary by (1) work damaged by
fire or other cause during construction, (2) defective or incomplete work of the contractor, and/or

(3) the contractor’s default on the Construction Contract due to delinquency or insolvency.

Providing design services relating to future facilities, systems and equipment which are not

intended to be constructed or operated as a part of the Project.

Providing other services not otherwise provided for in this Agreement, including services
normally furnished by the OWNER as described in Section E — SPECIAL PROVISIONS -

Owner’s Responsibilities.

Payment for the services specified in this Section E shall be as agreed in writing between the OWNER
and the ENGINEER prior to commencement of the work. The ENGINEER will render to OWNER for

such services an itemized bill, separate from any other billing, once each month, for compensation for

services performed hereunder during such period, the same to be due and payable by OWNER to the

ENGINEER on or before the 10th day of the following period. Payment for services noted in D shall be
at Actual Cost (AC), Fixed Fee (FF) or Hourly (HR).

10



SECTION E - SPECIAL PROVISIONS

OWNER’S RESPONSIBILITIES

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(@)

Provide to the ENGINEER all criteria, design and construction standards and full

information as to the OWNER’s requirements for the Project.

Designate a person authorized to act as the OWNER’s representative. The OWNER or
his representative shall receive and examine documents submitted by the ENGINEER,
interpret and define the OWNER’s policies and render decisions and authorizations in
writing promptly to prevent unreasonable delay in the progress of the ENGINEER’s

services.

Furnish laboratory tests, air and water pollution tests, reports and inspections of samples,
materials or other items required by law or by governmental authorities having

jurisdiction over this Project, or as recommended by the ENGINEER.

Provide legal, accounting, right-of-way acquisition and insurance counseling services
necessary for the Project, legal review of the construction Contract Documents, and such
auditing services as the OWNER may require to account for expenditures of sums paid to

the contractor.

Furnish above services at the OWNER’s expense and in such manner that the
ENGINEER may rely upon them in the performance of his services under this Agreement

and in accordance with the Project timetable.

Guarantee full and free access for the ENGINEER to enter upon all property required for

the performance of the ENGINEER’s services under this Agreement.
Give prompt written notice to the ENGINEER whenever the OWNER observes or

otherwise becomes aware of any defect in the Project or other event which may

substantially affect the ENGINEER’s performance of services under this Agreement.

11



(h) Protect and preserve all survey stakes and markers placed at the project site prior to the
assumption of this responsibility by the contractor and bear all costs of replacing stakes

or markers damaged or removed during said time interval.

Delegation of Duties - Neither the OWNER nor the ENGINEER shall delegate his duties under

this Agreement without the written consent of the other.

The ENGINEER has not been retained or compensated to provide design services relating to the
contractor’s safety precautions or to means, methods, techniques, sequences, or procedures
required by the contractor to perform his work but not relating to the final or completed
structure. Omitted services include but are not limited to shoring, scaffolding, underpinning,

temporary retainment of excavations and any erection methods and temporary bracing.

The ENGINEER intends to render his services under this Agreement in accordance with

generally accepted professional practices for the intended use of the Project.

Since the ENGINEER has no control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment or services
furnished by others, or over the contractor(s) methods of determining prices, or over competitive
bidding or market conditions, his opinions of probable Project Costs and Construction Costs
provided for herein are to be made on the basis of his experience and qualifications and represent
his best judgment as an experienced and qualified professional engineer, familiar with the
construction industry. The ENGINEER cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids or
actual project or construction cost will not vary from opinions of probable cost prepared by him.
If prior to the bidding or negotiating phase OWNER wishes greater assurance as to project or

construction costs he shall employ an independent cost-estimator.

Access to Records:
€)) The ENGINEER agrees to include subsections E-6(b) through E-6(¢) below in all

contracts and all subcontracts directly related to project services which are in excess of
$25,000.

12



(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

The ENGINEER shall maintain books, records, documents and other evidence directly
pertinent to performance of Agency loan work under this Agreement consistent with
generally accepted accounting standards in accordance with the American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants Professional Standards (666 Fifth Avenue, New York, New
York 10019; June 1, 1987). The Agency or any of its duly authorized representatives
shall have access to such books, records, documents and other evidence for the purpose
of inspection, audit and copying. The ENGINEER will provide facilities for such access

and inspection.

Audits conducted pursuant to this provision shall be in accordance with generally

accepted auditing standards.

The ENGINEER agrees to the disclosure of all information and reports resulting from
access to records pursuant to subsection E-6(b) above, to the Agency. Where the audit
concerns the ENGINEER, the auditing agency shall afford the ENGINEER an
opportunity for an audit exit conference and an opportunity to comment on the pertinent
portions of the draft audit report. The final audit report will include the written

comments, if any, of the audited parties.

Records under subsection E-6(b) above shall be maintained and made available during
performance on Agency loan work under this agreement and until three years from date
of final Agency loan audit for the project. In addition, those records which relate to any
“dispute” appeal under an Agency loan agreement, or litigation, or the settlement of
claims arising out of such performance, costs or items to which an audit exception has
been taken, shall be maintained and made available until three years after the date of

resolution of such appeal, litigation, claim or exception.

Covenant Against Contingent Fees - The ENGINEER warrants that no person or selling agency

has been employed or retained to solicit or secure this contract upon an agreement or

understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee, excepting bonafide

employees. For breach or violation of this warranty, the loan recipient shall have the right to

annul this agreement without liability or in its discretion to deduct from the contract price or

13



10.

11.

consideration or otherwise recover, the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage,

or contingent fee.

Covenant Against Contingent Fees - The loan recipient warrants that no person or agency has
been employed or retained to solicit or secure a PWSLP loan upon an agreement or
understanding for a commission, percentage, brokerage, or contingent fee. For breach or
violation of this warranty, the Agency shall have the right to annul the loan or to deduct from the
loan or otherwise recover, the full amount of such commission, percentage, brokerage, or

contingent fee.

Certification Regarding Debarment — The ENGINEER certifies that the services of anyone that
has been debarred or suspended under Federal Executive Order 12549 has not, and will not, be

used for work under this Agreement.

Affirmative Action — The ENGINEER agrees to take affirmative steps to assure that
disadvantaged business enterprises are utilized when possible as sources of supplies, equipment,
construction and services in accordance with the Clean Water Loan Program rules. As required
by the award conditions of USEPA's Assistance Agreement with IEPA, the ENGINEER
acknowledges that the fair share percentages are 5% for MBEs and 12% for WBEs.

The ENGINEER shall not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin or sex in the
performance of this contract. The contractor shall carry out applicable requirements of 40 CFR
Part 33 in the award and administration of contracts awarded under EPA financial assistance
agreements. Failure by the contractor to carry out these requirements is a material breach of this

contract which may result in the termination of this contract or other legally available remedies.

14



EXHIBIT 2

THE LIMITATIONS OF AUTHORITY, DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE RESIDENT
CONSTRUCTION OBSERVER ARE AS FOLLOWS:

The Resident Construction Observer shall act under the direct supervision of the ENGINEER,
shall be the ENGINEER’s agent in all matters relating to on-site construction review of the
contractor’s work, shall communicate only with the ENGINEER and the contractor (or
contractor’s), and shall communicate with subcontractors only through the contractor or his
authorized superintendent. The OWNER shall communicate with the Resident Construction
Observer only through the ENGINEER.

The Resident Construction Observer shall review and inspect on-site construction activities of
the contractor relating to portions of the Project designed and specified by the Engineer as

contained in the Construction Contract Documents.

Specifically omitted from the Resident Construction Observer’s duties is any review of the
contractor’s safety precautions, or the means, methods, sequences, or procedures required for the
contractor to perform the work but not relating to the final or completed Project. Omitted design
or review services include but are not limited to shoring, scaffolding, underpinning, temporary

retainment of excavations and any erection methods and temporary bracing.

The specific duties and responsibilities of the Resident Construction Observer are enumerated as

follows:

@) Schedules: Review the progress schedule, schedule of Shop Drawing submissions and
schedule of values prepared by contractor and consult with ENGINEER concerning their

acceptability.

(b) Conferences: Attend preconstruction conferences. Arrange a schedule of progress
meetings and other job conferences as required in consultation with ENGINEER and
notify those expected to attend in advance. Attend meetings and maintain and circulate
copies of minutes thereof.

15



(©)

(d)

(€)

Liaison:

1)

(2)

(3)

Serve as ENGINEER’s liaison with contractor, working principally through
contractor’s superintendent and assist him in understanding the intent of the

Contract Documents.

Assist ENGINEER in serving as OWNER’s liaison with contractor when
contractor’s operations affect OWNER’s on-site operations.

As requested by ENGINEER, assist in obtaining from OWNER additional details
or information, when required at the job site for proper erection of the work.

Shop Drawings and Samples:

(2)

3)

(3)

Receive and record date of receipt of Shop Drawings and samples.

Receive samples which are furnished at the site by contrctor, and notify

ENGINEER of their availability for examination.

Advise ENGINEER and contractor or its superintendent immediately of the
commencement of any work requiring a Shop Drawing or sample submission if

the submission has not been approved by ENGINEER.

Review of Work, Rejection of Defective Work, Inspections and Tests:

1)

()

Conduct on-site inspection of the work in progress to assist ENGINEER in
determining if the work is proceeding in accordance with the Contract Documents
and that completed work will conform to the Contract Documents.

Report to ENGINEER whenever he believes that any work is unsatisfactory,
faulty or defective or does not conform to the Contract Documents, or does not
meet the requirements of any inspections, test or approval required to be made or

16



(f)

(9)

(h)

(3)

(4)

has been damaged prior to final payment; and advise ENGINEER when he
believes work should be corrected or rejected or should be uncovered for

inspection, or requires special testing, inspection or approval.

Verify that tests, equipment and systems start-ups, and operating and maintenance
instructions are conducted as required by the Contract Documents and in presence
of the required personnel, and that contractor maintains adequate records thereof;
observe, record and report to ENGINEER appropriate details relative to the test
procedures and start-ups.

Accompany visiting inspectors representing public or other agencies having
jurisdiction over the Project, record the outcome of these inspections and report to
ENGINEER.

Interpretation of Contract Documents: Transmit to contractor ENGINEER’s clarifications

and interpretations of the Contract Documents.

Modifications: Consider and evaluate contractor’s suggestions for modifications in

Drawings or Specifications and report them with recommendations to ENGINEER.

Records:

1)

(2)

Maintain at the job site orderly files for correspondence, reports of job
conferences, Shop Drawings and samples submissions, reproductions of original
Contract Documents including all addenda, change orders, field orders, additional
drawings issued subsequent to the execution of the Contract, ENGINEER’s
clarifications and interpretations of the Contract Documents, progress reports, and

other Project related documents.
Keep a diary or log book, recording hours on the job site, weather conditions, data

relative to questions of extras or deductions, list of visiting officials and

representatives of manufacturers, fabricators, suppliers and distributors, daily

17



1)

(k)

0]

activities, decisions, observations in general and specific observations in more

detail as in the case of observing test procedures. Send copies to ENGINEER.

(4) Record names, addresses and telephone numbers of all contractor’s,

subcontractors and major suppliers of materials and equipment.

Reports:

1) Furnish ENGINEER periodic reports as required of progress of the work and
contractor’s compliance with the approved progress schedule and schedule of

Shop Drawing submissions.

2 Consult with ENGINEER in advance of schedule major tests, inspections or start

of important phases of the work.

3 Report immediately to ENGINEER upon the occurrence of any accident.

Payment Requisitions: Review applications for payment with contractor for compliance
with the established procedure for their submission and forward them with
recommendations to ENGINEER, noting particularly their relation to the schedule of
values, work completed and materials and equipment delivered at the site but not

incorporated in the work.

Certificates, Maintenance and Operating Manuals: During the course of the work, verify
that certificates, maintenance and operation manuals and other data required to be
assembled and furnished by contractor are applicable to the items actually installed; and
deliver this material to ENGINEER for his review and forwarding to OWNER prior to

final acceptance of the work.

Completion:

1) Before ENGINEER issues a Statement of Substantial Completion, submit to

contractor a list of observed items requiring completion or correction.

18



(2 Conduct final review in the company of ENGINEER, OWNER and contractor
and prepare a final list of items to be completed or corrected.

3) Verify that all items on final list have been completed or corrected and make

recommendations to ENGINEER concerning acceptance.
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EXHIBIT 3
ESTIMATE OF LEVEL OF EFFORT AND ASSOCIATED COST FOR
PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR
WEST WASHINGTON STREET WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT
United City of Yorkville, IL
November 23, 2016

ENTITY:| ENGINEERING SURVEYING DRAFTING ADMIN. WORK

PRINCIPAL SENIOR SENIOR SENIOR SENIOR ITEM COosT

WORK PROJECT ROLE:| IN PROJECT PROJECT PROJECT PROJECT PROJECT PROJECT CAD PROJECT HOUR PER

ITEM CHARGE MANAGER ENGINEER | ENGINEER MANAGER SURVEYORII TECHNICIAN MANAGER TECHNICIAN | ADMIN. SUMM. ITEM

NO. |WORKITEM HOURLY RATE: $185 $180 $141 $129 $163 $150 $117 $163 $129 $78
2.1 |Project Management and Administration 1 4 2 - - - - - - 713 1,187
2.2 |Project Meetings - 4 4 - - - - - - 8|s 1,284
2.3 |Topographic Survey - - - 8 8 - - - 16| $ 2,504
2.4 |Utility Coordination - 1 1 2 - - - - - 413 579
2.5 |Final Plans, Specifications and Estimates 1 8 22 14 - - - 34 - 85| 11,897
2.6 |Permitting - - 2 - - - - - - 2] 282
2.7 |Bidding and Contracting 2 8 - - - 5 15| $ 1,878
Final Engineering Subtotal: 2 19 39 16 8 8 - 34 5 137 | $ 19,611
CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING
3.1 |Contract Administration 2 12 8 - - - - - 22| % 3,658
3.2 |Construction Layout and Record Drawings - - 2 - 1 5 8 - - 16]$ 2,131
3.3 |Observation and Documentation 3 9 81 - - - - 2 95| $ 13,752
Construction Engineering Subtotal:| 5 21 91 - 1 5 8 = 2 133 | $ 19,541
PROJECT TOTA| 7 130 16 13 34 7 270 39,152
DIRECT EXPENSES LABOR SUMMARY

Printing =] $ 250 Engineering Expenses = | $ 28,889
Mileage = | $ 675 Surveying Expenses = | $ 4,353
Material Testing= | $ - Drafting Expenses = | $ 5,364
Environmental Assessment = | $ 500 Administrative Expenses = | $ 546
DIRECT EXPENSES = | $ 1,425 TOTAL LABOREXPENSES = | $ 39,152
TOTAL EXPENSES $ 40,577

West Washington Street Water Main

3- Level of Effort.




EXHIBIT 4
ANTICIPATED PROJECT SCHEDULE
WEST WASHINGTON STREET WATER MAIN REPLACEMENT
UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE, IL
November 23, 2016

WORK Year: 2016 2017
ITEM Month: November December January February March April May June July August
WORK ITEM Week Starting:

FINAL DESIGN ENGINEERING

Project Management and Administration
2.2 |Project Meetings

2.3 |Topographic Survey

2.4 |Utility Coordination

2.5 [Final Plans, Specifications and Estimates
2.6 [Permitting

Bidding and Contracting
CONSTRUCTION ENGINEERING

Contract Administration

3.2 [Construction Layout and Record Drawings
3.3 [Observation and Documentation

|_Storage\D 01629-P West g Street Water Main I( 4 - Schedul
1 Legend

Project Management & QC/QA Permitting
Meeting(s) Bidding and Contracting
Design Construction
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Exhibit 6

Standard Schedule of Charges

January 1,2016

EMPLOYEE DESIGNATION CLASSIFICATION HOURLY RATE
Senior Principal E-4 $190.00
Principal E-3 $185.00
Senior Project Manager E-2 $180.00
Project Manager E-1 $163.00
Senior Project Engineer/Planner/Surveyor Il P-6 $150.00
Senior Project Engineer/Planner/Surveyor | P-5 $141.00
Project Engineer/Planner/Surveyor P-4 $129.00
Senior Engineer/Planner/Surveyor P-3 $117.00
Engineer/Planner/Surveyor P-2 $108.00
Associate Engineer/Planner/Surveyor P-1 $ 97.00
Senior Project Technician |l T-6 $141.00
Senior Project Technician | T-5 $129.00
Project Technician T-4 $117.00
Senior Technician T-3 $108.00
Technician T-2 $ 97.00
Associate Technician T-1 $ 84.00
Engineering/Land Surveying Intern -1 $ 80.00
GIS Technician G-1 $ 65.00
Administrative Assistant A-3 $ 78.00

CREW RATES, VEHICLES AND REPROGRAPHICS

1 Man Field Crew with Standard Survey Equipment $153.00
2 Man Field Crew with Standard Survey Equipment $240.00
1 Man Field Crew with RTS or GPS * $190.00
2 Man Field Crew with RTS or GPS * $276.00
Vehicle for Construction Observation $15.00
In-House Scanning and Reproduction $0.25/5q. Ft. (Black & White)

$1.00/Sq. Ft. (Color)

*RTS = Robotic Total Station / GPS = Global Positioning System

52 Wheeler Road, Sugar Grove, IL 60554 ~ (630) 466-6700 tel ~ (630) 466-6701 fax ~ www.eeiweb.com
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Memorandum

To: City Council
From: Bart Olson, City Administrator
CC:

Date: December 15, 2016
Subject: West Washington Street Water Main Replacement engineering
agreement

Summary

Approval of an engineering agreement with EEI for design and construction engineering of the
West Washington Street water main replacement.

Background

The City adopted the 2017 Road to Better Road program map at the last City Council meeting.
This engineering agreement would authorize EEI to design and monitor the construction of the West
Washington Street water main replacement, which will be the largest component of Road to Better Road
expenditures within the FY 18 budget. Funding for the contract is included within the FY 17 budget.
The agreement is set at $19,600 for design engineering and estimate of $19,541 for construction
monitoring. The map of the area set to receive lining is attached.

Recommendation

Staff recommends approval of the attached engineering agreement with EEI.



Reviewed By: Agenda Item Number

Legal | [
Finance | [] NB #6
Engineer |
City Administrator | [l Tracking Number
Human Resources | []
Community Development | [] PW 2016-83
Police | []
Public Works | [l
Parks and Recreation | []
Agenda Item Summary Memo
Title: Hamman — USPS Water Main
Meeting and Date: Public Works Committee — December 20, 2016
Synopsis: Acceptance Consideration
Council Action Previously Taken:
Date of Action: Action Taken:
Item Number:
Type of Vote Required:
Council Action Requested: Consideration of Approval
Submitted by: Brad Sanderson Engineering
Name Department

Agenda Item Notes:

Have a question or comment about this agenda item?
Call us Monday-Friday, 8:00am to 4:30pm at 630-553-4350, email us at agendas@yorkville.il.us, post at www.facebook.com/CityofYorkville,

tweet us at @CityofYorkville, and/or contact any of your elected officials at http://www.yorkville.il.us/320/City-Council




Memorandum

To: Bart Olson, City Administrator
From: Brad Sanderson, EEI
CC: Eric Dhuse, Director of Public Works

Krysti Barksdale-Noble, Community Dev. Dir.
Lisa Pickering, Deputy City Clerk

Date: December 1, 2016
Subject: Hamman — USPS Water Main

The developer has requested that the City accept the public improvements within the project for
ownership and maintenance.

At this time all work related to the public improvements, including punch list work has been
completed.

Attached is the draft Bill of Sale for the development. We will forward the document to the
developer for execution. We recommend that the public improvements as described in the Bill
of Sale be accepted for ownership and maintenance by the City.

Normally with final acceptance, a performance guarantee (cash, LOC or bond) equal to 10% of
the original security value is to be on file with the City Clerk for a period of one year. Since the
improvements have been constructed and functional for quite some time, we are recommending
full release of the existing security ($3,774.09).

Upon City Council approval of the acceptance and the receipt of the executed Bill of Sale, the
existing security may then be released. If you have any questions or require additional
information, please call.



BILL OF SALE

Seller, , In consideration of One and 00/100th Dollar ($1.00), receipt
hereby acknowledged, does hereby sell, assign, transfer and convey to the Buyer, the United City
of Yorkville, an Illinois municipal corporation, at 800 Game Farm Road, Yorkville, Illinois
60560, the following personal property to wit described in Exhibit A attached hereto for the
development known as Hamman — USPS Watermain, and generally shown on Exhibit B.

Seller hereby represents and warrants to Buyer that Seller is the absolute owner of said
property, that said property is free and clear of all liens, charges and encumbrances, and that
Seller has full right, power, and authority to sell said property and to make this Bill of Sale.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Seller has signed and sealed this Bill of Sale at
, this day of , 20,

Subscribed and Sworn to
before me this day
of , 20,

Notary Public



EXHIBIT A
HAMMAN - USPS WATER MAIN
UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE

UTILITIES UNIT QUANTITY
WATER MAIN CONSTRUCTION
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Agenda Item Summary Memo

Title: Well No. 3 Update

Meeting and Date: Public Works Committee — December 20, 2016

Synopsis: Consideration of Abandoning the Well

Council Action Previously Taken:

Date of Action: Action Taken:

Item Number:

Type of Vote Required:

Council Action Requested: Consideration of Approval to Abandon Well

Submitted by: Brad Sanderson Engineering

Name Department

Agenda Item Notes:

Have a question or comment about this agenda item?
Call us Monday-Friday, 8:00am to 4:30pm at 630-553-4350, email us at agendas@yorkville.il.us, post at www.facebook.com/CityofYorkville,

tweet us at @CityofYorkville, and/or contact any of your elected officials at http://www.yorkville.il.us/320/City-Council




Memorandum

To: Bart Olson, City Administrator
From: Brad Sanderson, EEI
CC: Eric Dhuse, Director of Public Works

Lisa Pickering, Deputy City Clerk

Date: December 12, 2016
Subject: Well No. 3

The City Council at the August 23, 2016 meeting authorized Layne to pull the pump and motor and
televise the well. Layne has completed the work and has provided the well televising report. The purpose
of this memo is to provide comment on the report and to discuss long term options for Well No. 3.

Background:
Well No. 3 historically produces 600-650 gpm and is currently used as a back-up water source. It is also

known as a “sand pumper”. The volume of sand that is produced by the well is considered to be high and
is directly attributable to the more frequent rehabilitations of this well. A sand separator is utilized to
capture the sand from the well prior to entering the system. The separator in the past has had to be
replaced frequently when the well was more heavily used. By comparison, the City’s other wells produce
1,000 gpm each.

Well No. 3’s history is summarized below:
6 Past (Through Discussion With Tom Healy of Layne Western)

% 1960 Well Drilled; Utilized Westinghouse/US Motors

< 1972 Installed Rebuilt Byron Jackson Motor (BJ)

% 1983 Possible Well Rehabilitation (Records Not Clear)

s 1991 Well Development; Installed 175 HP BJ

<+ 1998 Motor OK; Bowls Worn Badly; Pump Rebuilt

& Recent Past (2004 — 2009)

< 2004 Motor Failure; Installed 200 HP rebuilt BJ motor; Corrosion of 16 Casing
evident

< 2008 Pump Pulled due to Motor Issue; Installed 150 HP BJ Rebuilt Motor;
Rebuilt Bowl Assembly;

< 2009 Pump Pulled; Bowl Assembly Badly Worn and was Rebuilt;

Well No. 3’s recent repair costs have been as follows:
é 2004 $89,234 > New 200 HP Type H Rebuilt BJ Motor; Replaced 9 Stage — 11 MQH
BJ Bowl Assembly
é 2008 $99,617 - New 150 HP 14” Type H Rebuilt BJ Motor; Rebuilt BJ Bowl
Assembly; 12 — 8” Line Pipe Segments Were Cut & Rethread; Replacement of 5
Couplings; Replacement of 8” Surge Valve
é 2009 $21,216 - Pump Rebuilt

Rehabilitation/Repair of the Well tends to be on a 4 — 7 Year Cycle.



Question Presented:
Should the City consider rehabilitating well and keep it part of the water system or should the City
consider abandoning the well?

Discussion:

The televising of the well indicates that the bottom of the casing is in poor condition. There are major
chunks of steel that have fully deteriorated away. A casing pipe in poor condition makes it difficult
(sometimes impossible) to install and pull equipment in and out of the well. Layne recommends
installing a new casing within the existing if this well were to be put back in service.

The installation of a new casing would require a new pump and motor as the existing components would
not fit within the new casing. Layne is estimating that the new casing, pump and motor and associated
labor could approach $200,000.

As noted above, Well No. 3 has been used minimally in the past several years. Per our needs assessment
calculations, a new well will be needed if we choose to abandon Well 3 as follows:
é Current Trends (CT) Water Use
«  With Well No. 3 Active: 2028 (12 Years)
«»  Without Well No. 3: 2023 (7 Years)

& Less Resource Intensive (LRI) Water Use
< With Well No. 3 Active: 2034 (18 Years)
«  Without Well No. 3: 2030 (14 Years)

As you know, per capita water use trends are generally going down. Therefore, it is probably a
reasonable assumption that we would need another well in 8 — 10 years.

Action Required:
Staff is recommending that the well be abandoned at this time for the following reasons:
1. Condition of the casing

2. High cost to make well usable

3. Rehabilitation history / sand pumping
4. Low production

5. Location

There are costs associated with abandoning the well. Layne has provided an estimate on the well alone.
They are summarized below:

Well Abandonment $35,500 - $38,500

Salvage Value of Misc. Equip. ($1,894) Credit

Pump and Motor Decommissioning $13,800 (Note Layne has offered to purchase; net cost could be
$0)

The costs to abandon the Well No. 3 building have not been determined at this time. This would be
addressed sometime in early 2017.

Staff is seeking support from the City Council to move forward with the Well No. 3 abandonment.



DOWNHOLE VIDEO
a ne o SURVEY REPORT

WATER - MINERAL + ENERGY

Date: 11/14/16

Client: UNITED CITY OF YORKVILLE

Project Number: 43179 Well No: 3 SW.L. 340

Location: DOWNTOWN, JUST WEST OF ROUTE 47

County: KENDALL City: YORKVILLE State: IL
Sec: Twp: Range:
DVD Made: Yes X No Well Back flushed NO

Original Well Description 16" CASING TO 430’; 15" HOLE: 430’ TO 725’;
12" LINER (SLOTTED): 725’ —811’; 12" HOLE: 811'TO 1335 TD.

Depth Description
340’ STATIC WATER LEVEL
725’ TOP OF 12" LINER (SOME PRIMACORD STUCK BEHIND TOP)
811 BOTTOM OF 12" LINER — SLOTS STILL IN GOOD CONDITION
1298’ TOTAL DEPTH >> 37’ of fill.

Additional Remarks and Recommendations

e 40’ TO 45 (+) - LOOSE PIPE SCALE

e 116’ TO 180’ () — SIGNIFICANT AMOUNT OF LOOSE PIPE SCALE

e 280’ TO 295’ (+£) - MODERATE AMOUNT OF LOOSE PIPE SCALE

e 305 — BROWNISH BUILDUP STARTS, WITH MASSIVE LOOSE PIPE SCALE

e 413 — POSSIBLE SMALL HOLES IN CASING

e 418 -2 LARGE HOLES IN CASING

e 419'TO 430’ (BOTTOM OF 16" CASING) — LARGE SPOTS OF STEEL ARE MISSING (TOP OF ST.
PETER SANDSTONE)

e 824'TO 934’ - HARD TO MEDIUM LIMESTONE VERY FRACTURED AND CREVICED

e 038 - VERY LARGE FRACTURE — SAND LAYING IN LEDGES

e 1143 TO 1147 — VERY LARGE FRACTURE — SAND LAYING IN LEDGES

e 1298 — TOTAL DEPTH (BOTTOM 100’ (+))OF OPEN HOLE QUITE IRREGULARLY SHAPED)

(Continued on Page 2)

WATER RESOURCES

721 W. lllinois Avenue; Aurora, IL 60506 | Office: 630-897-6941 | Fax: 630-897-6976 | layne.com




DOWNHOLE VIDEO
a ne o SURVEY REPORT

WATER - MINERAL + ENERGY

(Continued from Page 1)

= LARGE CREVICES/FRACTURES: 452’ - 508’ — 558’ — 575’ — 579’ — 817" — 824’ — 827’ — 834" TO
840" (VERTICAL) — 852’ TO 855’ (VERTICAL) - 868’ — 910’ — 912’ - 918’ (HUGE) — 934’ (HUGE) — 942’
-944’ - 1114’ - 1124’ - 1130’ - 1163' - 1168’ - 1176’ — 1178’ — 1183’ — 1194’ — 1199’ — 1204’ — 1218’
—1220’ - 1225’ — 1228’ — 1231’ — 1235’ — 1240’ — 1245’ — 1250’ — 1260’ — 1265’ — 1277 — 1281’ -
1286’ — 1296’

Technician JOHN GELTZ Account Manager MIKE MCDONALD
Project Manager | TOM HEALY Operations Review
WATER RESOURCES

721 W. lllinois Avenue; Aurora, IL 60506 | Office: 630-897-6941 | Fax: 630-897-6976 | layne.com
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721 W. ILLINOIS AVE. AURORA, IL 60506

630.897.6941 PHONE 630.897.6976 FAX

CLIENT: _Yorkville, IL

PROJECT.:._ Well No. 3 Abandonment
LAYNE PROJECT NO.

DATE: _November 30, 2016
ENGINEER: Thomas P. Healy. P.E.

Stratigraphic Column

Well Construction
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20" OD steel casing

Cement Grout
2016 SWL = 340’
16" OD steel casing

Cement Grout

Bentonite chips backfill from 450ft. to
2ft.

15" diameter borehole
Disinfected pea gravel 700’ to 450’

12" steel liner from 700’ to 811’

Bentonite Chips from 825’ to 700’

12" diameter borehole

Disinfected Pea Gravel 825’ to total
depth
Current Total Depth 1,298 feet

Note: Not to scale. All depths are
obtained from attached well construction
information.

Layne Christensen 721 W. lllinois Ave. Aurora, IL 60506 630.897.6941 ph 630.897.6976 fax




December 8, 2016

United City of Yorkville
c/o Brad Sanderson, P.E.
Engineering Enterprises
52 Wheeler Road

Sugar Grove, IL 60554

RE: United City of Yorkville
Well No. 3

Dear Brad:

Per our conference call, we are pleased to submit our proposal to properly abandon the City's Well
No. 3.

The proper abandonment of Well No. 3 would fall under the jurisdiction of the Kendall County Health
Department (KCHD) and must be performed by an lllinois Licensed Water Well Contractor. In a typical
well abandonment project, we would contact KCHD ahead of time to obtain their approval of our
proposed plugging procedure. For this estimate, we assume the following procedure would be suitable
to KCHD:

o Backfill with disinfected pea gravel from the existing depth of 1,298 feet to 825 feet, or just below
the bottom of the 12~ liner.

¢ Backfill the well with bentonite chips from 825 feet to 700 feet, the necessary plug to isolate the
St. Peter and Galesville sandstones.

o Backfill with disinfected pea gravel from 700 feet to approximately 450 feet, or 20 feet below the
16" well casing.

e Backfill from 450 feet to ground level with bentonite chips.
Prior to the commencement of the well abandonment work, KCHD would be contacted at least 48 hours
in advance so that they can witness all or part of the abandonment. Following the completion of the
work, Layne, as an lllinois Licensed Water Well Contractor, would fill out and submit the necessary
Water Well Sealing Form.

Based upon the above abandonment procedure, the total cost would be in the range of $35,500.00 to
$38,500.00.

As you know, the 150 HP Byron Jackson Type H submersible pump was pulled so that the television
survey could be performed. The pump is currently in storage in our Aurora, lllinois yard. Should the

WATER RESOURCES

721 W. lllinois Avenue; Aurora, IL 60506 | Office: 630-897-6941 | Fax: 630-897-6976 | layne.com



United City of Yorkville

c/o Brad Sanderson, P.E.
Engineering Enterprises, Inc.
December 8, 2016

Page 2

final decision be made to abandon Well No. 3, this pump would need to be disposed of properly since
it is smaller than any of the other city well pumps.

We have estimated needing 48,000 Ibs. of bentonite chips and 44 tons of disinfected pea gravel. For
more or less of these quantities, we would add or deduct $0.27/Ib. and $70.00/ton, respectively.

Due to the July, 2012 IEPA legislation concerning mercury seals in motors, the 150 HP Byron Jackson
submersible motor must be properly decommissioned. As the Byron Jackson dealer in northern lllinois,
Layne strongly recommends the use of Flowserve/Byron Jackson’s authorized decommissioning
subcontractor, Bethlehem Apparatus. Bethlehem Apparatus would receive the motor in its present
condition, completely disassemble the motor, and decommission all motor parts such that they can
attest to the fact that 99.9% of the mercury has been removed and disposed of properly. An official
certificate would be provided to the City to back up this documentation. Without this documentation,
the City would have no clue if the disposal was done properly, opening itself up for the possibility of
future repercussions.

Including the truck freight to Pennsylvania for this work, the total cost of the motor decommissioning
would be $13,800.00.

Since Layne would see some value in this motor for use in a possible temporary test pump installation
in the future, we could offer to completely credit this decommissioning cost if ownership of the motor is
turned over to Layne. We would not be able to provide any additional credits over and above the
savings in the decommissioning costs, since this motor cannot be resold.

If Layne were to be awarded the well abandonment project, we could also offer salvage value for the 8”
column pipe, power cable, and the 9 Stage — 11MQL Byron Jackson cast iron bowl assembly. Again,
there is very little resale value, so we are essentially talking about the scrap value for these components,
and/or used in possible test pump applications. From our best estimation, this would fall in the range
of $1,894.00 that would be applied as a credit to the well abandonment costs above.

We appreciate the opportunity to be able to provide these estimates. If you have any questions, please

don’t hesitate to give us a call.

Yours very truly,

dhomas cpP. dleag

Thomas P. Healy, P.E.
Manager of Projects
Layne Christensen Company

TPH/mcw
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Memorandum

To: City Council
From: Bart Olson, City Administrator
CC:

Date: December 15, 2016
Subject: Solid Waste RFP

Summary

Discussion of the proposals received for the City’s Solid Waste RFP.

Background

The city went out for Request for Proposal on October 3, 2016. Five proposals were received on
November 3, 2016 from Advanced Disposal, Environmental Recycling and Disposal Service, Groot,
Republic and Waste Management. A summary of the pricing results are attached. Two companies,
Advanced Disposal and Groot, submitted bids for services that are a significant savings (approximately
15%) over our current contract and for better service, and cheaper than Oswego’s contract extension.

The City’s current contract expires on April 30, 2017 and the current rate is $19.25. Advanced Disposal
bid a three-tier pricing structure outlining prices for a 33 gallon, 65 gallon and 96 gallon toter and Groot
did one-tier for all sizes of toters. Advanced Disposals 33 gallon price is $35 cheaper for a resident than
Groot’s over a five year period. Advanced Disposal’s 65 gallon price is $0.24 cheaper for a resident
than Groot’s over a five year period. Advanced Disposal’s 96 gallon price is $28 more expensive for a
resident than Groot’s over a five year period. Advanced Disposal included free composting in yard
waste bags during yard waste pickup season, but did not offer composting over the winter months.
Groot’s proposal was for year-round composting at a $10 fee per month. Groot approached the City
post-bid opening and offered to give the City tipping fees for refuse and recycling collected. This
amount was roughly $14,000 annually, but I did not consider it valid because it was not included in the
written submittal and it was submitted after the bid opening.

Recommendation

Staff recommends moving forward with a new contract with Advanced Disposal because they are
cheaper in aggregate (33 gal, 65 gal and 96 added together) and cheaper in two out of the three
individual categories. Additionally, the City would not have to go through a hauler transition. If the
Committee and the City Council agrees, staff would draft a contract for approval at a City Council
meeting in January.
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0 Advanced Disposal

November 3, 2016

City of Yorkville
800 Game Farm Road
Yorkville, IL 60560

Dear Yorkville City Council,

Advanced Disposal Services Solid Waste Midwest, LLC. (“Advanced Disposal”) is pleased to
submit the attached response to your Request for Proposal for Solid Waste Collection Services. I
am the Chief Operating Officer and I am authorized to sign and submit the attached RFP
response. I have also attached a Secretary’s Certificate for your reference. If requested, Bob
Pfister, Municipal Marketing Manager is available to meet with you or your representatives
concerning this RFP response. Bob’s contact information is listed below:

Bob Pfister

Municipal Marketing Manager

Advanced Disposal Services Solid Waste Midwest, LLC
1660 Hubbard Avenue

Batavia, Illinois 60510

Phone: (630) 313-1119

Fax: (630) 406-7784

Email: bob.pfister@advanceddisposal.com

We are strong stewards of the environment and work with our surrounding neighborhoods to
become part of the community. We view our services as vital infrastructure needs that all cities and
counties must be able to provide through public-private partnerships, contractual agreements, and
the like. Through this proposal process, we look forward to continuing to be the choice solid waste
provider for the City of Yorkville.

Thank you for your consideration of Advanced Disposal’s proposal for Solid Waste Collection
Services. Please see the following pages that address your proposal requirements and present
details on Advanced Disposal’s company profile and sound solutions for collection and disposal
programs.

I am confident that you will look favorably upon the response that we have provided. If after
reviewing our response, you have any questions or require any additional information, we would
be pleased to meet with you. Thank you for allowing Advanced Disposal the opportunity to
present this RFP response.

Chief Operating Officer

Solid Waste Collection Services for the City of Yorkville



0 Advanced Disposal

Company Profile

Advanced Disposal Services, Inc. and its subsidiaries, is the fourth largest environmental
services company in the U.S. We are a full-service, vertically integrated waste
management company, providing non-hazardous solid waste collection, recycling and
landfill disposal solutions to commercial, industrial, municipal and residential customers
throughout 16 states and the Bahamas. We pride ourselves on our strong partnerships
between our employees and the customers we serve. And we have a strong commitment
to personalized and friendly customer service

Community Commitment

No one understands the needs of a community better than those who live and work in it.
Our philosophy of decentralized operations allows our local teams to give back to their
communities in ways that best meet the needs of their communities. This location-specific
approach to good corporate citizenship results in an array of outreach programs,
contributions and support that serve and benefit thousands of people across the
Advanced Disposal footprint. It is our goal to hire within the communities we serve and
locally purchase supplies, equipment and fuel. We don't just sign a contract with a city,
county or municipality...we become a part of the community.

Forward Thinking

Advanced Disposal is deeply committed to ensuring a clean and safe environment for our
employees, our customers, and our communities. We consider environmental
stewardship of utmost importance and believe that our true business is making the world
a cleaner, more beautiful place to live, work and play.

We approach all of our operations with a keen eye on safety and environmental care. Our
landfills are built with state-of-the-art engineering designs and materials. We use extreme
caution when constructing these sites to ensure the integrity of the design and materials
are maintained. Daily operations are just as important as construction. Advanced
Disposal uses only state certified, experienced equipment operators and a certified landfill
operator is always on site when the facilities are accepting waste. We fully comply with
all local, state and federal regulations, and our sites are inspected annually at a minimum.
With 39 landfills to maintain, operate and potentially expand, we will always remain
vigilant to the protection of our natural environment while providing an integral
infrastructure asset for the safe and healthy disposal of the community’'s waste.

Environmental compliance is equally important in our collection operations. Advanced
Disposal operates a fleet of more than 3,100 trucks that must be operated and maintained
in an environmentally sound manner. Advanced Disposal follows all local, state and
federal regulations in regards to its operating fleet. The trucks are maintained nightly with
rotating schedules to make sure all parts of the truck are operating in a safe and proper
way. Only approved fuels are used including alternative fuels such as compressed
natural gas (CNG). Currently about twelve percent of our fleet runs on CNG, and we are

Solid Waste Collection Services for the City of Yorkville
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always looking for opportunities to grow that number. All waste generated in the
maintenance of our fleet are disposed of in a proper manner with the necessary
documentation of proper disposal.

In a business where the end results are clean and safe communities, Advanced Disposal
takes its environmental stewardship responsibilities very seriously. Our employees, our
neighbors and our families live in the communities we service. We believe it is our primary
job to ensure that these communities are clean, safe and healthy for many years to come.

Our Operations

We operate 90 collection facilities, 72 transfer stations, 39 MSW and C&D landfills, 21
material recycling facilities and 16 landfill gas-to-energy facilities. Our operations are
focused in 16 states including: Alabama, Florida, Georgia, lllinois, Indiana, Kentucky,
Louisiana, Maryland, Michigan, Minnesota, Missouri, North Carolina, Pennsylvania,
South Carolina, Tennessee, Wisconsin and the Bahamas.

Today, through the dedication of more than 5,400 employees, Advanced Disposal has a
fleet of more than 3,100 vehicles running routes on a daily basis. We service more than
2.5 million residential customers including more than 800 exclusive city and county
contracts.

Solid Waste Collection Services for the City of Yorkville




THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS

AIA Document A310
Bid Bond

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, THAT WE Advanced Disposal Services Solid Waste Midwest, LLC

1660 Hubbard Avenue, Batavia, IL 60510

as Principal, hereinafter called the Principal, and RLI Insurance Company

9025 N. Lindbergh Drive, Peoria, IL 61615

a corporation duly organized under the laws of the State of IL

as Surety, hereinafter called the Surety, are held and firmly bound unto  City of Yorkville
800 Game Farm Road, Yorkville, IL 60560

as Obligee, hereinafter called the Obligee, in the sum of  Five Thousand Dollars and 00/100

Dollars ($ $5,000 ),
for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made, the said Principal and the said Surety, bind ourselves, our heirs,
executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

WHEREAS, the Principal has submitted a bid for Solid Waste Collection Services

NOW, THEREFORE, if the Obligee shall accept the bid of the Principal and the Principal shall enter into a Contract with
the Obligee in accordance with the terms of such bid, and give such bond or bonds as may be specified in the bidding or
Contract Documents with good and sufficient surety for the faithful performance of such Contract and for the prompt
payment of labor and materials fumnished in the prosecution thereof, or in the event of the failure of the Principal to enter
such Contract and give such bond or bonds, if the Principal shall pay to the Obligee the difference not to exceed the
penalty hereof between the amount specified in said bid and such larger amount for which the Obligee may in good faith
contract with another party to perform the Work covered by said bid, then this obligation shall be null and void, otherwise

to remain in full force and effect.

Signed and sealed this 3rd day of November , 2016

Advanced Disposal Services Solid Waste Midwest, LLC

ﬂlﬂm 6%’1 UL rincipg) (Sedl)
CO0

(Witness)
(Title)
SRNCE E,
- of ST _apoma, %z RLIInsurance Company
sy o] T % (Surety) (Seal)
:LQRAL G S
Autumn Schneider (Witness) %z s F //]/ o
"’1" { """" ,\5 ‘ (‘ CJ{L’IM_H— (2'1."—1/{—4&.&._ =
KEH AL AN AﬁOf}f%ﬂ -Fact Janice Fennell (Title)

o . ~

AIA DOCUMENT A310 @ BID BOND @ AIA ® FEBRUARY 1970 ED. ® THE AMERICAN
INSTITUTE OF ARCHITECTS, 1735 N.Y. AVE,, NW., WASHINGTON, D.C. 20006




RLI Surety

9025 N. Lindbergh Dr. | Peoria, IL 61615
Phone: (800)645-2402 | Fax: (309)689-2036
www rlicorp.com

POWER OF ATTORNEY

RLI Insurance Company

RLI

Know All Men by These Presents:

That this Power of Attorney is not valid or in effect unless attached to the bond which it authorizes executed, but may be detached by the
approving officer if desired.

That RLI Insurance Company, an Illinois corporation, does hereby make, constitute and appoint:
Janice Fennell, Richard C. Rose, Jeremy C. Rose, Keri Ann Smith, Aiza Lopez. Aimee R. Perondine, Stacy Rivera, Jennifer M. Garten,
Joshua Sanford. jointly or severally

in the City of Knoxville , State of Tennessee its true and lawful Agent and Attorney in Fact, with full
power and authority hereby conferred, to sign, execute, acknowledge and deliver for and on its behalf as Surety, the following described

bond.
Any and all bonds provided the bond penalty does not exceed Twenty Five Million Dollars ($25,000,000.00).

The acknowledgment and execution of such bond by the said Attorney in Fact shall be as binding upon this Company as if such bond had been
executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected officers of this Company.

The RLI Insurance Company further certifies that the following is a true and exact copy of the Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors
of RLI Insurance Company, and now in force to-wit:

"All bonds, policies, undertakings, Powers of Attorney or other obligations of the corporation shall be executed in the corporate name of
the Company by the President, Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, Treasurer, or any Vice President, or by such other officers as the Board
) Directors may authorize. The President, any Vice President, Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, or the Treasurer may appoint
Attorneys in Fact or Agents who shall have authority to issue bonds, policies or undertakings in the name of the Company. The corporate
seal is not necessary for the validity of any bonds, policies, undertakings, Powers of Attorney or other obligations of the corporation. The
signature of any such officer and the corporate seal may be printed by facsimile."

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the RLI Insurance Company has caused these presents to be executed by its ___Vice President _ with its
corporate seal affixed this ___2nd day of __August ,__ 2016 .
%\P«m RLI Insurance Company
g“@ s :.9 ‘9:‘;" ,
537 cnvoner, % B AW Faom

. }‘“
iy

s,
s,
s

By:

Barton W. Davis Vice President

"] i LinosBe

N W
Arpantt

State of Illinois

}ss

County of Peoria

CERTIFICATE
On this __2nd _ day of __August , _ 2016 , before me, a Notary Public, I, the undersigned officer of RLI Insurance Company, a stock
personally appeared ___Barton W. Davis __, who being by me duly swom, corporation of the State of Illinois, do hereby certify that the attached

acknowledged that he signed the above Power of Attomey as the aforesaid
officer of the RLI Insurance Company and acknowledged said instrument to
be the voluntary act and deed of said corporation.

; 7775@2&

By: i
Notary Public

Jacquelpe M. Bockler

>

: m%(” “OFFICIAL SEAL”
;;;;‘;’;‘g:F JACQUELINE M. BOCKLER
ALINGIE ] COMMISSION EXPIRES 01/14/18

4133278020212

Power of Attorney is in full force and effect and is irrevocable; and
furthermore, that the Resolution of the Company as set forth in the
Power of Attorney, is now in force. In testimony whereof, I have

here nlu set my hand and the seal of the RLI Insurance Company
this day of NOVEMber . ﬁlﬂo_

RLI Insurance Company

Br w.F

Barton W. Davis

By:

Vice President

A0058514




RLI

RLI Insurance Company | Commercial Surety Division
2475 Northwinds Parkway, Suite 300 | Alpharenta, GA 30004
Phone: 770-734-0100 | Fax: 770-576-3974

November 3, 2016
City of Yorkville

800 Game Farm Road
Yorkville, IL 60560

RE: Solid Waste Collection Services

To Whom It May Concern:

wiwiw.r:liiicioir p.c.oim:

Thus 1s to advise you that RLI Insurance Company, (“RLI"), provides suretyship on behalf of Advanced
Disposal Services Solid Waste Midwest, LLC. RLI is licensed in all fifty states, A+ (superior) rated by

AM. Best, Class X1, and U.S. Department of Treasury listed.

It is the intent of RLI Insurance Company to provide the required performance and payment bonds. It
is understood that any arrangement for a performance and/or payment bond is a matter between
Advanced Disposal Services Solid Waste Midwest, LLC and RLI, as Surety, and will be subject to
RLI’s standard underwriting conditions at the time of any performance and/or payment bond request.
We value our relationship with Advanced Disposal Services Solid Waste Midwest, LLC and have the

utmost confidence in their ability.

If you have any questions or need any further assistance, please feel free to contact our office at

(865-588-8101) and ask for the individual listed below. Thank you.

RLI Insurance Company

I

Jarhiee Fennell, Atrorney-in-Fact

CEIUINDAME N TIAIL LY

1Nnnovattv



9025 N. Lindbergh Dr. | Peoria, IL 61615
Phone: (800)645-2402 | Fax: (309)689-2036 RLI Insurance Comp any

www.rlicorp.com

RLI“’ RLI Surcty POWER OF ATTORNEY

Know All Men by These Presents:

That this Power of Attorney is not valid or in effect unless attached to the bond which it authorizes executed, but may be detached by the
approving officer if desired.

That RLI Insurance Company, an Illinois corporation, does hereby make, constitute and appoint:
Janice Fennell, Richard C. Rose, Jeremy C. Rose, Keri Ann Smith, Aiza Lopez, Aimee R. Perondine, Stacy Rivera, Jennifer M. Garten
Joshua Sanford. jointly or severally

in the City of Knoxville , State of Tennessee its true and lawful Agent and Attorney in Fact, with full
power and authority hereby conferred, to sign, execute, acknowledge and deliver for and on its behalf as Surety, the following described
bond.

Any and all bonds provided the bond penalty does not exceed Twenty Five Million Dollars ($25,000,000.00).

The acknowledgment and execution of such bond by the said Attorney in Fact shall be as binding upon this Company as if such bond had been
executed and acknowledged by the regularly elected officers of this Company.

The RLI Insurance Company further certifies that the following is a true and exact copy of the Resolution adopted by the Board of Directors
of RLI Insurance Company, and now in force to-wit:

"All bonds, policies, undertakings, Powers of Attorney or other obligations of the corporation shall be executed in the corporate name of
the Company by the President, Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, Treasurer, or any Vice President. or by such other officers as the Board
Jf Directors may authorize. The President, any Vice President, Secretary, any Assistant Secretary, or the Treasurer may appoint
Attorneys in Fact or Agents who shall have authority to issue bonds, policies or undertakings in the name of the Company. The corporate
seal is not necessary for the validity of any bonds, policies, undertakings, Powers of Attorney or other obligations of the corporation. The
signature of any such officer and the corporate seal may be printed by facsimile."

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the RLI Insurance Company has caused these presents to be executed by its ___Vice President  with its
corporate seal affixed this ___2nd day of __August ,_ 2016 .

R {3' NCE &, RLI Insurance Company
'J’J

STt
G| Bl wah

: LSEAL; i ™ e

z N s 3 Barton W. Davis Vice President

% %, f s o &
State of Illinois ZATAS
SS
County of Peoria
CERTIFICATE

On this _2nd  day of _August , 2016 , before me, a Notary Public, I, the undersigned officer of RLI Insurance Company, a stock
personally appeared __ Barton W, Davis , who being by me duly swom, corporation of the State of Illinois, do hereby certify that the attached
acknowledged that he signed the above Power of Attorney as the aforesaid Power of Attorney is in full force and effect and is irrevocable; and
officer of the RLI Insurance Company and acknowledged said instrument to furthermore, that the Resolution of the Company as set forth in the
be the voluntary act and deed of said corporation. Power of Attorney, is now in force. In testimony whereof, I have

hcrm to set my I]aEd and IEc seal of l[c RLI Insurance Company
this day of
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Notary Public RLI Insurance Company
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Barton W. Davis Vice President

ARAAAAALAR

“OFFICIAL SEAL”

JACQUELINE M. BOCKLER
COMMISSION EXPIRES 01/14/18

KOTAHY

PUBLIC
STATE OF
sz |

4133278020212

A0058514



ADSWAST-01 MCKEAGEJE
DATE (MWDD/YYYY)

N
ACORD CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE oy

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: |f the certificate holder |s an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(les) must be endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may raquire an tat 1t on this certificate does not confer rights to the
certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER 1 [ 52T willis Towers Watson Certificate Center
Willls of Viegirtay Joo: PHONe ey (877) 9457378 A% noy: (888) 467-2378
P.O, Box 305191 MEss: certificates@willis.com
Nashville, TN 37230.5191
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
INSURER A : Arch Insurance Company 11150
INSURED wsurer 8: Allled World National Assurance Company 10690
Advanced Disposal Services, Inc. nsurer ¢ : llinols Union Insurance Company 27960
{See Attached List of Named Insureds) 7 i
50 Fort Wade Rd. INEUnER D
Ponte Vedra, FL 32081 INSURER E
| | INSURERF:
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONOITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND COND'TIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS
IETs'!B ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY |

TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD WVD. POLICY NUMBER (MMDDIYYYY) (MthlYE)sYl LIMITS ]
A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE 5 2,000,000
Pcamsmane X occur 31GPP4985403 1172012015 1172012016 | JAEGGEIOENIED o) s 1,000,000
MED EXP (Any one person) S
PERSONAL & ADVINJURY 5 2,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GEINERAL ASGREGATE s 2.000.000|
1 1l
poucy RO l'Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG % 2,000,000
QTHER | . |
AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY EMEREDSINGLETIIT 5 5,000,000
|
A X anvauto 31CAB4985503 11/20/2015 11/20/2016 | BODILY INJURY (Per person) ¢ |
ALLQUNED SGHEBULED BODILY INJURY (Per accidenl) &
NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE .
HIRED AUTOS AUTO (Per accident}
X umBRELLALAB X ocour 1 EACH OCCURRENCE s 15,000,000
B EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE 03098718 11/20/2015 1112042016 | AGGREGATE s 15,000,000
peo X RETENTIONS 10,000 B
WORKERS COMPENSATION PER 9
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY YIN X stamwme | £2
A ANY PROFRIETORPARTNER/EXECUTIVE 31WC14985303 11/20/2015 11/20/2016 | £ EACH ACCIDENT s 1,000,000
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? N NiA * 4
(Mandatory in NH) EL DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE § 1,000,000
gg?c',gﬁfﬁ'éﬁ l(‘)ng%[PERATIONS below _ EL DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT S 1,000,000
C Pollution Liability PPLG27059065002 11/20/2016 11/20/2018 |Aggregate/Occurrence 25 000 000
A Business Auto 31CAB0502303 11/20/2015 11/20/2016 See Attached
|
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHIGLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Sched ay be attached if more space Is requlred)

THIS CERTIFICATE VOIDS AND REPLACES THE PREVIOUSLY ISSUED CERTIFICATE DATED 9/26/2016

CERTIFICATE HGLDER CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE |
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
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© 1988-2014 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.
ACORD 25 (2014/01) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
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ADDITIONAL COVERAGE SCHEDULE

COVERAGE - LIMITS
| POLICY TYPE: Automobile Liability | Automobile Liability - Any Auto
CARRIER: Arch Insurance Company Combined Single Limit - $4,000,000
POLICY TERM: 11/20/2015 ~ 11/20/2016 SIR - $1,000,000

POLICY NUMBER: 31CAB0502303
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Named Insured:

Advanced Disposal Services, Inc.

Advanced Disposal Waste Holdings Corp.

Advanced Disposal Services South, LLC

HWS5tar Holdings Corp.

Advanced Disposal Services East, Inc.

Advanced Disposal Services Midwest, LLC

Advanced Disposal Recycling Services Atlanta, LLC
Advanced Disposal Recycling Services Gulf Coast, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Alabama CATS, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Alabama EATS, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Alabama Holdings, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Alabama, LLC

Advanced Disposal Services Arbor Hills Landfll, Inc.
Advanced Disposal Services Atlanta, LLC

Advanced Disposal Services Augusta, LLC

Advanced Disposal Services Biloxi MRF, LLC

Advanced Disposal Services Birmingham, Inc.

Advanced Disposal Services Blackfoot Landfill, Inc.
Advanced Disposal Services Blue Ridge Landfill, Inc.
Advanced Disposal Services Carolinas, LLC

Advanced Disposal Services Cedar Hill Landfill, Inc.
Advanced Disposal Services Solid Waste Southeast, Inc.
Advanced Disposal Services Central Florida, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Chestnut Valley Landfill, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Cabb County Recycling Facility,
LLC

Advanced Disposal Services Cobb County Transfer Station, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Cranberry Creek Landfill, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Cypress Acres Landfill, Inc.
Advanced Disposal Services Eagle Bluff Landfill, Inc.
Advanced Disposal Services Emerald Park Landfill, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Evergreen Landfill, Inc.
Advanced Disposal Services Glacier Ridge Landfill, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Greentree Landfill, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Gwinnett Transfer Station, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Gulf Coast, LLC

Advanced Disposal Services Hancock County, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Hickory Meadows Landfill, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Hoosier Landfill, Inc.
Advanced Disposal Services Jackson, LLC

Advanced Disposal Services Jacksonville, LLC

Advanced Disposal Services Jones Road, LLC

Advanced Disposal Services Eastern PA, Inc.

Advanced Disposal Services Lancaster Landfill, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Lithonia Transfer Station, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Macon, LLC

Advanced Disposal Services Magnolia Ridge Landfill, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Mallard Ridge Landfill, Inc.
Advanced Disposal Services Maple Hill Landfill, Inc.
Advanced Disposal Services Middle Georgia, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Milledgeville Transfer Station, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Mississippi, LLC

Advanced Disposal Services Mississippi Holdings, Inc.
Advanced Disposal Services Mobile Transfer Station, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Morehead Landfill, Inc.
Advanced Disposal Services North Alabama Landfill, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services North Georgia, LLC

Advanced Disposal Services Qak Ridge Landfill, Inc.
Advanced Disposal Services Orchard Hills Landfill, Inc,
Advanced Disposal Services Pasco County, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Pecan Row Landfill, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Pontiac Landfill, Inc.
Advanced Disposal Services Prattville C&D Landfill, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Renewable Energy, LLC
ADS Renewable Energy ~ Eagle Paint, LLC

ADS Renewable Energy - Stones Throw, LLC

ADS Renewable Energy — Wolf Creek, LLC

Advanced Disposal Services Rogers Lake, LLC

Advanced Disposal Services Rolling Hills Landfill, Inc.
Advanced Disposal Services Selma Transfer Station, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Seven Mile Creek Landfill, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Smyrna Transfer Station, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Solid Waste Leasing Corp.
Advanced Disposal Services Solid Waste Midwest, LLC
ADS Solid Waste of NJ, Inc.

Advanced Disposal Services Western PA, Inc.

Advanced Disposal Services South Carolina, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Star Ridge Landfill, Inc.
Advanced Disposal Services Stateline, LLC

Advanced Disposal Services Sumner Landfill, Inc.
Advanced Disposal Services Taylor County Landfill, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Tennessee Holdings, Inc.
Advanced Disposal Services Tennessee, LLC

Advanced Disposal Services Valley Meadows Landfill, LLC
Advanced Disposal Services Valley View Landfill, inc.
Advanced Disposal Services Vasko Rubbish Removal, Inc.
Advanced Disposal Services Vasko Solid Waste, Inc.
Advanced Disposal Services Wayne County Landfill, Inc.
Advanced Disposal Services Zion Landfill, Inc.

Baton Rouge Renewable Energy, LLC

Burlington Transfer Station, Inc.

Cartersville Transfer Station, LLC

Caruthers Mill C&D Landfill, LLC

Champion Transfer Station, LLC

Diller Transfer Station, LLC

Community Refuse Service, LLC

Doraville Transfer Station, LLC

Eagle Point Landfill, LLC

Eco-Safe Systems, LLC

Hall County Transfer Station, LLC

Harmeny Landfill, LP

Highstar Royal Oaks |, Inc.

Highstar Royal Oaks I, Inc.

Hinkle Transfer Station, LLC

IWStar Waste Holdings Corp.

Jones Road Landfill and Recycling, Ltd

Land and Gas Reclamation, Inc.

Landsouth, Inc.

Moretown Landfill, Inc.

Maostoller Landfill, LLC

Nassau County Landfill, LLC

NEWS North East Holdings, Inc.

NEWS MA Holdings, Inc.

NEWS Mid-Atlantic Holdings, Inc.

NEWStar Waste Holdings Corp.

Solid Waste Collection Services for the City of Yorkville
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North East Waste Services, Inc.
Old Kings Road, LLC

Old Kings Road Solid Waste, LLC
Parker Sanitation Il, Inc.

Pasco Lakes Inc.

PDC Disposal Co., Inc.

St. Johnsbury Transfer Station, Inc.
Advanced Disposal Services Somerset, Inc.

South Hadley Landfill, LLC

South Suburban, LLC

SSl Southland Holdings, Inc.

Stone’s Throw Landfill, LLC

Summit, Inc.

Superior Waste Services of New York City, Inc.

Tallassee Waste Disposal Center, Inc.

Turkey Trot Landfili, LLC

Vermont Hauling, Inc.

Waitsfield Transfer Station, Inc.

WBLF Acquisition Company, LLC

Welcome All Transfer Station, LLC

Western Maryland Waste Systemns, LLC

Wolf Creek Landfill, LLC

WSI Medical Waste Systems, Inc.

WSl of New York, Inc.

WSI Sandy Run Landfill, LLC

Advanced Disposal Services National Accounts, Inc.
Advanced Disposal Services National Accounts Holdings, Inc.
F.D.S. Disposal I, LLC

North East Waste Transport, Inc.

Solid Waste Collection Services for the City of Yorkville
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January 28, 2016

To Whom It May Concern:
For the policy period 11/20/2015 — 11/20/2016, Advanced Disposal Services, Inc. and

all of its entities self-insure medical payments coverage. Should you have any
questions, please contact the Risk Management Specialist listed below:

Charity Douglas
(904) 493-7281
charity.douglas@advanceddisposal.com

Sincerely,

Yk Dicean

Marti Dickman
Vice President, Risk Management

90 Fort Wade Rd., Suite 200 Ponte Vedra, Fl. 32081 Tel (904) 737-7900 Fax (904) 636-0699
AdvancedDisposal.com

Solid Waste Collection Services for the City of Yorkville
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January 28, 2016

To Whom It May Concern:
For the policy period 11/20/2015 — 11/20/2016, Advanced Disposal Services, Inc. and

all of its entities are self-insured for physical damage of vehicles. Should you have any
questions, please contact the Risk Management Specialist listed below:

Charity Douglas
(904) 493-7281
charity.douglas@advanceddisposal.com

Sincerely,

M howman
Marti Dickman
Vice President, Risk Management

90 Fort Wade Rd., Suite 200 Ponte Vedra, FL 32081 Tel (904) 737-7900 Fax (904) 636-0699
AdvancedDisposal.com

Solid Waste Collection Services for the City of Yorkville
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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549
FORM 10-K
(Mark One)
B ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015
OR
O TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the transition period from to

Commission file no: 333-191109

Advanced Disposal Services, Inc.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 90-0875845
(State or other jurisdiction of (IRS Employer
incorporation) ldentification No.)

90 Fort Wade Road
Ponte Vedra, Florida 32081
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code: (904) 737-7900

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: None
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act: None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities Act. Yes 0 No [
Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of the Exchange Act. Yes Bl No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during
the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for
the past 90 days. Yes 00 No X

Note: While the Registrant is a voluntary filer not subject to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the "Exchange
Act"), the Registrant has filed all required reports to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act during the preceding 12 months.

Indicate by check whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate web site, if any, every Interactive Data File required to be
submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T (§232.405 of this chapter) during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to submit and post such files). Yes B No O

[ndicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K (§229.405 of this chapter) is not contained herein, and will not
be contained, to the best of registrant’s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part [II of this Form 10-K or any
amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company. See the
definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filer | Accelerated filer [}

Non-accelerated filer [ (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes 0 No X
The number of shares of Common Stock, $0.01 par value, of the registrant outstanding at March 4, 2016 was 1,000 shares.

Documents Incorporated by Reference:
None
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PART I

DISCLOSURE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This report contains forward-looking statements within the meaning of the U.S. federal securities laws. All statements other
than statements of historical facts in this document, including, without limitation, those regarding our business strategy,
financial position, results of operations, plans, prospects and objectives of management for future operations (including
development plans and objectives relating to our activities), are forward-looking statements. Many, but not all, of these
statements can be found by looking for words like “expect,” “anticipate,” “goal,” “project,” “plan,” “believe,” “seek,” “will,”
“may,” “forecast,” “estimate,” “intend” and “future” and similar words. Statements that address activities, events or
developments that we intend, expect or believe may occur in the future are forward-looking statements within the meaning of
Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and section 21E of the Securities & Exchange of 1934, as amended.
Forward-looking statements do not guarantee future performance and may involve risks, uncertainties and other factors which
could cause our actual results, performance or achievements to differ materially from the future results, performance or
achievements expressed or implied in those forward-looking statements.

RERT 39 ¢

Examples of these risks, uncertainties and other factors include, but are not limited to:
. risks relating to our history of losses;

. risks relating to operating in a highly competitive industry and the inability to compete effectively with larger
and better capitalized companies and governmental service providers;

. risks relating to results being vulnerable to economic conditions;
. risks that we may lose contracts through competitive bidding, early termination or governmental action;
. risks that some of our customers, including governmental entities, have suffered financial difficulties

affecting their credit risk, which could negatively impact our operating results;

. risks that our financial and operating performance may be affected by the inability in some instances to renew
landfill operating permits, obtain new landfills or expand existing ones;

. risks that the cost of operation and/or future construction of our existing landfills may become economically
unfeasible causing us to abandon or cease operations;

. risks that we could be precluded from entering into or maintaining permits or certain contracts if we are
unable to obtain sufficient third-party financial assurance or adequate insurance coverage;

. risks that our accruals for our landfill site closure and post-closure costs may be inadequate;
. risks that our business requires a high level of capital expenditures;
. risks relating to our acquisitions, including our ability to integrate acquired businesses, or that the acquired

businesses will have unexpected risks or liabilities;

. risks relating to the seasonal nature of our business and "event-driven" waste projects that could cause our
results to fluctuate;

. risks that we may be subject in the normal course of business to judicial, administrative or other third-party
proceedings that could interrupt or limit our operations, result in adverse judgments, settlements or fines and

create negative publicity;

. risks relating to fuel supply and prices that may fluctuate significantly and that we may not be able to pass on
cost increases to our customers or effectively hedge such costs;

. risks relating to fluctuations in the prices of commodities;
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ITEM 1. BUSINESS

(All dollar amounts are presented in millions, unless otherwise noted)

Advanced Disposal Services, Inc. (formerly "ADS Waste Holdings Inc." hereafter referred to as the "Company") is a leading
integrated provider of non-hazardous solid waste collection, transfer, recycling and disposal services operating primarily in
secondary markets or under exclusive arrangements. We have a presence in 17 states across the Midwest, South and East
regions of the United States as well as in the Commonwealth of the Bahamas, serving approximately 2.8 million residential and
202,000 commercial and industrial ("C&1I") customers through our extensive network of 93 collection operations, 76 transfer
stations, 21 owned or operated recycling facilities and 39 owned or operated landfills. Our headquarters are located in Ponte
Vedra, Florida.

Our Strategy

We seek to drive financial performance in markets in which we own or operate a landfill or in certain disposal-neutral markets,
where the landfill is owned by our municipal customer. In markets in which we own or operate a landfill, we aim to create and
maintain vertically integrated operations through which we manage a majority of our customers' waste from the point of
collection through the point of disposal, a process we refer to as internalization. By internalizing a majority of the waste in
these markets, we are able to deliver high quality customer service while also ensuring a stable revenue stream and maximizing
profitability and cash flow from operations. In disposal-neutral markets, we focus selectively on opportunities where we can
negotiate exclusive arrangements with our municipal customers, facilitating highly-efficient and profitable collection
operations with lower capital requirements. Geographically, we focus our business principally in secondary, or less densely
populated non-urban, markets where the presence of large national providers is generally more limited. We also compete
selectively in primary, or densely populated urban, markets where we can capitalize on opportunities for vertical integration
through our high-quality transfer and disposal infrastructure and where we can benefit from highly-efficient collection route
density.

Operations

Our vertically integrated environmental services operations can be broadly classified into three lines of business: (i) collection
services; (ii) disposal services, which include transfer stations and landfills; and (iii) recycling services. The solid waste
management business is locally executed where the geographic footprint, density of collection routes, degree of vertical
integration, and regional demographic trends drive success. We serve both primary (densely populated) and secondary (less
populated) markets. While primary markets typically offer highly efficient route densities, secondary markets provide other
important advantages, such as less competition, greater opportunities to gain market share through new business and
consolidation, and generally higher and more stable pricing.

Our operations are managed through three regional offices located in the South, Midwest and East regions of the United States.
Each of the regions has a diversified portfolio of collection, transfer, landfill and recycling operations. The collection, transfer,
landfill, and recycling operations within each of these operating regions are supervised by regional vice presidents with
extensive experience in growing, operating and managing solid waste management companies within their local markets. Each
regional vice president works with and supervises several district and general managers who manage facilities and operations.

The services we provide include non-hazardous solid waste collection, transfer, recycling and disposal services for residential,
commercial and industrial customers, as described below. The following table shows revenues contributed by these services for
each of the three years presented:

Year ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
Collection $ 971.4 69.6 % $ 950.8 67.8% $ 897.3 68.0 %
Disposal 499.0 357 % 492.8 351 % 453.8 344 %
Sale of recyclables 24.8 1.8 % 335 24 % 359 2.7 %
Fuel fees and environmental fees 85.8 6.1 % 92.8 6.6 % 81.5 6.2 %
Other 82.2 59 % 95.5 6.8 % 95.2 72 %
Intercompany eliminations " (266.8) (19.1)% (262.4) (18.7)% (244.6) (18.5)%
Total $ 1,396.4 100.0% $ 1,403.0 100.0% § 1,319.1 100.0 %
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likelihood of obtaining an expansion. To satisfy future disposal demand, we are currently seeking to expand permitted capacity
at certain of our landfills. However, we cannot assure you that all proposed or future expansions will be permitted as designed.

We also have responsibility for 3 C&D and 2 MSW closed landfills, for which we have associated closure and post-closure
obligations.

As part of our vertically integrated solid waste disposal services, we operate 76 transfer stations. Transfer stations receive,
consolidate and transfer solid waste to landfills and recycling facilities. Transfer stations enable us to:

*  increase the operational reach of our landfill operations;

« increase the volume of revenue-generating disposal at our landfills;

- achieve greater leverage in negotiating more favorable disposal rates at landfills that we do not operate;

»  improve efficiency of collection, personnel and equipment; and

«  build relationships with municipalities and other operators that deliver waste to our transfer stations, leading to
additional growth and acquisition opportunities.

Revenue at transfer stations is primarily generated by charging tipping or disposal fees. Our collection operations deposit waste
at these transfer stations, as do other private and municipal haulers, for compaction and transfer to disposal sites or material
recycling facilities ("MRFs"). Transfer stations provide collection operations with a cost-effective means to consolidate waste
and reduce transportation costs while providing our landfill sites with an additional “gate” to extend the geographic reach of a
particular landfill site with the goal of increased internalization.

Recycling Services

We are focused on opportunistically developing our base of recycling facilities. There has been a growing interest in recycling,
which is driven by public and private markets that are placing environmental stewardship as a top priority. This is evidenced by
requests for proposals that incorporate alternate methods to manage the collection, processing and disposal of waste. Despite
this growing interest, revenue from recyclables has decreased since 2013 primarily due to the decline in average commodity
prices.

We have a network of 21 recycling facilities that we manage or operate. These facilities gencrate revenue through the
collection, processing and sale of old corrugated cardboard, old newspaper, mixed paper, aluminum, glass and other materials.
These recyclable materials are internally collected by our residential and industrial collection operations as well as third-party
haulers.

Fuel and Environmental Fees

The amounts charged for collection, disposal, transfer, and recycling services may include fuel fees and environmental fees.
Fuel fees and environmental fees are not designed to be specific to the direct costs to service an individual customer’s account,
but rather are designed to help recover changes in our overall cost structure and to achieve an acceptable operating margin.

Other Services

Other revenue is comprised of ancillary revenue-generating activities, such as landfill gas-to-energy operations at MSW
landfills, management of third-party owned landfills, customer service charges relating to overdue payments and customer
administrative fees relating to customers who request paper copies of invoices rather than opting for electronic invoices, and
broker revenue (which we divested in 2015).

Customers

We provide services to a broad base of commercial, industrial, municipal and residential customers. No single customer
individually accounted for more than 2% of our consolidated revenue in 2015.

Competition

Although we operate in a highly competitive industry, entry into our business and the ability to operate profitably require
substantial amounts of capital and managerial experience. Competition in the non-hazardous solid waste industry comes from a
few large, national publicly owned companies, several regional publicly and privately owned solid waste companies, and
thousands of small privately owned companies. In any given market, competitors may have larger operations and greater
resources. In addition to national and regional firms and numerous local companies, we compete with municipalities that
maintain waste collection or disposal operations. These municipalities may have financial advantages due to the availability of
tax revenue and tax-exempt financing.
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means for addressing such releases is to impose strict liability for cleanup of certain contaminated or disposal sites upon current
and former site owners and operators, generators of the hazardous substances at the site and transporters who selected the
disposal site and transported substances thereto. Liability under CERCLA is strict, joint and several and not dependent on the
intentional release of hazardous substances; it can be based upon the release or threatened release, even as a result of lawful,
unintentional and non-negligent action, of hazardous substances as the term is defined by CERCLA and other applicable
statutes and regulations. The EPA may issue orders requiring responsible parties to perform response actions at sites, or the EPA
may seek recovery of funds expended or to be expended in the future at sites. Liability may include contribution for cleanup
costs incurred by a defendant in a CERCLA civil action or by an entity that has previously resolved its liability to federal or
state regulators in an administrative or judicially-approved settlement. Liability under CERCLA could also include obligations
to a potentially responsible party that voluntarily expends site clean-up costs. Further, liability for damage to publicly-owned
natural resources may also be imposed. We are subject to potential liability under CERCLA as an owner or operator of facilities
at which hazardous substances have been disposed and as an arranger, generator or transporter of hazardous substances
disposed of at other locations.

The Federal Water Pollution Control Act of 1972, as amended, known as the Clean Water Act, regulates the discharge of
pollutants into streams, rivers, groundwater, or other surface waters from a variety of sources, including solid and hazardous
waste disposal sites. If run-off from our operations may be discharged into surface waters, the Clean Water Act requires us to
apply for and obtain discharge permits, conduct sampling and monitoring, and, under certain circumstances, reduce the quantity
of pollutants in those discharges. In 1990, the EPA issued additional standards for management of storm water runoff that
require landfills and other waste-handling facilities to obtain storm water discharge permits. In addition, if a landfill or other
facility discharges wastewater through a sewage system to a publicly-owned treatment works, the facility must comply with
discharge limits imposed by the treatment works. Also, before the development or expansion of a landfill can alter or affect
wetlands, a permit may have to be obtained providing for mitigation or replacement wetlands. The Clean Water Act provides
for civil, criminal and administrative penalties for violations of its provisions.

The Clean Air Act provides for increased federal, state and local regulation of the emission of air pollutants. Certain of our
operations are subject to the requirements of the Clean Air Act, including large MSW landfills and landfill gas-to-energy
facilities. In 1996 the EPA issued new source performance standards ("NSPS") and emission guidelines ("EG") controlling
landfill gases from new and existing large landfills. In January 2003, the EPA issued Maximum Achievable Control Technology
("MACT") standards for MSW landfills subject to the NSPS. These regulations impose limits on air emissions from large
MSW landfills, subject most of our large MSW landfills to certain operating permit requirements under Title V of the Clean Air
Act and, in many instances, require installation of landfill gas collection and control systems to control emissions or to treat and
utilize landfill gas on- or off-site. The EPA entered into a settlement agreement with the Environmental Defense Fund to
evaluate the 1996 NSPS for new landfills as required by the Clean Air Act every eight years and revise them if deemed
necessary. The EPA initially published a proposed landfill NSPS rule July 17, 2014. The new NSPS would apply to new or
modified landfills, and impose requirements on independent operators of landfill gas and renewable natural gas facilities. On
August 14, 2015, as part of the Obama Administration's Climate Action Plan - Strategy to Reduce Methane Emissions, the EPA
issued a supplemental NSPS proposal for reducing emissions from new and modified landfills and, in a separate action, the
EPA proposed updates to its 1996 Emission Guidelines for existing MSW landfills that would further reduce methane
emissions. If implemented, these regulations would also require both new, modified and existing landfills to install pollution
controls if nonmethane organic compounds emissions of landfill gas exceed 34 metric tons per year; closed landfills under the
rule would remain subject to the current threshold of 50 metric tons per year. When the EPA issues the final NSPS rule, we will
re-assess the capital and operating cost impact to our operations. If the EPA were to adopt more stringent requirements, capital
expenditures and operating costs would increase. However, we do not believe that the regulatory changes would have a
material adverse impact on our business as a whole.

In 2010, the EPA issued the Prevention of Significant Deterioration ("PSD") and Title V Green House Gases ("GHG") Tailoring
Rule, which expanded the EPA's federal air permitting authority to include the six GHGs, including methane and carbon
dioxide. The rule sets new thresholds for GHG emissions that define when Clean Air Act permits are required. The
requirements of these rules have not significantly affected our operations or cash flows, due to the tailored thresholds and
exclusions of certain emissions from regulation.

In June 2013, the U.S. Supreme Court issued a decision that significantly limited the applicability and scope of EPA permitting
requirements for GHGs from stationary sources, concluding that the EPA may not treat GHGs as an air pollutant for purposes
of determining whether a source is required to obtain a PSD or Title V permit, although the court also concluded that the EPA
can continue to require that PSD permits, which are otherwise required based on emissions of conventional pollutants, contain
limitations on GHG emissions based on Best Available Control Technology. In May 2015, the D.C. Circuit upheld the EPA's
authority to continue regulating GHG emissions at sources already subject to Title V permitting requirements for other
pollutants. In November 2014, the EPA issued a policy memorandum advising that it intends to propose exempting biogenic
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obligations as well as disclosure and procedural requirements. Various standards for notices of hazards, safety in excavation
and demolition work and the handling of asbestos, may apply to our operations. The Department of Transportation and OSHA,
along with other federal agencies, have jurisdiction over certain aspects of hazardous materials and hazardous waste, including
safety, movement and disposal. Various state and local agencies with jurisdiction over disposal of hazardous waste may seek to
regulate movement of hazardous materials in areas not otherwise preempted by federal law.

State and Local Regulation

Each state in which we operate has its own laws and regulations governing solid waste disposal, water and air pollution, and, in
most cases, releases and cleanup of hazardous substances and liabilities for such matters. States also have adopted regulations
governing the design, operation, maintenance and closure of landfills and transfer stations. Some counties, municipalities and
other local governments have adopted similar laws and regulations. In addition, our operations may be affected by the trend in
many states toward requiring solid waste reduction and recycling programs. For example, several states have enacted laws that
require counties or municipalities to adopt comprehensive plans to reduce, through solid waste planning, composting, recycling
or other programs, the volume of solid waste deposited in landfills. Additionally, laws and regulations restricting the disposal of
certain waste in solid waste landfills, including yard waste, newspapers, beverage containers, unshredded tires, lead-acid
batteries, electronic wastes and household appliances, have been adopted in several states and are being considered in others.
Legislative and regulatory measures to mandate or encourage waste reduction at the source and waste recycling also have been
or are under consideration by the U.S. Congress and the EPA.

To construct, operate and expand a landfill, we must obtain one or more construction or operating permits, as well as zoning
and land use approvals. These permits and approvals may be burdensome to obtain and to comply with, are often opposed by
neighboring landowners and citizens’ and environmental groups, may be subject to periodic renewal, and are subject to denial,
modification, non-renewal and revocation by the issuing agency. Significant compliance disclosure obligations often
accompany these processes. In connection with our acquisition of existing landfills, we may be required to spend considerable
time, effort and money to bring the acquired facilities into compliance with applicable requirements and to obtain the permits
and approvals necessary to increase their capacity. While we typically take into account the costs to bring an asset into
compliance with applicable requirements during the acquisition process, we may incur costs beyond those estimated in the pre-
acquisition stage.

Other Regulations

Many of our facilities own and operate above ground or underground storage tanks that are generally used to store petroleum-
based products. These tanks are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations that mandate their periodic testing,
upgrading, closure and removal. In the event of leaks or releases from these tanks, these regulations require that polluted
groundwater and soils be remediated. While we believe that all of our underground storage tanks currently meet applicable
regulatory requirements in all material respects, there can be no guarantee that some tanks will not fail to meet such
requirements in the future. We maintain a storage tank liability policy which, subject to limitations and exclusions, provides
coverage for first-party remediation and third-party claims.

With regard to our solid waste transportation operations, we are subject to the jurisdiction of the Surface Transportation Board
and are regulated by the Federal Highway Administration, Office of Motor Carriers, and by regulatory agencies in states that
regulate such matters. Various state and local government authorities have adopted, or are considering adopting, laws and
regulations that would restrict the transportation of solid waste across state, county, or other jurisdiction lines. In 1978, the U.S.
Supreme Court ruled that a law that restricts the importation of out-of-state solid waste is unconstitutional; however, states have
attempted to distinguish proposed laws from those involved in and implicated by that ruling. In 1994, the U.S. Supreme Court
ruled that a flow control law, which attempted to restrict solid waste from leaving its place of generation, imposes an
impermissible burden upon interstate commerce and is unconstitutional. However, in 2007, the U.S. Supreme Court upheld the
right of a local government to direct the flow of solid waste to a publicly owned and publicly operated waste facility. A number
of county and other local jurisdictions have enacted ordinances or other regulations restricting the free movement of solid waste
across jurisdictional boundaries. Other governments may enact similar regulations in the future. These regulations may, in some
cases, cause a decline in volumes of waste delivered to our landfills or transfer stations and may increase our costs of disposal.

Emissions from Natural Gas Fueling and Infrastructure

We operate a fleet of 372 CNG vehicles and we plan to continue to transition a portion of our collection fleet from diesel fuel to
CNG, in locations where it is cost beneficial. We have constructed and operate natural gas fueling stations. Concerns have been
raised about the potential for emissions from the fueling stations and infrastructure that serve natural gas-fueled vehicles.
Additional regulation of, or restrictions on, CNG fueling infrastructure or reductions in associated tax incentives could increase
our operating costs. We are not yet able to evaluate potential operating changes or costs associated with such regulations, but
we do not anticipate that such regulations would have a material adverse impact on our business as a whole or our current plan
to continue transitioning to CNG vehicles.
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ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS
We have a history of losses and may not achieve or sustain profitability in the future.

We incurred net losses of $33.6, $17.1 and $117.8 for the years ending December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. We
may not achieve profitability in the foreseeable future, if at all.

We operate in a highly competitive industry and may not be able to compete effectively with larger and better capitalized
companies and governmental service providers.

Our industry is highly competitive and requires substantial labor and capital resources. Some of the markets in which we
compete or plan to compete are served by one or more large, national companies, as well as by regional and local companies of
varying sizes and resources, some of which may have accumulated substantial goodwill in their markets. Some of our
competitors may also be better capitalized than we are, have greater name recognition than we do or be able to provide or be
willing to bid their services at a lower price than we may be willing to offer. Our inability to compete effectively could hinder
our growth or adversely impact our operating results.

We also compete with counties, municipalities and solid waste districts that maintain or could in the future choose to maintain

their own waste collection and disposal operations, including through the implementation of flow control ordinances or similar
legislation. These operators may have financial advantages over us because of their access to user fees and similar charges, tax
revenues, tax-exempt financing or government subsidies

We may lose contracts through competitive bidding, early termination or governmental action.

We derive a significant portion of our revenues from markets in which we have exclusive arrangements, including municipal
contracts. Our municipal contracts are for a specified term and are or will be subject to competitive bidding in the future.
Although we intend to bid on additional municipal contracts in our target markets, we may not always, or ever, be the
successful bidder. In addition, some or all of our customers, including municipalities, may terminate their contracts with us
prior to their scheduled expiration dates. Similar risks may affect contracts that we are awarded to operate municipally owned
assets, such as landfills.

Governmental action may also affect our exclusive arrangements. Municipalities may annex unincorporated areas within
counties where we provide collection services. As a result, our customers in such annexed areas may be required to obtain
services from competitors that have been franchised by the annexing municipalities to provide those services. In addition,
municipalities in which we provide services on a competitive basis may elect to franchise those services. Unless we are
awarded franchises by these municipalities, we will lose customers. Municipalities may also decide to directly provide services
to their residents, on an optional or mandatory basis, which may cause us to lose customers. If we are not able to replace lost
revenues resulting from unsuccessful competitive bidding, early termination or the renegotiation of existing contracts with
other revenues within a reasonable time period, our results of operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.

Our results are vulnerable to economic conditions.

Our business and financial results would be harmed by downturns in the general economy, or in the economy of the regions in
which we operate as well as other factors affecting those regions. In an economic slowdown, we experience the negative effects
of decreased waste generation, increased competitive pricing pressure, customer turnover, reductions in customer service
requirements, and customer business closings and bankruptcies. Two lines of business that could see a more immediate impact
would be 1) construction and demolition and 2) special waste disposal. In addition, a weaker economy may result in declines in
recycled commodity prices. Worsening economic conditions or a prolonged or recurring economic recession could adversely
affect our operating results and expected seasonal fluctuations. Further, we cannot assure you that any improvement in
economic conditions after such a downturn will result in positive improvement in our operating results or cash flows.

Some of our customers, including governmental entities, have suffered financial difficulties affecting their credit risk, which
could negatively impact our operating results.

We provide service to a number of governmental entities and municipalities, some of which have suffered significant financial
difficulties due to the downturn in the economy, reduced tax revenue and/or high cost structures. Some of these entities could
be unable to pay amounts owed to us or renew contracts with us at previous or increased rates. Many non-governmental
customers have also suffered serious financial difficulties, including bankruptcy in some cases. Purchasers of our recyclable
commodities can be particularly vulnerable to financial difficulties in times of commodity price volatility. The inability of our
customers to pay us in a timely manner or to pay increased rates, particularly large national accounts, could negatively affect

i-' _our operating results.
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favorable to us or at all. In addition, we may be unable to obtain the necessary regulatory approvals to complete potential
acquisitions. The integration of acquired businesses and other assets may require significant management time and resources
that would otherwise be available for the ongoing management of our existing operations. Furthermore, acquired assets may be
subject to liabilities and risks that were not identified at the time they were acquired.

A portion of our growth and future financial performance depends on our ability to integrate acquired businesses and the
success of our acquisitions.

One component of our growth strategy involves achieving economies of scale and operating efficiencies by growing through
acquisitions. We may not achieve these goals unless we are able to effectively combine the operations of acquired businesses
with our existing operations. Similar risks may affect contracts that we are awarded to operate municipally-owned assets, such
as landfills. In addition, we are not always able to control the timing of our acquisitions. Our inability to complete acquisitions
within the time frames that we expect may cause our operating results to be less favorable than expected.

Even if we are able to make acquisitions on advantageous terms and are able to integrate them successfully into our operations
and organization, some acquisitions may not fulfill our anticipated financial or strategic objectives in a given market due to
factors that we cannot control, such as the price of crude oil, market position, competition, customer base, loss of key
employees, third-party legal challenges or governmental actions. In addition, we may change our strategy with respect to a
market or acquired businesses and decide to sell such operations at a loss, or keep those operations and recognize an
impairment of goodwill and/or intangible assets. Similar risks may affect contracts that we are awarded to operate municipally
owned assets, such as landfills.

Each business that we acquire or have acquired may have liabilities or risks that we fail or are unable to discover, or that
become more adverse to our business than we anticipated at the time of acquisition.

It is possible that the operations or sites we have acquired in the past, or which we may acquire in the future, have liabilities or
risks with respect to former or existing operations or properties, or otherwise, which we have not been able to identify and
assess through our due diligence investigations. As a successor owner, we may be legally responsible for those liabilities that
arise from businesses that we acquire. Even if we obtain legally enforceable representations, warranties and indemnities from
the sellers of such businesses, they may not cover the liabilities fully or the sellers may not have sufficient funds to perform
their obligations. Some environmental liabilities, even if we do not expressly assume them, may be imposed on us under
various regulatory schemes and other applicable laws regardless of whether we caused or contributed to any conditions that
result in such liabilities. In addition, our insurance program may not cover such sites and will not cover liabilities associated
with some environmental issues that may have existed prior to attachment of coverage. A successful uninsured claim against us
could harm our financial condition or operating results. Furthermore, risks or liabilities of which we are unaware or we judge to
be not material or remote at the time of acquisition may develop into more serious risks to our business. Any adverse outcome
resulting from such risks or liabilities could harm our operations and financial results and create negative publicity, which could
damage our reputation and competitive position.

The seasonal nature of our business and "event-driven' waste projects cause our results to fluctuate.

Based on historic trends, we expect our operating results to vary seasonally, with revenues typically lowest in the first quarter,
higher in the second and third quarters, and lower in the fourth quarter than in the second and third quarters. This seasonality
reflects the lower volume of solid waste generated during the late fall, winter and early spring because of decreased
construction and demolition activities during the winter months in the U.S. and reduced drilling activity during harsh weather
conditions. Conversely, mild winter weather conditions may reduce demand for oil and natural gas, which may cause our
customers to curtail their drilling programs, which could result in production of lower volumes of waste.

Our business is located mainly in the Southern, Midwestern and Eastern United States. Therefore, our business, financial
condition. and results of operations are susceptible to downturns in the general economy in these geographic regions and other
factors affecting the regions, such as state regulations and severe weather conditions.

Adverse winter weather conditions slow waste collection activities, resulting in higher labor and operational costs. Greater
precipitation in the winter increases the weight of collected waste, resulting in higher disposal costs, which are calculated on a
per ton basis, and increased leachate disposal costs. Certain weather conditions, including severe storms, may result in
temporary suspension of our operations, which can significantly impact the operating results of the affected areas. Conversely,
weather-related occurrences and other "event-driven" waste projects can boost revenues through heavier weight loads or
additional work for a limited time period. These factors impact period-to-period comparisons of financial results.

We may be subject in the normal course of business to judicial, administrative or other third-party proceedings that could
interrupt or limit our operations, result in adverse judgments, settlements or fines and create negative publicity.

Individuals, citizens groups, trade associations, community groups or environmental activists may bring actions against us in
connection with our operations that could interrupt or limit the scope of our business. Many of these matters raise difficult and
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resale and purchase prices of, and market demand for, recyclable materials fluctuate due to changes in economic conditions and
numerous other factors beyond our control. These fluctuations may affect our financial condition, results of operations and cash
flows.

Increases in labor and disposal and related transportation costs could impact our financial results.

Our continued success will depend on our ability to attract and retain qualified personnel. We compete with other businesses in
our markets for qualified employees. From time to time, the labor supply is tight in some of our markets. A shortage of
qualified employees, such as truck drivers or mechanics, would require us to enhance our wage and benefits packages to
compete more effectively for employees, to hire more expensive temporary employees or to contract for services with more
expensive third-party vendors. Labor is one of our highest costs and relatively small increases in labor costs per employee
could materially affect our cost structure. If we fail to attract and retain qualified employees, control our labor costs during
periods of declining volumes or recover any increased labor costs through increased prices we charge for our services or
otherwise offset such increases with cost savings in other areas, our operating margins could suffer. Disposal and related
transportation costs are a significant cost category for us. If we incur increased disposal and related transportation costs to
dispose of solid waste and if we are unable to pass these costs on to our customers, our operating results would suffer.

Efforts by labor unions could divert management attention and adversely affect operating resullts.

From time to time, labor unions attempt to organize our employees. Some groups of our employees are represented by unions,
and we have negotiated collective bargaining agreements with most of these groups. We are currently engaged in negotiations
with other groups of employees represented by unions. Additional groups of employees may seek union representation in the
future. From time to time, we are subject to unfair labor practice charges, complaints and other legal, administrative and
arbitration proceedings initiated against us by unions, the National Labor Relations Board or our employees, which could
negatively impact our operating results. Negotiating collective bargaining agreements could divert management attention,
which could also adversely affect operating results. If we are unable to negotiate acceptable collective bargaining agreements,
we may be subject to labor disruptions, such as union-initiated work stoppages, including strikes. Depending on the type and
duration of any labor disruptions, our operating expenses could increase significantly, which could adversely affect our
financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

We could fuace significant withdrawal liability if we withdraw either individually or as part of a mass withdrawal from
participation in any underfunded multiemployer pension plans in which we participate.

We participate in a number of "multiemployer" pension plans administered by employer and employee trustees. We make
periodic contributions to these plans pursuant to our various contractual obligations to do so. In the event that we withdraw
from participation in or otherwise cease our contributions to one of these plans, then applicable law regarding withdrawal
liability could require us to make additional contributions to the plan if it is underfunded, and we would have to reflect that as
an expense in our consolidated statement of operations and as a liability on our consolidated balance sheet. Our withdrawal
liability that would be paid to any multiemployer plan would depend on the extent of the plan's funding of vested benefits. In
the ordinary course of our renegotiation of collective bérgaining agreements with labor unions that participate in these plans,
we may decide to discontinue participation in a plan, and in that event, we could face a withdrawal liability. Some
multiemployer plans in which we participate may from time to time have significant underfunded liabilities. Such underfunding
could increase the size of our potential withdrawal liability.

Increases in insurance costs and the amount that we self-insure for various risks could reduce our operating margins and
reported earnings.

We maintain high deductible insurance policies for automobile, general, employer’s, environmental, directors’ and officers’,
employment practices and fiduciary liability as well as for employee group health insurance, property insurance and workers'
compensation. We carry umbrella policies for certain types of claims to provide excess coverage over the underlying policies
and per incident deductibles. The amounts that we self-insure could cause significant volatility in our operating margins and
reported earnings based on the occurrence and claim costs of incidents, accidents, injurics and adversc judgments. Our
insurance accruals are based on claims filed and estimates of claims incurred but not reported and are developed by our
management with assistance from our third-party actuary and our third-party claims administrator. To the extent these estimates
are inaccurate, we may recognize substantial additional expenses in future periods that would reduce operating margins and
reported earnings. From time to time, actions filed against us include claims for punitive damages, which are generally
excluded from coverage under all of our liability insurance policies. A punitive damage award could have an adverse effect on
our reported earnings in the period in which it occurs. Significant increases in premiums on insurance that we retain also could

(' . » reduce our margins.
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regulators and the public. While our financial statements have been prepared in accordance with GAAP, we cannot predict the
impact of future changes to accounting principles or our accounting policies on our financial statements in the future.

We are subject to substantial governmental regulation and failure to comply with these requirements, as well as
enforcement actions and litigation arising from an actual or perceived breach of such requirements, could subject us to
Sfines, penalties and judgments, and impose limits on our ability to operate and expand.

We are subject to potential liability and restrictions under environmental laws and regulations, including those relating to the
transportation, recycling, treatment, storage and disposal of wastes, discharges of pollutants to air and water, and the
remediation of contaminated soil, surface water and groundwater. The waste management industry has been and will continue
to be subject to regulation, including permitting and related financial assurance requirements, as well as attempts to further
regulate the industry, including efforts to regulate the emission of GHG. Our operations are subject to a wide range of federal,
state and, in some cases, local environmental, odor and noise and land use restrictions. Further restrictions could include:

* limitations on siting and constructing new waste disposal, transfer, recycling or processing facilities or on expanding
existing facilities;

+ regulations or levies on collection and disposal prices, rates and volumes;
»  limitations or bans on disposal or transportation of out-of-state waste or certain categories of waste;

» mandates regarding the management of solid waste, including requirements to recycle, divert or otherwise process
certain waste, recycling and other streams; or

» limitations or restrictions on the recycling, processing or transformation of waste, recycling and other streams.

Regulations affecting the siting, design and closure of landfills could require us to undertake investigatory or remedial
activities, curtail operations or close landfills temporarily or permanently. Future changes in these regulations may require us to
modify, supplement or replace equipment or facilities. The costs of complying with these regulations could be substantial. In
order to develop, expand or operate a landfill or other waste management facility, we must have various facility permits and
other governmental approvals, including those relating to zoning, environmental protection and land use. These permits and
approvals are often difficult, time consuming and costly to obtain and could contain conditions that limit our operations.

We also have significant financial obligations relating to final capping, closure, post-closure and environmental remediation at
our existing landfills. We establish accruals for these estimated costs, but we could underestimate such accruals. Environmental
regulatory changes could accelerate or increase capping, closure, post-closure and remediation costs, requiring our expenditures
to materially exceed our current accruals.

Legislation allowing restrictions on interstate transportation of out-of-state or out-of-jurisdiction waste and certain types of
flow control, or judicial interpretations of interstate waste and flow control legislation, could adversely affect our solid and
hazardous waste management services.

Additionally, regulations establishing extended producer responsibility ("EPR") are being considered or implemented in many
places around the world, including in the U.S. EPR regulations are designed to place either partial or total responsibility on
producers to fund the post-use life cycle of the products they create. Along with the funding responsibility, producers may be
required to take over management of local recycling programs by taking back their products from end users or managing the
collection operations and recycling processing infrastructure. There is no federal law establishing EPR in the U.S.; however,
state and local governments could, and in some cases have, taken steps to implement EPR regulations. If wide-ranging EPR
regulations were adopted, they could have a fundamental impact on the waste streams we manage and how we operate our
business, including contract terms and pricing. A significant reduction in the waste, recycling and other streams we manage
could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

Enforcement or implementation of foreign regulations can affect our ability to export products. In 2013, the Chinese
government began to strictly enforce regulations that establish limits on moisture and non-conforming materials that may be
contained in imported recycled paper and plastics. The higher quality expectations resulting from initiatives such as Operation
Green Fence can drive up operating costs in the recycling industry, particularly for single stream MRFs. Single stream MRFs
process a wide range of commingled materials and tend to receive a higher percentage of non-recyclables, which results in
increased processing and residual disposal costs. If Operation Green Fence or other similar initiatives or new regulations
increase our operating costs in the future, and we are not able to recapture those costs from our customers, such regulations
could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations.

If we are not able to comply with the requirements that apply to a particular facility or if we operate without the necessary
approvals or permits, we could be subject to administrative or civil, and possibly criminal, fines and penalties, and we may be
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We generally seek to work with the authorities or other persons involved in these proceedings to resolve any issues raised. If we
are not successful, the adverse outcome of one or more of these proceedings could result in, among other things, material
increases in our costs or liabilities as well as material charges for asset impairments.

The adoption of climate change legislation or regulations restricting emissions of GHGs could increase our costs fo operate.

Our landfill operations emit methane, which is identified as a-GHG. There are a number of legislative and regulatory efforts at
the state, regional and federal levels to curtail the emission of GHGs to ameliorate the effect of climate change. On August 3,
2015, the EPA finalized the Clean Power Plan rule, which regulates CO2 emissions from existing power plants, and the Carbon
Pollution Standards for new, modified, and reconstructed power plants. Also, on January 14, 2015, the Obama Administration
announced the goal of limiting methane emissions via a host of proposed and anticipated regulations directed at the oil and gas
industry. On August 18, 2015, the EPA proposed updated methane emissions standards for new and modified oil and gas
emissions sources. On August 14, 2015, the EPA proposed updates to its 1996 Emission Guidelines for existing MSW landfills
that would further reduce methane emissions, and, in a separate action, the EPA issued a supplemental proposal for reducing
methane emissions from new and modified landfills. Comprehensive federal climate change legislation could impose costs on
our operations that might not be offset by the revenue increases associated with our lower-carbon service options, the
materiality of which we cannot predict. In 2010, the EPA published a PSD and Title V GHG Tailoring Rule, which expanded
the EPA's federal air permitting authority to include the six GHGs. The rule sets new thresholds for GHG emissions that define
when the Clean Air Act of 1970, as amended (the "Clean Air Act"), permits are required. In June 2015, the EPA and the
Department of Transportation's National Highway Traffic Safety Administration proposed a national program that would
establish the next phase of GHG emissions and fuel efficiency standards for medium and heavy-duty vehicles. The current
requirements of these rules have not significantly affected our operations or cash flows, due to the tailored thresholds and
exclusions of certain emissions from regulation. However, if certain changes to these regulations were enacted, such as
lowering the thresholds or the inclusion of biogenic emissions, then the amendments could have an adverse effect on our
operating costs.

Future changes in laws or renewed enforcement of laws regulating the flow of solid waste in interstate commerce could
adversely affect our operating results.

Various state and local governments have enacted, or are considering enacting, laws and regulations that restrict the disposal
within the jurisdiction of solid waste generated outside the jurisdiction. In addition, some state and local governments have
promulgated, or are considering promulgating, laws and regulations which govern the flow of waste generated within their
respective jurisdictions. These "flow control" laws and regulations typically require that waste generated within the jurisdiction
be directed to specified facilities for disposal or processing, which could limit or prohibit the disposal or processing of waste in
our transfer stations and landfills. Such flow control laws and regulations could also require us to deliver waste collected by us
within a particular jurisdiction to facilities not owned or controlled by us, which could increase our costs and reduce our
revenues. In addition, such laws and regulations could require us to obtain additional costly licenses or authorizations to be
deemed an authorized hauler or disposal facility.

The waste management industry is undergoing fundamental change as traditional waste streams are increasingly viewed as
renewable resources and changes in laws and environmental policies may limit the items that enter the waste stream, any of
which may adversely impact volumes and tipping fees at our landfills. Alternatives to landfill disposal may cause our
revenues and operating results to decline.

As we have continued to develop our landfill capacity, the waste management industry has increasingly recognized the value of
the waste stream as a renewable resource and new alternatives to landfilling are being developed that seek to maximize the
renewable energy and other resource benefits of waste. We are increasingly competing with companies that seek to use parts of
the waste stream as feedstock for renewable energy supplies. In addition, environmental initiatives, such as product stewardship
and EPR, which hold manufacturers or other actors in the product life cycle responsible for the disposal of manufactured goods,
may reduce the volume of products that enter the waste stream. Further, there may be changes in the laws that reclassify items
in the waste stream as hazardous or that prohibit the disposal of certain wastes in our landfills. These alternatives and changes
in laws may impact the demand for landfill space, which may affect our ability to operate our landfills at full capacity, as well
as the tipping fees and prices that we can charge for utilization of landfill space. As a result, our revenues and operating
margins could be adversely affected.

Counties and municipalities in which we own and operate landfills may be required to formulate and implement comprehensive
plans to reduce the volume of solid waste deposited in landfills through waste planning, composting, recycling or other
programs. Some state and local governments prohibit the disposal of certain types of wastes, such as yard waste, at landfills.
Such actions have reduced and may in the future further reduce the volume of waste going to landfills in certain areas, which
may affect our ability to operate our landfills at full capacity and could adversely affect our operating results.
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. pay dividends on, repurchase or make distributions in respect of capital stock or make other restricted payments;

. place limitations on distributions from restricted subsidiaries;

. issue or sell capital stock of restricted subsidiaries;

. guarantee certain indebtedness;

. make certain investments;

. sell or exchange assets;

. enter into transactions with affiliates;

. create certain liens; and

. consolidate, merge or transfer all or substantially all of our assets and the assets of our subsidiaries on a consolidated
basis.

A breach of any of these covenants could result in a default under one or more of these agreements, including as a result of
cross default provisions, and, in the case of our existing revolving credit facility, permit the lenders to cease making loans to us.

We may utilize derivative financial instruments to reduce our exposure to market risks from changes in interest rates on our
variable rate indebtedness and we will be exposed to risks related to counterparty credit worthiness or non-performance of
these instruments.

We may enter into pay-fixed interest rate swaps to limit our exposure to changes in variable interest rates. Such instruments
may result in economic losses should exchange rates decline to a point lower than our fixed rate commitments. We will be
exposed to credit-related losses which could impact the results of operations in the event of fluctuations in the fair value of the
interest rate swaps due to a change in the credit worthiness or non-performance by the counterparties to the interest rate swaps.
See Note 8, Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, to our audited consolidated financial statements included elsewhere
in this Form 10-K.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our corporate headquarters is located at 90 Fort Wade Rd, Ponte Vedra, Florida 32081, where we currently lease approximately
63,000 square feet of office space under a lease expiring through 2020. We also maintain regional administrative offices in
North Carolina, Georgia and Illinois.

Our principal property and equipment consists of land, landfills, buildings, vehicles and equipment. We own or lease real
property in the states in which we conduct operations. At December 31, 2015, we owned or operated 93 collection operations,
76 transfer stations, 39 active solid waste landfills and 21 recycling facilities in 17 states and the Bahamas. In aggregate, our
active solid waste landfills total approximately 21,000 acres, including approximately 11,700 permitted and expansion acres.
“Expansion acreage” consists of unpermitted acreage where the related expansion efforts meet our criteria to be included as
expansion airspace. A discussion of the related criteria is included within the Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Critical Accounting Estimates and Assumptions section included herein. We
also own or have responsibilities for five closed landfills. We believe that our property and equipment are adequate for our
current needs.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

Information regarding our legal proceedings can be found under the “Commitments and Contingencies” section of Note 20 of
our consolidated financial statements included in Item 8 of this report and is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART 11

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Not applicable.

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The information below was derived from the audited Consolidated Financial Statements included in this report and in previous
reports we filed with the SEC. This information should be read together with those Consolidated Financial Statements and the
notes thereto. The adoption of new accounting pronouncements, changes in certain accounting policies and certain
reclassifications impact the comparability of the financial information presented below. These historical results are not
necessarily indicative of the results to be expected in the future,

(In millions of dollars)

For the Year Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

Consolidated Statement of Operations Data (a):
Service revenues S 1,3964 § 1,403.0 S 1,319.1 § 5379 § 4274
Costs and expenses:

Operating 866.6 896.1 832.8 336.7 261.8

Selling, general and administrative (b) 152.6 154.9 170.9 101.0 61.6

Depreciation and amortization 259.1 271.4 278.9 104.1 76.5

Acquisition and development costs 1.4 0.1 1.2 1.2 35

Loss on disposal of assets and asset impairments (c) 21.6 6.5 3.2 458 14.1

Restructuring - 4.6 10.0 9.9 —

1,301.3 1,333.6 1,297.0 598.7 417.5

Operating income (loss) 95.1 69.4 22.1 (60.8) 9.9
Interest expense (138.0) (141.5) (163.1) (49.4) (24.5)
Other (expense)/income, net (d) (10.1) (25.9) 0.3 8.1) (4.3)
(Loss) income before income taxes (53.0) (98.0) (140.7) (118.3) (18.9)
(Benefit) provision for income taxes (¢) (19.4) (80.6) (45.4) (13.5) 35
Net loss from continuing operations (33.6) (17.4) (95.3) (104.8) (22.4)
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax (f) — 0.3 (22.5) (89.2) 0.2
Net loss from continuing operations (33.6) (17.1) (117.8) (194.0) (22.2)
Less: net loss attributable to non-controlling interest — — = (1.4) 0.2)
Net loss $ (33.6) § (17.1) $ (117.8) § (192.6) § (22.0)
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Data: T T T
Net cash provided by operating activities S 2445 § 2432 § 1803 S 552 S 86.8
Net cash used in investing activities $ (1974) S (201.2) S (154.8) S (1,980.5) § (133.7)
Net cash (used in)/provided by financing activities $ (47.5) S (53.0) S (32.3) § 19372 § 40.7
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets (h) $ 34223 S 34895 § 3,5542 § 37252 § 1,371.0
Debt, including current portion (g) (h) $ 2,247.1 S 22430 $ 2,2593 S 22725 § 4358
Total stockholders’ equity S 4898 § 5289 § 5515 S 6625 S 7215

o

(a) We completed the Veolia Acquisition on November 20, 2012 and the results of operations have been consolidated from
the date of acquisition.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the “Selected Financial Data” included in Item 6 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, our consolidated financial statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this report.

Overview

We are a leading integrated provider of non-hazardous solid waste collection, transfer, recycling and disposal services,
operating primarily in secondary markets or under exclusive arrangements. We have a presence in 17 states across the Midwest,
South and East regions of the United States, serving approximately 2.8 million residential and 202,000 C&1I customers through
our extensive network of 93 collection operations, 76 transfer stations, 21 owned or operated recycling facilities and 39 owned
or operated landfills. We seek to drive financial performance in markets in which we own or operate a landfill or in certain
disposal-neutral markets, where the landfill is owned by our municipal customer. In markets in which we own or operate a
landfill, we aim to create and maintain vertically integrated operations through which we manage a majority of our customers'
waste from the point of collection through the point of disposal, a process we refer to as internalization. By internalizing a
majority of the waste in these markets, we are able to deliver high quality customer service while also ensuring a stable revenue
stream and maximizing profitability and cash flow from operations. In disposal-neutral markets, we focus selectively on
opportunities where we can negotiate exclusive arrangements with our municipal customers, facilitating highly-efficient and
profitable collection operations with lower capital requirements.

Geographically, we focus our business principally in secondary, or less densely populated non-urban, markets where the
presence of large national providers is generally more limited. We also compete selectively in primary, or densely populated
urban, markets where we can capitalize on opportunities for vertical integration through our high-quality transfer and disposal
infrastructure and where we can benefit from highly-efficient collection route density. We maintain an attractive mix of revenue
from varying sources, including residential collections, C&I collections, landfill gas and special waste streams, and fees
charged to third parties for disposal in our network of transfer stations and landfills, with limited exposure to commodity sales.
We also benefit from a high degree of customer diversification, with no single customer accounting for more than 2% of
revenue for the twelve months ended December 31, 2015. Our business mix and large and diverse customer base, combined
with our long term contracts and historically high renewal rates, provide us with significant revenue and earnings stability and
visibility.

We intend to grow our business and expand the scope of our operations by adding new C&I customers, securing additional
exclusive municipal contracts and executing value enhancing, tuck-in acquisitions, while maintaining a relentless focus on
prudent cost management and pricing discipline. To this end, we are committed to investing in strategic infrastructure including
the development and enhancement of our landfills, the conversion of our residential collection fleet to automated vehicles and
the conversion of our collection fleet to CNG-fueled vehicles in certain markets in which we can achieve an attractive return on
our investment. In addition to our focus on growing revenues and enhancing profitability, we remain financially disciplined
through our careful management of returns on equity and capital deployed.

Our fiscal year ends December 31 of each year and we refer to the fiscal year ended December 31, 2015 as "fiscal 2015," the
fiscal year ended December 31, 2014 as "fiscal 2014" and the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 as "fiscal 2013".

How We Generate Revenue

Through our subsidiaries, we generate revenue primarily by providing collection and disposal services to commercial,
industrial, municipal and residential customers. Our remaining revenue is generated from recycling, fuel fees and
environmental fees, landfill gas-to-energy operations and other anciltlary revenue-generating activities. Revenues from our
collection operations consist of fees we receive from municipal, subscription, residential and C&I customers and are influenced
by factors such as collection frequency, type of collection equipment furnished, type and volume or weight of the waste
collected, distance to the recycling, transfer station or disposal facilities and our disposal costs. Our standard C&I service
agreement is a five-year renewable agreement. Management believes we maintain strong relationships with our C&I customers,
which is supported by an approximate 10% commercial customer churn rate since we started tracking this information eight
quarters ago. Our municipal customer relationships are generally supported by exclusive contracts ranging from three to ten
years in initial duration, with subsequent renewal periods, and we have historically achieved a renewal rate of approximately
84% with these customers. Certain of our municipal contracts have annual price escalation clauses that are tied to changes in an
underlying base index such as the consumer price index. We provide commercial front load and temporary and permanent
rolloff service offerings to our customers. While the majority of our rolloff services are provided to customers under long-term
service agreements, we generally do not enter into contracts with our temporary rolloff customers due to the relatively short-
term nature of most C&D projects.
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Adverse winter weather conditions can slow waste collection activities, resulting in higher labor and operational costs. Greater
precipitation in the winter increases the weight of collected waste, resulting in higher disposal costs, which are calculated on a
per ton basis and increased leachate disposal costs. Certain weather conditions, including severe storms, may result in
temporary suspension of our operations, which can significantly impact the operating results of the affected areas. Conversely,
weather related occurrences and other "event driven" waste projects can boost revenues through heavier weight loads or
additional work for a limited time period. These factors impact period to period comparisons of financial results.

Results of Operations

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated our consolidated results of operations and the percentage relationship
that certain items from our consolidated financial statements bear to revenue (in millions and as a percentage of our revenue).

Year ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013

Service revenues S 1,3964 100.0% § 1,403.0 100.0% S§ 1,319.1 100.0%
Operating costs and expenses
Operating 866.6 62.1% 896.1 63.9% 832.8 63.1%
Selling, general and administrative 152.6 10.9% 154.9 11.0% 170.9 13.0%
Depreciation and amortization 259.1 18.6% 271.4 19.3% 278.9 21.1%
Acquisition and development costs 1.4 0.1% 0.1 —% 1.2 0.1%
Loss on disposal of assets and asset
impairments 21.6 1.5% 6.5 0.5% 3.2 0.2%
Restructuring charges — —% 4.6 0.3% 10.0 0.8%

Total operating costs and expenses 1,301.3 93.2% 1,333.6 95.1% 1,297.0 98.3%
Operating income 8 95.1 6.8% S 69.4 4.9% S 22.1 1.7%

Operating income increased in fiscal 2015 from fiscal 2014 due to the favorable net impact of acquiring higher margin
businesses while divesting of lower margin operations, pricing gains, lower net tuel costs, which is detined as tuel expense less
fuel recovery fees, reduced depreciation and amortization expense, lower risk management expense, decreased selling, general
and administrative costs due to completion of the rebranding and integration efforts associated with the Veolia Acquisition,
partially offset by lower special waste volumes, reduced revenue from sale of recyclables and higher repairs and maintenance
costs.

Operating income increased $47.3, or 214.0%, in fiscal 2014 to $69.4 from $22.1 in fiscal 2013 as a result of organic growth,
the full year impact of acquisitions, decreased selling, general and administrative costs, and lower restructuring charges.

Revenue

The following table sets forth our consolidated revenues for the periods indicated (in millions and as a percentage of our total
revenue).

Year ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
Collection S 9714 69.6 % S§ 950.8 678 % S 8973 68.0 %
Disposal 499.0 357 % 492.8 351 % 453.8 34.4 %
Sale of recyclables 24.8 1.8 % 335 24 % 359 2.7 %
Fuel fees and environmental fees 85.8 6.1 % 92.8 6.6 % 81.5 6.2 %
Other 82.2 5.9 % 95.5 6.8 % 95.2 72 %
Intercompany eliminations (266.8) (19.1)% (262.4) (18.7)% (244.6) (18.5)%
Total S 1,3964 100.0 % $ 1,403.0 100.0 % S 1,319.1 100.0 %
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= Other expenses, which include expenses such as facility operating costs, equipment rent, leachate treatment and
disposal, and other landfill maintenance costs.

*  Accretion expense related to landfill capping, closure and post-closure is included in “Operating Expenses” in our
consolidated income statements, however, it is excluded from the table below (refer to discussion below “Accretion of
Landfill Retirement Obligations” for a detailed discussion of the changes in amounts).

The following table summarizes the major components of our operating expenses, excluding accretion expense on our landfill
retirement obligations (in millions and as a percentage of our revenue):

Year ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013

Labor and related benefits § 2867 20.5% $§ 2813 20.0% $ 261.7 19.8%
Transfer and disposal costs 195.2 14.0% 207.8 14.8% 189.1 14.3%
Maintenance and repairs 123.7 8.9% 114.9 8.2% 102.5 7.8%
Fuel 66.6 4.8% 101.3 7.2% 99.7 7.6%
Franchise fees and taxes 67.1 4.8% 64.8 4.6% 57.1 4.3%
Risk management 259 1.9% 284 2.0% 235 1.8%
Other 88.3 6.3% 84.1 6.0% 85.5 6.5%

Total operating expenses $ 8535 61.1% §  882.6 62.9% & 819.1 62.1%

The cost categories shown above may not be comparable to similarly titled categories used by other companies.

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2015 compared fo 2014

Operating expenses decreased by $29.1, or 3.3%, to $853.5 for 2015 from $882.6 in 2014. Operating expenses, as a percentage
of revenue, decreased by 180 basis points in 2015 from 2014. The change was due to the following:

«  Labor and related benefits increased by $5.4, or 1.9%, to $286.7, which was primarily attributable to merit increases
and acquisition activity partially offset by disposal of certain businesses, as discussed in Note 1 to the audited
consolidated financial statements

*  Transfer and disposal costs decreased by $12.6, or 6.1%, to $195.2. The decrease was primarily attributable to
divestitures of certain businesses (Note 1 to the audited consolidated financial statements), decreased fuel surcharges
from vendors, decreased trucking costs as a result of decreased special waste volumes and reduced sub contract costs.

*  Maintenance and repairs expense increased by $8.8, or 7.7%, to $123.7. The increase was driven primarily by the
implementation of a standardized preventative maintenance plan on our collection fleet and landfill equipment which
resulted in increased labor and material costs and increased container repair costs related to increased collection
volumes. Additionally, costs increased as a result of acquisition activity.

*  Fuel costs decreased $34.7, or 34.3%, to $66.6 primarily resulting from decreases in fuel prices per gallon, less severe
weather, and converting trucks to compressed natural gas fuel which is cheaper than diesel fuel.

*  Franchise fees and taxes increased $2.3, or 3.5%, to $67.1 for 2015 primarily due to changes in the mix of waste in
disposal volumes.

Risk management expenses decreased $2.5, or 8.8%, to $25.9 in 2015 primarily due to favorable settlements of prior
year claims and an improvement in the development of existing claims compared to the same period in the prior year.

*  Other operating costs increased $4.2, or 5.0%, to $88.3 in 2015 as a result of increases in leachate costs due to wet
weather, increased gas system costs, and increased costs to operate our facilities.

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2014 compared to 2013

Operating expenses increased by $63.5, or 7.8%, to $882.6 for fiscal 2014 from $819.1 in fiscal 2013. Operating expenses, as a
@\_‘,.) percentage of revenue, increased by 80 basis points in fiscal 2014 over fiscal 2013. The change was due to the following:
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Rebranding and integration costs are mainly comprised of professional fees, including legal, accounting, and rebranding costs
and relate to rebranding all of the acquired and merged businesses' trucks and containers and those costs expended to align the
corporate and strategic operations of the acquired and merged businesses. The decrease of §7.1 in fiscal 2015 compared to 2014
is a result of the completing the overall programs associated with the rebranding and integration of the Veolia Acquisition.

Other selling, general and administrative expenses decreased by S$2.2, or 4.5%, due to lower travel expenses and lower facility
costs as a result of cost control measures.

Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2014 compared to 2013

Salaries expenses increased by $0.4 in 2014 compared to 2013, but decreased 40 basis points as a percentage of revenue. The
increase was primarily due to merit increases in fiscal 2014 offset by lower salaries expense related to a reduction in force that
occurred in August 2014 and the resignation of an executive in the first quarter of 2014.

Legal and professional fees increased by $2.0 in 2014 compared to 2013 primarily as a result of increased fees related to
defense of a legal matter. Refer to Note 20 "Commitments and Contingencies” in the audited consolidated financial statements
included in Item 8 for further details regarding the legal matter.

Rebranding and integration costs were primarily related to the costs associated with the integration program from the
acquisition of Veolia and other entities. The decrease of §18.7 in 2014 from 2013 is primarily a result of efforts to complete the
integration program in fiscal 2014.

Other selling, general and administrative expenses increased by $0.3 but decreasced 20 basis points as a percentage of revenue
mainly due to an increase in bank charges and payroll processing costs.

Depreciation and Amortization

The following table summarizes the components of depreciation and amortization expense by asset type (in millions and as a
percentage of our revenue). For a detailed discussion of depreciation and amortization by asset type refer to the discussion
included in the following two sections herein.

Year ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
Depreciation, amortization and depletion of
property and equipment S 2163 155% S  229.1 163% §  236.7 17.9%
Amortization of other intangible assets and
other assets 42.8 3.1% 423 3.0% 42.2 3.2%
Depreciation and amortization S 259.1 18.6% S 2714 19.3% S

278.9 21.1%

Depreciation, Amortization and Depletion of Property and Equipment

Depreciation, amortization and depletion expense includes depreciation of fixed assets over the estimated useful life of the
assets using the straight-line method, and amortization and depletion of landfill airspace assets under the units-of-consumption
method. We depreciate all fixed assets to a zero net book value, and do not apply salvage values.

The following table summarizes depreciation, amortization and depletion of property and equipment for the periods indicated
(in millions and as a percentage of our revenue):

Year ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
Depreciation and amortization of property and
equipment 127.5 9.1% S 122.8 87% S 1418 10.7%
Landfill depletion and amortization 88.8 6.4% 106.3 7.6% 94.9 7.2%
Depreciation, amortization and depletion
expense § 2163 155% S  229.1 163% S  236.7 17.9%
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operations have been included in discontinued operations in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations for all
periods presented.

Losses from discontinued operations before income tax for fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013 was $0.0, $0.7 and $29.6, respectively.
The decreases in the loss from 2015 to 2014 and 2014 to 2013 were due to the completion of the sale of the businesses that
were classified within discontinued operations.

Restructuring Charges
In fiscal 2015, no new restructuring plans were adopted and no restructuring costs were incurred.

In fiscal 2014, we recognized approximately $0.4 of severance costs, $0.6 of lease termination costs and $0.3 of relocation
costs in the Midwest region; $0.4 of severance costs and $0.3 of relocation costs in the East region; $0.2 of severance costs and
$0.8 of relocation costs in the South region; as well as $1.6 of primarily relocation costs for Corporate.

In fiscal 2013, we recognized approximately $2.5 of severance costs, $1.7 of lease termination costs and $2.3 of relocation
costs in the Midwest region; $0.6 of lease termination costs in the East region; $0.3 of lease termination costs in the South
region and $0.3 of other expenses; as well as $2.3 of severance costs for Corporate.

Other, Net

Changes in the fair value and settlements of the fuel derivative instruments are recorded in other (expense) income, net in the
audited consolidated statements of operations and amounted to an expense of $15.4 and $29.0 for fiscal 2015 and 2014,
respectively. Income from equity investee for fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013 was $1.3, $1.2 and $0.8, respectively. We realized a
gain on sale of $2.5 from the disposition of an investment security in fiscal 2015.

Interest Expense

The following table provides the components of interest expense for the periods indicated (in millions and as a percentage of
our revenue);

Year ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013

Interest expense on debt and capital lease
obligations § 1194 86% § 1231 88% § 140.1 10.6%
Accretion of original issue discounts and loan
costs 19.5 1.4 % 20.0 1.4 % 17.6 1.3%
Amortization of terminated interest rate swaps o — % — — % 6.0 0.5%
Less: Capitalized interest (0.9) (0.1)% (1.6) (0.1)% (0.6) —%

Total Interest Expense $ 138.0 99% § 1415 10.1 % $ 163.1 12.4%

Interest expense decreased in fiscal 2015 from fiscal 2014 due to the benefit from lower debt levels on the Term Loan B
Facility (as defined below) in fiscal 2015 compared to fiscal 2014. Interest expense decreased in fiscal 2014 from fiscal 2013
as a result of refinancing the Term Loan B Facility, which lowered the overall interest rate on the Term Loan B Facility by 50
basis points. Additionally, we benefited from lower debt levels on the Term Loan B Facility in fiscal 2014 compared to fiscal
2013.

Debt Modifications

We modified our Term Loan B Facility in February 2014 and 2013 and incurred approximately $1.3 and $22.5, respectively of
costs in connection with the modifications, which were recorded as a reduction to long-term debt and are being amortized as
and adjustment to interest expense using the effective interest rate method. The modification in February 2014 lowered the
interest rate floor by 50 basis points and the modification in February 2013 lowered the margin by 100 basis points. No gain or
loss was recorded upon consummation of the transaction, as it was treated as a modification of debt in accordance with current
accounting guidance.
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Reportable Segments

Our operations are managed through three geographic regions (South, East and Midwest) that we designate as our reportable
segments. Revenues and operating income/(loss) for our reportable segments for the periods indicated, is shown in the
following tables (in millions):

Depreciation
Services Operating and
Revenue Income (Loss) Amortization
For the Year Ended December 31,
2015
South 488.7 66.9 73.2
East 366.3 25.0 74.0
Midwest 541.5 61.1 103.8
Corporate 0.1) (57.9) 8.1
1,396.4 95.1 259.1
For the Year Ended December 31,
2014
South 493.7 72.2 70.3
East 364.3 8.7 85.1
Midwest 545.2 51.2 108.1
Corporate 0.2) 62.7) 7.9
1,403.0 69.4 271.4
For the Year Ended December 31,
2013
South 4754 66.4 79.0
East 331.1 7.7 78.7
Midwest 512.6 39.6 112.6
Corporate — (91.6) 8.6
$ 1,319.1 § 22.1 $ 278.9

Comparison of Reportable Segments—Fiscal 2015 compared to Fiscal 2014
South Segment

Revenue for fiscal 2015 decreased $5.0 or 1.0% from fiscal 2014. Approximately $14.0 of the decline was due to the
divestiture of businesses (see Note 1 "Business Operations" in the audited consolidated financial statements), $2.2 was due to
declines in commodity revenue, and $1.3 was due to declines in fuel fee revenue. The decrease was partially offset by a $12.5
increase in disposal revenue impacted by stronger volumes and pricing gains.

Operating income from our South Region decreased by $5.3 or 7.3% from fiscal 2014. The decrease in operating income was
driven by an increase in the loss on disposal of assets of $12.7, higher franchise fees of $3.9, higher repair and maintenance
expense of $3.2, higher wages of $3.2, and increased sub contract costs of $2.2. The decreases were partially offset by a
reduction in fuel expense of $13.7 and increases due to disposal volumes and pricing gains discussed above.

East Segment

Revenue for fiscal 2015 increased $2.0, or 0.5% from fiscal 2014. The segment’s revenue increase was driven by new contract
wins and acquisitions, which accounted for approximately $12.3 and higher environmental fees of $2.6. The increase was
partially offset by lower rolloff volume of $5.3, lower fuel recovery fees of $3.7, and lower disposal volume of $2.3.

Operating income from our East Region increased by $16.3, or 187%, from fiscal 2014 to $25.0 in fiscal 2015, which was
primarily the result of lower depreciation and amortization of $11.1 due to an increase in landfill densities, lower fuel fees of
$8.2, and reduced disposal costs of $1.7. The increase was partially offset by higher wages of $3.1 and higher repairs and
maintenance expense of $2.8.
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Term Loan B Facility and Revolving Credit Facility in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014. We expect to have a working capital
deficit for the foresecable future as excess cash flows from operations are utilized to either complete acquisitions or pay
additional amounts on our Term Loan B Facility.

We have more than adequate availability under our Revolving Credit Facility, which was $222.1, $241.9 and $221.3 at
December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively, to fund short term working capital requirements.

Summary of Cash and Cash Equivalents, Restricted Cash and Debt Obligations

The table below presents a summary of our cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and debt balances as of December 31,
2015 and 2014 (in millions):

December 31,
2015 2014

Cash and cash equivalents 3 06 $ 1.0

Total restricted funds py — 3§ 0.2
Debt:

Current portion $ 49.1 § 253

Long-term portion 2,198.0 2,217.7

Total debt 3 2,247.1 § 2,243.0

Long-term debt decreased due to scheduled payments on the Term B Loan as well as prepayments of $15.5. The current portion
of debt increased due to borrowings of $32.0 on the Revolving Credit Facility to fund acquisitions in the fourth quarter of fiscal

2015.

Summary of Cash Flow Activity

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated a summary of our cash flows (in millions):

For the Years Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 2445 § 2432 $ 180.3
Net cash used in investing activities $ (197.4) $ (201.2) $ (154.8)
Net cash used in financing activities $ 47.5) § (53.0) $ (32.3)

Cash Flows Provided by Operating Activities

In fiscal 2015, we generated $244.5 of cash flows from operating activities compared to $243.2 in fiscal 2014, representing an
increase of $1.3. The increase in 2015 is the result of a decrease in accounts receivable as a result of increased emphasis on
collections offset by the impact of an increase in capping, closure and post closure expenditures as a result of several large
capping projects during 2015. In 2014, we generated $243.2 of cash flows from operating activities compared to $180.3 in
2013, representing an increase of $62.9. The increase in 2014 is a result of lower integration and restructuring costs of
approximately $18.7 and a focus on days sales outstanding as well as organic and acquisition growth year over year.

Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities

We used $197.4 of cash in fiscal 2015 for investing activities, of which $179.7 was utilized to acquire property and equipment
and for landfill cell construction and development and $50.0 was utilized for acquisitions. Further, we divested certain
businesses and received $14.7 in cash and we redeemed an investment and received $15.0 in proceeds.

We used $201.2 of cash in fiscal 2014 in investing activities, of which $196.4 was utilized to acquire property and equipment
and for landfill cell construction and development and $9.9 was utilized for acquisitions. Further, we divested certain
businesses and received $2.1 in cash related to those divestitures.

We used $154.8 of cash in investing activities in fiscal 2013, of which $158.1 was utilized to acquire property and equipment
and for landfill construction and development, $29.8 was utilized to acquire new businesses and $20.6 was paid to settle the net
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Fiscal Quarter Ending Maximum Total Leverage Ratio

December 31, 2014 through December 30, 2015 7.50:1.00
December 31, 2015 through December 30, 2016 7.00:1.00
December 31, 2016 and thereafter 6.50:1.00

The actual total leverage ratio at December 31, 2015 and 2014 was 6.11:1.00 and 6.12:1.00, respectively.

8 1/4% Senior Notes due 2020

On October 9, 2012, the Company issued $550 aggregate principal amount of 8 1/4% Senior Notes, which mature in October
2020, pursuant to the Indenture between the Company and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as trustee. In December
2013, we exchanged all of the outstanding notes for registered notes with identical terms. As of December 31, 2015, we were in
compliance with the covenants under the Indenture. See Note 13, Long-Term Debt, to our consolidated financial statements for
additional details regarding the notes.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

As of December 31, 2015, we had no off-balance sheet debt or similar obligations, other than financial assurance instruments
and operating leases, which are not classified as debt. We do not guarantee any third-party debt.

Liquidity Impacts of Income Tax Items

Uncertain Tax Positions—As of December 31, 2015, we have $7.3 of liabilities associated with unrécognized tax benefits.
These liabilities are primarily included as a component of “Other long-term liabilities” in our consolidated balance sheets
because we generally do not anticipate that settlement of the liabilities will require payment of cash within the next 12 months.
We are not able to reasonably estimate when we would make any cash payments required to settle these liabilities, but we do
not believe that the ultimate settlement of our obligations will materially affect our liquidity.

Financial Assurance

We must provide financial assurance to governmental agencies and a variety of other entities under applicable environmental
regulations relating to our landfill operations for capping, closure and post-closure costs, and related to our performance under
certain collection, landfill and transfer station contracts. We satisfy these financial assurance requirements by providing surety
bonds, letters of credit or trust deposits, which are included in restricted cash and marketable securities. The amount of the
financial assurance requirements for capping, closure and post-closure costs is determined by applicable state environmental
regulations. The financial assurance requirements for capping, closure and post-closure costs may be associated with a portion
of the landfill or the entire landfill. Generally, states require a third-party engineering specialist to determine the estimated
capping, closure and post-closure costs that are used to determine the required amount of financial assurance for a landfill. The
amount of financial assurance required can, and generally will, differ from the obligation determined and recorded under
GAAP. The amount of the financial assurance requirements related to contract performance varies by contract. Additionally, we
must provide financial assurance for our insurance program and collateral for certain performance obligations. We do not
expect a material increase in financial assurance requirements in the foreseeable future, although the mix of financial assurance
instruments may change.

These financial instruments are issued in the normal course of business and are not considered company indebtedness. Because
we currently have no liability for these financial assurance instruments, they are not reflected in our consolidated balance
sheets. However, we record capping, closure and post-closure liabilities and self-insurance liabilities as they are incurred. The
underlying obligations of the financial assurance instruments, in excess of those already reflected in our consolidated balance
sheets, would be recorded if it is probable that we would be unable to fulfill our related obligations. We do not expect this to
occur.

Contractual Commitments

We have various contractual obligations in the normal course of our operations and financing activities. The following table
summarizes our contractual cash obligations as of December 31, 2015 (in millions):
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Final Capping—Includes installing flexible membrane and geosynthetic clay liners, drainage and compact soil layers,
and topsoil, and is constructed over an area of the landfill where total airspace capacity has been consumed and waste disposal
operations have ceased. These final capping activities occur in phases as needed throughout the operating life of a landfill as
specific areas are filled to capacity and the final elevation for that specific area is reached in accordance with the provisions of
the operating permit. Final capping asset retirement obligations are recorded on a units-of-consumption basis as airspace is
consumed related to the specific final capping event with a corresponding increase in the landfill asset. Each final capping
event is accounted for as a discrete obligation and recorded as an asset and a liability based on estimates of the discounted cash
flows and capacity associated with each final capping event.

Closure and post-closure—These activities involve methane gas control, leachate management and groundwater
monitoring, surface water monitoring and control, and other operational and maintenance activities that occur after the site
ceases to accept waste. The post-closure period generally runs for 30 years after final site closure for landfills. Landfill costs
related to closure and post-closure are recorded as an asset retirement obligation as airspace is consumed over the life of the
landfill with a corresponding increase in the landfill asset. Obligations are recorded over the life of the landfill based on
estimates of the discounted cash flows associated with performing closing and post-closure activities.

Annually we update our estimates for these obligations considering the respective State regulatory requirements, input from our
internal engineers, operations, and accounting personnel and external consulting engineers. The closure and post-closure
requirements are established under the standards of the EPA’s Subtitle D regulations as implemented and applied on a state-by-
state basis. These estimates involve projections of costs that will be incurred as portions of the landfill are closed and during the
post-closure monitoring period.

Capping, closure and post-closure costs are estimated assuming such costs would be incurred by a third party contractor in
present day dollars and are inflated by the 25-year average change in the historical Consumer Price Index ("CPI") (consistent
historical rate which approximates historical CPI per government website of 2.50% from 1990 to 2015) to the time periods
within which it is estimated the capping, closure and post-closure costs will be expended. We discount these costs to present
value using the credit-adjusted, risk-free rate effective at the time an obligation is incurred, consistent with the expected cash
flow approach. Any change that results in an upward revision to the estimated cash flows are treated as a new liability and
discounted at the current rate while downward revisions are discounted at the historical weighted-average rate of the recorded
obligation. As a result, the credit-adjusted, risk-free discount rate used to calculate the present value of an obligation is specific
to each individual asset retirement obligation. The range of rates utilized within the calculation of our asset retirement
obligations at December 31, 2015 is between 6.4% and 10.5%.

We record the estimated fair value of the final capping, closure and post-closure liabilities for our landfills based on the
capacity consumed in the current period. The fair value of the final capping obligations is developed based on our estimates of
the airspace consumed to date for each final capping event and the expected timing of each final capping event. The fair value
of closure and post-closure obligations is developed based on our estimates of the airspace consumed to date for the entire
landfill and the expected timing of each closure and post-closure activity. Because these obligations are measured at estimated
fair value using present value techniques, changes in the estimated cost or timing of future final capping, closure and post-
closure activities could result in a material change in these liabilities, related assets and results of operations. We assess the
appropriateness of the estimates used to develop our recorded balances annually, or more often if significant facts change.

Changes in inflation rates or the estimated costs, timing or extent of future final capping, closure and post-closure activities
typically result in both (i) a current adjustment to the recorded liability and landfill asset; and (ii) a change in liability and asset
amounts to be recorded prospectively over either the remaining capacity of the related discrete final capping event or the
remaining permitted and expansion airspace (as defined below) of the landfill. Any changes related to the capitalized and future
cost of the landfill assets are then recognized in accordance with our amortization policy, which would generally result in
amortization expense being recognized prospectively over the remaining capacity of the final capping event or the remaining
permitted and expansion airspace of the landfill, as appropriate. Changes in such estimates associated with airspace that has
been fully utilized result in an adjustment to the recorded liability and landfill assets with an immediate corresponding
adjustment to landfill airspace amortization expense.

Interest accretion on final capping, closure and post-closure liabilities is recorded using the effective interest method and is
recorded in operating expenses in the consolidated statements of operations.

Amortization of Landfill Assets—The amortizable basis of a landfill includes (i) amounts previously expended and capitalized,;
(i1) capitalized and projected landfill final capping, closure and post-closure costs; (iii) projections of future acquisition and
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of tons. We calculate per ton amortization rates for each landfill for assets associated with each final capping event, for assets
related to closure and post-closure activities and for all other costs capitalized or to be capitalized in the future. These rates per
ton are updated annually, or more often, as significant facts change.

It is possible that our estimates or assumptions could ultimately be significantly different from actual results. In some cases we
may be unsuccessful in obtaining an expansion permit or we may determine that an expansion permit that we previously
thought was probable has become unlikely. To the extent that such estimates, or the assumptions used to make those estimates,
prove to be significantly different than actual results, or the belief that we will receive an expansion permit changes adversely
in a significant manner, the costs of the landfill, including the costs incurred in the pursuit of the expansion, may be subject to
impairment testing and lower profitability may be experienced due to higher amortization rates, higher capping, closure and
post-closure rates, and higher expenses or asset impairments related to the removal of previously included expansion airspace.

The assessment of impairment indicators and the recoverability of our capitalized costs associated with landfills and related
expansion projects require significant judgment due to the unique nature of the waste industry, the highly regulated permitting
process and the estimates involved. During the review of a landfill expansion application, a regulator may initially deny the
expansion application although the permit is ultimately granted. In addition, management may periodically divert waste from
one landfill to another to conserve remaining permitted landfill airspace, or a landfill may be required to cease accepting waste,
prior to receipt of the expansion permit. However, such events occur in the ordinary course of business in the waste industry
and do not necessarily result in an impairment of our landfill assets because, after consideration of all facts, such events may
not affect our belief that we will ultimately obtain the expansion permit. As a result, our tests of recoverability, which generally
make use of a cash flow estimation approach, may indicate that an impairment loss should be recorded. No landfill impairments
were recorded for fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013.

Self-Insurance Reserves and Related Costs

Our insurance programs for workers’ compensation, general liability, vehicle liability and employee-related health care benefits
are effectively self-insured. Accruals for self-insurance reserves are based on claims filed and estimates of claims incurred but
not reported. We maintain high deductibles for commercial general liability, vehicle liability and workers” compensation
coverage at $0.5, $1.0 and $0.8, respectively as of December 31, 2015.

Accruals for self-insurance reserves are based on claims filed and estimate of claims incurred but not reported and are recorded
gross of expected recoveries. The accruals for these liabilities could be revised if future occurrences of loss development differ
significantly from our assumptions.

Loss Contingencies

We are subject to various legal proceedings, claims and regulatory matters, the outcomes of which are subject to significant
uncertainty. We determine whether to disclose or accrue for loss contingencies based on an assessment of whether the risk of
loss is remote, reasonably possible or probable, and whether it can be reasonably estimated. We analyze our litigation and
regulatory matters based on available information to assess the potential liabilities. Management’s assessment is developed
based on an analysis of possible outcomes under various strategies. We record and disclose loss contingencies pursuant to the
applicable accounting guidance for such matters.

We record losses related to contingencies in cost of operations or selling, general and administrative expenses, depending on
the nature of the underlying transaction leading to the loss contingency.

Asset Impairment

We monitor the carrying value of our long-lived assets for potential impairment and test the recoverability of such assets
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. These events or
changes in circumstances, including management decisions pertaining to such assets, are referred to as impairment indicators.
Typical indicators that an asset may be impaired include (i) a significant adverse change in legal factors in the business climate,
(i1) an adverse action or assessment by a regulator, and (iii) a significant adverse change in the extent or manner in which a
long-lived asset is being utilized or in its physical condition. If an impairment indicator occurs, we perform a test of
recoverability by comparing the carrying value of the asset or asset group to its undiscounted expected future cash flows. If
cash flows cannot be separately and independently identified for a single asset, we will determine whether an impairment has
occurred for the asset group for which we can identify the projected cash flows. If the carrying values are in excess of
undiscounted expected future cash flows, we measure any impairment by comparing the fair value of the asset or asset group to
its carrying value. Fair value is generally determined by considering: (i) an internally developed discounted projected cash flow
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valuation allowances. For a public entity, the amendments in this update are effective for annual reporting periods beginning
after December 15, 2016, including interim periods within that reporting period. Early adoption is permitted for financial
statements not previously issued. We clected to prospectively adopt the accounting standard in the beginning of our fourth
quarter of fiscal 2015. Prior periods in our Consolidated Financial Statements were not retrospectively adjusted.

In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-15, "Interest - Imputation of Interest (Sub-Topic 835-30): Presentation and
Subsequent Measurement of Debt Issuance Costs Associated with Line-of-Credit Arrangements". Given the absence of
authoritative guidance within ASU 2015-03 for debt issuance costs related to line-of-credit arrangements, the SEC staff would
not object to an entity deferring and presenting debt issuance costs as an asset and subsequently amortizing the deferred debt
issuance costs ratably over the term of the line-of-credit arrangement, regardless of whether there are any outstanding
borrowings on the line-of-credit arrangement. As with ASU No. 2015-03, for a public entity, the amendments in this ASU are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015, including interim periods within that reporting
period. Early application is permitted for financial statements that have not been previously issued. The standard should be
adopted retrospectively to each prior reporting period presented and adjusted to reflect the period-specific effects of applying
the new guidance. We elected to adopt the accounting standard in the beginning of our fourth quarter of fiscal 2015. Prior
periods in our Consolidated Financial Statements were not impacted by the adoption of this standard.

In April 2015, the FASB issued ASU 2015-03, Interest - Imputation of Interest, which changes the financial statement
presentation of debt issuance costs to be a direct reduction to long-term debt, rather than presented as a long-term asset. The
amortization of debt issuance costs will continue to be included in interest expense. This standard is effective for annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015 with early adoption permitted. We elected to adopt the accounting
standard in the beginning of our fourth quarter of fiscal 2015. Prior periods in our Consolidated Financial Statements have been
retrospectively adjusted.

In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which supersedes previous revenue
recognition guidance. The new standard requires that a company recognize revenue when it transfers promised goods or
services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the company expects to receive in exchange for those goods
or services. Companies will need to use more judgment and estimates than under the guidance currently in effect, including
estimating the amount of variable revenue to recognize over each identified performance obligation. Additional disclosures will
be required to help users of financial statements understand the nature, amount and timing of revenue and cash flows arising
from contracts. In July 2015, the FASB approved a one-year deferral of the effective date. This standard will now become
cffective for the Company beginning with the first quarter of fiscal 2018 and can be adopted either retrospectively to each prior
reporting period presented or as a cumulative effect adjustment as of the date of adoption. The Company is currently evaluating
the impact of adopting this new guidance on the consolidated financial statements.
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Over the last several years, regulations have been adopted mandating changes in the composition of fuels for motor vehicles.
The renewable fuel standards that the EPA sets annually affect the type of fuel our motor vehicle fleet uses. Pursuant to the
Energy Independence and Security Act of 2007, the EPA establishes annual renewable fuel volume requirements and separate
volume requirements for four different categories of renewable fuels (renewable fuel, advanced biofuel, cellulosic biofuel and
biomass-based diesel). These volume requirements set standards for the proportion of refiners' or importers' total fuel volume
that must be renewable and must take into account the fuels' impact on reducing GHG emissions. These regulations are one of
many factors that may affect the cost of the fuel we use.

At our current consumption levels, a one-cent per gallon change in the price of diesel fuel changes our direct fuel costs by
approximately $0.3 on an annual basis, which would be partially offset by a smaller change in the fuel fees charged to our
customers and the impact of changes in fair value of our fuel derivative instruments. Accordingly, a substantial rise or drop in
fuel costs could have a material effect on our revenue, cost of operations and operating margin.

Our operations also require the use of certain petrochemical-based products (such as liners at our landfills) whose costs may
vary with the price of petrochemicals. An increase in the price of petrochemicals could increase the cost of those products,
which would increase our operating and capital costs. We also are susceptible to (1) fuel fees charged by our vendors, and
(2) other pricing from our vendors due to their increases in indirect fuel costs.

Commodities Prices

We market recycled products such as cardboard and newspaper from our materials recovery facilities. Market demand for
recyclable materials causes volatility in commodity prices. At current volumes and mix of materials, we believe a ten dollar per
ton change in the price of recyclable materials will change revenue and operating income by approximately $6.0 and $4.7,
respectively, on an annual basis.

Inflation and Prevailing Economic Conditions

To date, inflation has not had a significant impact on our operations. Consistent with industry practice, most of our contracts
allow us to recover certain costs, including increases in landfill tipping fees and, in some cases, costs. Competitive factors may
require us to absorb at least a portion of these cost increases, particularly during periods of high inflation. Our business is
located mainly in the Southern, Midwestern and Eastern United States. Therefore, our business, financial condition and results
of operations are susceptible to downtums in the general economy in these geographic regions and other factors affecting the
regions, such as state regulations and severe weather conditions. We are unable to forecast or determine the timing and/or the
future impact of a sustained economic slowdown.
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Management Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the Company, including the principal executive and financial officers, is responsible for establishing
and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Our intemal controls are designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the reliability of
our financial reporting and the preparation of the consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and includes those policies and procedures that:

1. pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the issuer;

ii. provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the issuer are
being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the issuer; and

1il. provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of the issuer's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Management of the Company assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2015 based on the Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (2013 framework). Based on its assessment, management has concluded that our internal control over
financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2015.
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Consolidated Financial Statements

Advanced Disposal Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Balance Sheets

December 31, 2015 and 2014

(In millions of dollars, except shares)

2015 2014
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 06 S 1.0
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $4.4 and $5.0,
respectively 177.5 188.0
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 33.4 342
Deferred income taxes - 14.6
Total current assets 211.5 237.8
Restricted cash — 0.2
Other assets, net 22.9 40.8
Property and equipment, net 1,649.9 1,663.9
Goodwill 1,173.5 1,166.9
Other intangible assets, net 364.5 379.9
Total assets $ 34223 $§ 3,489.5
Liabilities and Stockholder's Equity
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 3 98.1 § 94.7
Accrued expenses 135.7 130.7
Deferred revenue 63.1 60.0
Current maturities of landfill retirement obligations 30.2 29.2
Current maturities of long-term debt 49.1 253
Total current liabilities 376.2 339.9
Other long-term liabilities 55.8 61.2
Long-term debt, less current maturities 2,198.0 2,217.7
Accrued landfill retirement obligations, less current maturities 163.5 171.9
Deferred income taxes 139.0 169.9
Total liabilities 2,932.5 2,960.6
Stockholder's equity
Common stock: $.01 par value, 1,000 shares authorized, 1,000 shares issued
and outstanding == -
Additional paid-in capital 1,101.0 1,105.0
Accumulated other comprehensive income - 1.5
Accumulated deficit (611.2) (577.6)
Total stockholder's equity 489.8 528.9
Total liabilities and stockholder's equity $ 34223 § 3,489.5

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Advanced Disposal Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss

(In millions of dollars)

Year Ended December 31,
2015 2014 2013
Net loss S (33.6) S (17.1) § (117.8)
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax
Market value adjustments for hedges (1.5) (1.0) 4.7
Other comprehensive (loss) income (1.5) (1.0) 4.7
Comprehensive loss $ (35.1) $ (18.1) $ (113.1)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Advanced Disposal Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(In millions of dollars)

Year Ended December 31,

2015 2014 2013
Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss $ 33.6) § (17.1) § (117.8)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 259.1 271.7 284.8
Amortization of option/interest rate cap premium 1.5 2.1 1.3
Amortization of terminated derivative contracts — — 6.0
Interest accretion loss contracts, other debt and long-term liabilities 25, 2 2.7
Amortization of debt issuance costs 14.4 15.1 12.6
Accretion of original issue discount 5.1 4.9 5.0
Accretion on landfill retirement obligations 13.1 13.5 15.0
Provision for doubtful accounts 4.0 42 7.9
Loss on sale of property and equipment 4.7 0.8 2.6
Gain on redemption of security 2.5) — -
Share based compensation 3.1 4.5 4.6
Change in fair value of derivative instruments (11.1) 273 —
Amortization of other long-term assets 0.3 —
Deferred tax benefit (21.6) (84.5) (57.0)
Earnings in equity investee (1.3) 0.1) (0.3)
Asset impairment 6.4 53 255
Loss on disposition of business 10.5 — —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of businesses acquired
Decrease (increase) in accounts receivable 8.3 1.7 (5.1)
Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses, parts and supplies, and other current assets 1.1 1.3 2.8)
Decrease (increase) in other assets 3.9 2.9 (1.1)
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable (2.8) 3.8 5%/
[ncrease (decrease) in accrued expenses 39 (6.6) 0.3)
(Decrease) increase in uncarned revenue (0.5) (1.7) 4.6
(Decrease) increase in other long-term liabilities (3.5) 5.4 (1.4)
Capping, closure and post-closure expenditures (20.4) (13.8) (12.0)
Net cash provided by operating activities 244.5 243.2 180.3
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment and construction and development (179.7) (196.4) (158.1)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 2.6 3.0 34
Proceeds from redemption of securities 15.0 5.0
Repayments of notes receivable — - 0.1
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired (50.0) 9.9) (50.4)
Proceeds from disposition of businesses 14.7 2.1 45.2
Net cash used in investing activities (197.4) (201.2) (154.8)
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from borrowings on debt instruments 114.0 95.0 184.0
Repayments on debt instruments (153.4) (141.3) (196.8)
Deferred financing charges (0.2) (1.3) (22.9)
Bank overdraft 12 1.4 (3.3)
Return of capital (7.5) (9.0) -
Capital contributions from parent 0.4 — —
Other financing activities (2.0) 2.2 6.7
Net cash used in financing activities (47.5) (53.0) (32.3)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (0.4) (11.0) (6.8)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1.0 12.0 18.8
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year 5 06 S 1.0 $ 12.0

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Advanced Disposal Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(In millions, unless otherwise indicated)

Parts and Supplies Inventory

Parts and supplies consist primarily of spare parts, fuel, tires, lubricants and processed recycled materials. Parts and supplies are
stated at the lower of cost or market value utilizing an average cost method and are included in prepaid expenses and other
current assets in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenues as the services are provided. Revenue is recognized as waste is collected, as tons are
received at the landfill or transfer stations, as recycled commodities are delivered to a customer, or as services are rendered to
customers. Certain customers are billed and pay in advance and, accordingly, recognition of the related revenues is deferred
until the services are provided. Revenues are reported net of applicable state landfill taxes.

Trade Receivables

The Company records trade receivables when billed or when services are performed, as they represent claims against third
parties that will generally be settled in cash. The carrying value of receivables, net of the allowance for doubtful accounts,
represents the estimated net realizable value. The Company estimates losses for uncollectible accounts based on an evaluation
of the aged accounts receivable and the likelihood of collection of the receivable based on historical collection data and existing
economic conditions. If events or changes in circumstances indicate that specific receivable balances may be impaired, further
consideration is given to the collectability of those balances.

Insurance Reserves

The Company uses a combination of insurance with high deductibles and self-insurance for various risks including workers
compensation, vehicle liability, general liability and employee group health claims. The exposure for unpaid claims and
associated expenses, including incurred but not reported losses, is estimated by factoring in pending claims and historical trends
data and other actuarial assumptions. In estimating our claims liability, we analyze our historical trends, including loss
development and apply appropriate loss development factors to the incurred costs associated with the claims. The discounted
estimated liability associated with settling unpaid claims is included in accrued expenses and other long-term liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheets.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash, accounts
receivable and derivative instruments. The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents with banks that at times exceed
applicable insurance limits. The Company reduces its exposure to credit risk by maintaining such deposits with high quality
financial institutions. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts.

The Company generally does not require collateral on its trade receivables. Credit risk on accounts receivable is minimized as a
result of the large and diverse nature of the Company’s customer base and its ability to discontinue service, to the extent
allowable, to non-paying customers. No single customer represented greater than 5% of total accounts receivable at

December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Asset Impairments

The Company monitors the carrying value of its long-lived assets for potential impairment and test the recoverability of such
assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable. These events or
changes in circumstances, including management decisions pertaining to such assets, are referred to as impairment indicators.
Typical indicators that an asset may be impaired include (i) a significant adverse change in legal factors in the business climate,
(i1) an adverse action or assessment by a regulator, and (iii) a significant adverse change in the extent or manner in which a
long-lived asset is being utilized or in its physical condition. If an impairment indicator occurs, the Company performs a test of
recoverability by comparing the carrying value of the asset or asset group to its undiscounted expected future cash flows. If
cash flows cannot be separately and independently identified for a single asset, the Company will determine whether an
impairment has occurred for the asset group for which it can identify the projected cash flows. If the carrying values are in
excess of undiscounted expected future cash flows, the Company measures any impairment by comparing the fair value of the
asset or asset group to its carrying value. Fair value is generally determined by considering (i) internally developed discounted
projected cash flow analysis of the asset or asset group; (ii) third-party valuations; and/or (iii) information available regarding
the current market for similar assets. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured
as the amount by which the carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset.
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Advanced Disposal Services, Inc. and Subsidiaries
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

(In millions, unless otherwise indicated)

permits are not obtained, costs are charged to operations. The cost basis of our landfill assets also includes asset retirement
costs, which represent estimates of future costs associated with landfill final capping, closure and post-closure activities.

Final Capping, Closure and Post-Closure Costs — The following is a description of the Company's asset retirement activities
and related accounting:

Final Capping — Includes installing flexible membrane and geosynthetic clay liners, drainage and compact soil layers, and
topsoil, and is constructed over an area of the landfill where total airspace capacity has been consumed and waste disposal
operations have ceased. These final capping activities occur in phases as needed throughout the operating life of a landfill as
specific areas are filled to capacity and the final elevation for that specific area is reached in accordance with the provisions of
the operating permit. Final capping asset retirement obligations are recorded on a units-of-consumption basis as airspace is
consumed related to the specific final capping event with a corresponding increase in the landfill asset. Each final capping event
is accounted for as a discrete obligation and recorded as an asset and a liability based on estimates of the discounted cash flows
and capacity associated with each final capping event.

Closure and post-closure — These activities involve methane gas control, leachate management and groundwater monitoring,
surface water monitoring and control, and other operational and maintenance activities that occur after the site ceases to accept
waste. The post-closure period generally runs for 30 years or longer after final site closure for landfills. Landfill costs related to
closure and post-closure are recorded as an asset retirement obligation as airspace is consumed over the life of the landfill with
a corresponding increase in the landfill asset. Obligations are recorded over the life of the landfill based on estimates of the
discounted cash flows associated with performing the closure and post-closure activities.

The Company annually updates its estimates for these obligations considering the respective State regulatory requirements,
input from our internal engineers, operations, accounting personnel and external consulting engineers. The closure and post-
closure requirements are established under the standards of the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency’s Subtitle D regulations
as implemented and applied on a state-by-state basis. These estimates involve projections of costs that will be incurred as
portions of the landfill are closed and during the post-closure monitoring period.

Capping, closure and post-closure costs are estimated assuming such costs would be incurred by a third party contractor in
present day dollars and are inflated by the 25-year average change in the historical Consumer Price Index ("CPI") (consistent
historical rate which agrees to historical CPI per government website of 2.50% from 1990 to 2015) to the time periods within
which it is estimated the capping, closure and post-closure costs will be expended. The Company discounts these costs to
present value using the credit-adjusted, risk-free rate effective at the time an obligation is incurred, consistent with the expected
cash flow approach. Any change that results in an upward revision to the estimated cash flows are treated as a new liability and
discounted at the current rate while downward revisions are discounted at the historical weighted-average rate of the recorded
obligation. As a result, the credit-adjusted, risk-free discount rate used to calculate the present value of an obligation is specific
to each individual asset retirement obligation. The range of rates utilized within the calculation of the asset retirement
obligations at December 31, 2015 is between 6.4% and 10.5%.

The Company records the estimated fair value of the final capping, closure and post-closure liabilities for its landfills based on
the capacity consumed in the current period. The fair value of the final capping obligations is developed based on the
Company’s estimates of the airspace consumed to date for each final capping event and the expected timing of each final
capping event. The fair value of closure and post-closure obligations is developed based on the Company’s estimates of the
airspace consumed to date for the entire landfill and the expected timing of each closure and post-closure activity. Because
these obligations are measured at estimated fair value using present value techniques, changes in the estimated cost or timing of
future final capping, closure and post-closure activities could result in a material change in these liabilities, related assets and
results of operations. The Company assesses the appropriateness of the estimates used to develop our recorded balances
annually, or more often if significant facts change.

Changes in inflation rates or the estimated costs, timing or extent of future final capping, closure and post-closure activities
typically result in both (i) a current adjustment to the recorded liability and landfill asset; and (ii) a change in liability and asset
amounts to be recorded prospectively over either the remaining capacity of the related discrete final capping event or the
remaining permitted and expansion airspace (as defined below) of the landfill. Any changes related to the capitalized and future
cost of the landfill assets are then recognized in accordance with the Company's amortization policy, which would generally
result in amortization expense being recognized prospectively over the remaining capacity of the final capping event or the
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post-closure period are adjusted prospectively. In addition, any amounts related to the probable expansion are charged to
expense in the period in which it is determined that the criteria are no longer met.

Once the remaining permitted and expansion airspace is determined in cubic yards, an airspace utilization factor (“AUF”) is
established to calculate the remaining permitted and expansion capacity in tons. The AUF is established using the measured
density obtained from previous annual surveys and is then adjusted to account for future settlement. The amount of settlement
that is forecasted will take into account several site-specific factors including: current and projected mix of waste type, initial
and projected waste density, estimated number of years of life remaining, depth of underlying waste, anticipated access to
moisture through precipitation or recirculation of landfill leachate and operating practices. In addition, the initial selection of
the AUF is subject to a subsequent multi-level review by our engineering group, and the AUF used is reviewed on a periodic
basis and revised as necessary. The Company's historical experience generally indicates that the impact of settlement at a
landfill is greater later in the life of the landfill when the waste placed at the landfill approaches its highest point under the
permit requirements.

After determining the costs and remaining permitted and expansion capacity at each of its landfills, the Company determines
the per ton rates that will be expensed as waste is received and deposited at the landfill by dividing the costs by the
corresponding number of tons. The Company calculates per ton amortization rates for each landfill for assets associated with
each final capping event, for assets related to closure and post-closure activities and for all other costs capitalized or to be
capitalized in the future. These rates per ton are updated annually, or more often, as significant facts change.

It is possible that the Company’s estimates or assumptions could ultimately be significantly different from actual results. In
some cases the Company may be unsuccessful in obtaining an expansion permit or the Company may determine that an
expansion permit that it previously thought was probable has become unlikely. To the extent that such estimates, or the
assumptions used to make those estimates, prove to be significantly different than actual results, or the belief that the Company
will receive an expansion permit changes adversely in a significant manner, the costs of the landfill, including the costs incurred
in the pursuit of the expansion, may be subject to impairment testing and lower profitability may be experienced due to higher
amortization rates, higher capping, closure and post-closure rates, and higher expenses or asset impairments related to the
removal of previously included expansion airspace.

The assessment of impairment indicators and the recoverability of the Company's capitalized costs associated with landfills and
related expansion projects require significant judgment due to the unique nature of the waste industry, the highly regulated
permitting process and the estimates involved. During the review of a landfill expansion application, a regulator may initially
deny the expansion application although the permit is ultimately granted. In addition, the Company may periodically divert
waste from one landfill to another to conserve remaining permitted landfill airspace, or a landfill may be required to cease
accepting waste, prior to receipt of the expansion permit. However, such events occur in the ordinary course of business in the
waste industry and do not necessarily result in an impairment of the landfill assets because, after consideration of all facts, such
events may not affect the belief that the Company will ultimately obtain the expansion permit. As a result, the Company's tests
of recoverability, which generally make use of a cash flow estimation approach, may indicate that an impairment loss should be
recorded. No landfill impairments were recorded for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013.

Capitalized Interest

The Company capitalizes interest on certain projects under development, including landfill construction projects. For the years
ending December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013, total interest cost was $138.0, $141.5 and $163.1, respectively, after capitalized
interest of $0.9, $1.6 and $0.6, respectively.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company uses interest rate caps to manage interest rate risk on its variable rate debt. The Company uses commodity
futures contracts as an economic hedge to reduce the exposure of changes in diesel fuel and natural gas prices. The instruments
qualifying for hedge accounting treatment have been designated as cash flow hedges for accounting purposes with changes in
fair value, to the extent effective, recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income within the equity section of the
consolidated balance sheets. Amounts are reclassified into earnings when the forecasted transaction affects earnings. Any
ineffectiveness for those instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting, the amount of ineffectiveness or change in
market value, respectively is recognized into earnings immediately without offset. The commodity futures contracts do not
qualify for hedge accounting and as such changes in fair value are recognized in other (expense) income, net in the consolidated
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The Company performs its annual assessment as of December 31 of each year. The impairment test indicated the fair value of
each reporting unit exceeded the carrying value. If the Company does not achieve its anticipated disposal volumes, our
collection or disposal rates decline, costs or capital expenditures exceed forecasts, costs of capital increase, or the Company
does not receive landfill expansions, the estimated fair value could decrease and potentially result in an impairment charge in
the future. Refer to Note 4 for information regarding impairment charges recorded in connection with discontinued operations,
The Company recorded no goodwill impairment charges for fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013 in connection with the assessments.

Intangible Assets, Net

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and consist of noncompete agreements, tradenames, customer
contracts and customer lists and are amortized over their estimated useful lives. The carrying values of intangibles are
periodically reviewed by the Company to determine if the facts and circumstances suggest that they may be impaired. If the
carrying value exceeds estimated fair value, an impairment charge would be recognized in the amount of the excess. Fair value
is typically estimated using an income approach for the respective asset, as described above. The Company recorded
impairment charges of $0.0, $2.7 and $0.6 for fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The impairments in both fiscal 2014
and 2013 were related to the discontinuance of trade names and certain customer lists. Refer to Note 4 for information
regarding impairment charges recorded in connection with discontinued operations.

Income Taxes

The Company is subject to income tax in the United States. Current tax obligations associated with the provision for income
taxes are reflected in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets as a component of accrued expenses and the deferred tax
obligations are reflected in deferred income tax asset or liability. Deferred income taxes arise from temporary differences
resulting from income and expense items reported for financial accounting and tax purposes in different periods. Deferred
income taxes are classified as noncurrent as discussed in "New Accounting Standards" below. Significant judgment is required
in assessing the timing and amounts of deductible and taxable items. The Company establishes reserves for uncertain tax
positions, when despite its belief that its tax return positions are fully supportable, the Company believes that certain positions
may be challenged and potentially disallowed. When facts and circumstances change, the Company adjusts these reserves
through its provision for income taxes. To the extent interest and penalties may be assessed by taxing authorities on any
underpayment of income tax, such amounts have been accrued and are classified as a component of tax expense in the
consolidated statements of operations.

Contingencies

The Company is subject to various legal proceedings, claims and regulatory matters, the outcomes of which are subject to
significant uncertainty. In general, the Company determines whether to disclose or accrue for loss contingencies based on an
assessment of whether the risk of loss is remote, reasonably possible or probable, and whether it can be reasonably estimated.
The Company assesses its potential liability relating to litigation and regulatory matters based on information available. The
Company develops its assessment based on an analysis of possible outcomes under various strategies. The Company accrues
for loss contingencies when such amounts are probable and reasonably estimable. If a contingent liability is only reasonably
possible, the Company discloses the potential range of the loss, if estimable.

New Accounting Standards

In November 2015, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued ASU 2015-17 Income Taxes (Topic 740),
Balance Sheet Classification of Deferred Taxes, requiring all deferred tax assets and liabilities, and any related valuation
allowance, to be classified as non-current on the balance sheet. The classification change for all deferred taxes as non-current
simplifies entities’ processes as it eliminates the need to separately identify the net current and net non-current deferred tax
asset or liability in each jurisdiction and allocate valuation allowances. For a public entity, the amendments in this update are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim periods within that reporting
period. Early adoption is permitted for financial statements not previously issued. The Company elected to prospectively adopt
the accounting standard in the beginning of the fourth quarter of fiscal 2015. Prior periods in the Consolidated Financial
Statements were not retrospectively adjusted.

In August 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-15, "Interest - Imputation of Interest (Sub-Topic 835-30): Presentation and
Subsequent Measurement of Debt Issuance Costs Associated with Line-of-Credit Arrangements". Given the absence of
authoritative guidance within ASU 2015-03 for debt issuance costs related to line-of-credit arrangements, the SEC staff would
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2015 2014
Current assets $ 28 § 0.5
Property and equipment 20.4 2.6
Goodwill 12.0 1.3
Other intangible assets 31.2 5.5
Total assets acquired 66.4 9.9
Current liabilities 43 13
Total liabilities assumed 10.1 13
Net assets acquired $ 563 § 8.6
The following table presents the allocation of the purchase price to other intangible assets:
2015 2014
Customer lists and contracts $ 278 % 43
Noncompete 2.6 1.2
Other 0.8 —
3 312 § 5.5

The amount of goodwill recorded related to 2015 acquisitions for the South Segment, East Segment, and Midwest Segment was
$1.6, $1.4, and $9.0, respectively. The amount of goodwill deductible for tax purposes related to acquisitions in fiscal 2015 and
fiscal 2014 was $4.1 and $1.3, respectively. The total amount of goodwill deductible for tax purposes was $100.8 and $113.7 at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The weighted average life of other intangible assets in years is as follows:

Customer lists and contracts 15
Noncompete 5

Goodwill and intangible assets increased by $0.1, $0.1 and $26.6, for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, as a result of purchase price adjustments of acquisitions from the previous year. The increases were primarily
related to working capital adjustments as a result of finalizing the purchase accounting for the acquisitions.

4,  Discontinued Operations

The Company completed the sale of certain assets and liabilities in Oxford, MA for approximately $3.7 in December 2013 and
recorded a loss of $11.1 in connection with the sale, as the selling price was less than the carrying value. The loss on the sale in
2013 and the results of operations have been included in discontinued operations in the accompanying consolidated statements
of operations for the applicable periods presented.

The Company entered into a letter of intent in December 2013, to sell certain assets in Panama City, FL for approximately $2.0
and in connection with the planned divestiture recorded an impairment charge of $3.6 for the year ended December 31, 2013, as
the fair value determined through the selling price was less than the carrying value. The sale was completed in January 2014.
The impairment charge has been included in discontinued operations in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations
for fiscal 2013.

In connection with the acquisition of Veolia ES Solid Waste division, the Company was required by the United States
Department of Justice to divest certain businesses. The Company completed the divestitures in 2013, as required for those

U businesses in Georgia and New Jersey and recorded no additional impairment charge upon sale for the year ended
December 31, 2013.
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2015 2014 2013

Balance at January 1, h 96.1 S 141.6 S 128.1

Decrease in valuation allowance for tax provision for continuing

operations (0.9) (51.4) - -

Increase in valuation allowance for tax provision for continuing

operations — 5.9 7.6

Additions from purchase accounting — =— 59
Balance at December 31, S 952 § 96.1 S 141.6
7.  Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets
Prepaid expenses and other current assets consist of the following at December 31:

2015 2014
Prepaid insurance S 56 S 6.3
Prepaid expenses 154 15.8
Other receivables and current assets 4.2 3.0
Parts and supplies inventory 8.2 9.1
5 334 § 34.2

8. Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

The following table summarizes the fair value of derivative instruments recorded in our consolidated balance sheets.

Derivatives Designated
as Hedging Instruments Balance Sheet Location 2015 2014

Interest rate caps Other current assets 0.2 2.7

Derivatives Not Designated
as Hedging Instruments

Fuel commodity derivatives Other current liabilities 16.2 20.6
Fuel commodity derivatives Other long-term liabilities — 6.7
Total derivatives S 160 § 24.6

We have not offset fair value amounts recognized for our derivative instruments.

Interest Rate Cap

In December 2012, the Company entered into four interest rate cap agreements to hedge the risk of a rise in interest rates and
associated cash flows on the variable rate debt. The interest rate caps expire in various tranches through 2016. The Company
recorded the premium of $5.0 in other assets in the consolidated balance sheet and amortizes the premium to interest expense
based upon decreases in time value of the caps. Amortization expense was approximately $1.5, $2.1, and $1.3 for fiscal 2015,
2014, and 2013, respectively. The aggregate notional amounts of the contracts were approximately $695.2 at December 31,
2015 and expire in tranches through 2016.

Commodity Futures Contracts

The Company utilizes fuel derivative instruments (commodity futures contracts) as economic hedges of the risk that fuel prices
will fluctuate. The Company has used financial derivative instruments for both short-term and long-term time frames and
utilizes fixed swap price agreements to manage the identified risk. The Company does not enter into derivative financial
mstruments for trading or speculative purposes.

Changes in the fair value and settlements of the fuel derivative instruments are recorded in other (expense) income, net in the
consolidated statements of operations. The market price of diesel fuel is unpredictable and can fluctuate significantly.
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11.  Other Intangible Assets, Net and Goodwill

Intangible assets, net consist of the following at December 31:

2015
Weighted
Average
Gross Net Remaining
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Life
Value Amortization Impairment Value (Years)
Noncompete agreements $ 19.0 $ (14.6) $ — 3 44 29
Tradenames 17.2 (7.8) — 94 15.5
Customer lists and contracts 510.6 (163.1) — 347.5 13.6
Operating permits 2.9 29 N/A
Above/below market leases 0.4 (0.1) — 03 10.6
$ 550.1 § (185.6) $ — § 364.5
2014
Weighted
Average
Gross Net Remaining
Carrying Accumulated Carrying Life
Value Amortization Impairment Value (Years)
Noncompete agreements S 169 $ (12.5) § 0.1) $ 43 2.3
Tradenames 17.0 7.D — 9.9 16.6
Customer lists and contracts 491.3 (125.6) 2.5) 363.2 14.6
Operating permits 2.2 — - 22 N/A
Above/below market lcases 0.4 (0.1) — 0.3 11.6
3 527.8 § (145.3) § (2.6) § 379.9

Amortization expense recorded on intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2015, 2014 and 2013 was $42.8, $42.3
and $42.2, respectively.

Future amortization expense for intangible assets for the year ending December 31 is estimated to be:

2016 44.4
2017 ' 40.9
2018 38.1
2019 29.4
2020 29.0
Thereafter 182.7

$ 364.5
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Annual aggregate principal maturities at December 31, 2015 are as follows:

2016 S 49.1
2017 29.6
2018 24.8
2019 1,649.3
2020 5524
Thereafter 10.5

$ 2,315.7

In October 2012, the Company placed $1,800.0 in term B loans, $550.0 in bonds and a $300.0 revolving credit facility
("Revolver"). The proceeds were used to finance the acquisition of Veolia ES Solid Waste division and repay borrowings under
its previously outstanding revolving credit facility and extinguish term loans and notes payable. Substantially all of the
Company’s assets collateralize the loans, bonds and credit facility and each of the agreements restrict further indebtedness and
payment of dividends in excess of certain predefined amounts.

All borrowings under the term B loan and the Revolver are guaranteed by each of the Company’s current and future U.S.
subsidiaries (which also guarantee the 8.25% bonds), subject to certain agreed-upon exemptions. The Company has one non-
guarantor foreign subsidiary that is minor, as its assets and income from continuing operations are less than 3% of the
Company’s consolidated amounts. All guarantors are jointly and severally and fully and unconditionally liable. The parent
company has no independent assets or operations and each of the subsidiary guarantor is 100% owned by the Company. There
are no significant restrictions on the Company or any guarantor to obtain funds from its subsidiaries by dividend or loan.

The Revolver is a syndicated revolving credit facility that is available for general corporate purposes including working capital,
equipment purchases and business acquisitions and collateralized by the real property of the Company. It is due at maturity in
October, 2017. At December 31, 2015, the Revolver had $32.0 of borrowings outstanding and $45.9 in letters of credit
outstanding. At December 31, 2014, the Revolver facility had no borrowings outstanding and $58.1 in outstanding letters of
credit. An annual commitment fee equal to 0.50% per annum on the daily unused amount is due quarterly. The amount of fees
for 2015, 2014 and 2013 were not significant.

The term B loan is due in September 2019 and has payments due quarterly of $4.5 with mandatory prepayments due to the
extent net cash proceeds from the sale of assets exceed $25.0 in any fiscal year and are not reinvested in the business within 365
days from the date of sale, upon notification of the Company’s intent to take such action or in accordance with excess cash
flow, as defined. The term B loan is collateralized by certain real property of the Company. Further prepayments are due when
there is excess cash flow, as defined.

On October 1, 2016 and 2017, the bonds may be redeemed for a call premium of 104.125% and 102.063%, respectively.
Subsequent to October 1, 2018, the notes are redeemable at par. The bonds bear interest at 8.25% and are due in October 2020.

The term B loan bears interest at a base rate (alternate base rate or LIBOR base rate) plus an applicable margin. The alternate
base rate is defined as the greater of the prime rate or federal funds rate plus 50 basis points and the LIBOR base rate is subject
to a 0.75% floor.

The Revolver loan bears interest at a base rate (alternate base rate or LIBOR base rate) plus an applicable margin. The alternate
base rate is defined as the greater of the prime rate or federal funds rate plus 50 basis points and the LIBOR base rate is subject

to a 1.25% floor.

The applicable margin for the term B loan is based on the total leverage ratio of the Company as follows:
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15.  Stockholders’ Equity and Stock Options
(Share amounts not in millions)

The Company’s equity consists of one thousand shares of authorized, issued and outstanding common stock.

In October 2012, the Parent’s Board of Directors adopted the 2012 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) under which an aggregate

of 150,000 shares of the Parent’s common stock was reserved for issuance. The Plan provides for employees of the Company to
participate in the plan and provides that the options or stock purchase rights have a term of ten years and vest equally over four

years at a rate of 20% with 20% of the options being vested at the date of grant for all options except the Strategic grants which
vest 100% after five years. All options of the Strategic Plan issued prior to 2010 vest upon a change of control. All other options
vest in 20% tranches from the date of issuance upon a change of control.

These options have an assumed forfeiture rate ranging from 5.7%-14.8% for 2015 and 2014.

Stock Option Plans
The fair value of the options granted is estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model using the following

assumptions:

2015 2014 2013
Average expected term (years) 6.9 6.0 6.0
Risk-free interest rate 1.76% - 1.93% 1.83% - 2.10% 0.93%
Expected volatility 30.0% 30.0% 20.0%

Since the Company does not have any historical exercise data that is indicative of expected future exercise performance, it has
elected to use the “simplified method” to estimate the options expected term by taking the average of each vesting-tranche and
the contractual term. The Company used the average weekly historical volatility for public companies in the solid waste sector
to estimate historical volatility used in the Black-Scholes model. The risk-free rate used was based on the US Treasury security
rate estimated for the expected term of the option at the date of grant. The Company has applied a discount for lack of
marketability ranging from 9% to 10% for shares issued in 2015, 2014 and 2013, to the option value as the shares being valued
are privately held and not readily marketable. No dividends are expected to issued.

Annual Stock Options
A summary of the Annual Stock Options and Senior Management Stock Options outstanding for the year ended December 31,
2015 (in millions, except share and per share amounts) is as follows:

Weighted -
Average
Weighted - Remaining
Number of Average Contractual
Shares Exercise Price Term
Outstanding at January 1, 2015 38,928 § 659
Granted 4,750 896
Exercised (117) 409
Expired or forfeited (1,925) 676
Outstanding at December 31, 2015 41,636 686 6.08
Exercisable at December 31, 2015 30,667 $ 628 5.45

&_/‘ The weighted-average grant-date fair value of options granted per share was $291, $268 and $268 during 2015, 2014, and 2013,
respectively. The total fair value of options vested was $1.0, $1.6 and $1.8 during fiscal 2015, 2014, and 2013, respectively. The
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Of the above amounts, $19.2 and $19.6 is included in accrued expenses and the remainder is included in other long-term
liabilities at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

17.  Benefit Plans

The Company has 401(k) Savings Plans (“401(k) Plan”) for the benefit of qualifying full-time employees who have more than
90 days of service and are over 21 years of age. Employees make pre-tax contributions to the 401(k) Plan with a partial
matching contribution made by the Company. The Company’s matching contributions to the 401(k) Plan were $3.2, $2.8 and
$2.8 for fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Contributions by the Company are included in operating costs and expenses
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations.

The Company is a participating employer in a number of trustee-managed multiemployer, defined benefit pension plans for
employees who participate in collective bargaining agreements. Approximately 13% of the Company’s workforce is subject to a
collective bargaining agreement and two of the collective bargaining agreements expire within one year. The risks of
participating in the multiemployer plans are different from single-employer plans in that (i) assets contributed to the
multiemployer plan by one employer may be used to provide benefits to employees of other participating employers; (ii) if a
participating employers stops contributing to the plan, the unfunded obligations of the plan may be required to be assumed by
the remaining participating employers; and (iii) if the Company chooses to stop participating in any of the multiemployer plans,
it may be required to pay those plans a withdrawal amount based on the underfunded status of the plan. The total contributions
made to all plans for fiscal 2015 was $4.7, of which 80.2 is related to plans that are not individually significant.

The following table outlines the Company's participation in multiemployer plans considered to be individually significant:

Pension Protection Expiration
Act Zone Status FIP/RP Contributions Date of
Status Pending/ Collective-
EIN/Pension Implemented Bargaining
Pension Fund Plan Number 2014 2013 (B) 2015 2014 2013 Agreement
Suburban Teamsters of  36-6155778-001 Implemented S 06 S 05 S 04 1/31/2019
Northem [L Pension ' W
Fund Critical as of Critical as of
17172014 17172013
Pension Fund of 36-60420061-001 Implemented $ 02 § 02 § 02 12/31/2018
Automobile Mechanics ) .
Local No, 701 Critical as of Critical as of
1/1/2014 171/2013
Local 731 Private 36-6513567-001 Implemented $ 18 S§ 1.7 S 16 9/30/2018
Scavengers and Garage Not
Attendants Pension Fund Endangered as Endangered as
(A) of 10/1/2014 of 10/1/2013
Midwest Operating 36-6140097-001 Implemented § 06 $ 06 S 05 9/30/2016
Engineers Pension Fund
Endangered as Endangered as
of 4/1/14 of 4/1/12
Teamsters Local Union  36-6492992-001 No S 09 S 08 S 06 9/30/2016
No. 301 Union Pension
Fund(A)
Not endangered  Not endangered
or critical as of  or critical as of
171714 1/1/13
Central States Southeast  36-6064560-001 [mplemented § 02 $ 02 S 02 1/31/2015
and Southwest Areas Critical as of Critical as of
Pension Fund 1/1/2014 1/1/2013
Local 705 Int’l 36-6492502-001 Implemented $ 02 S 02 S 02 9/30/2018

Brotherhood of

Teamsters Pension TR.

FD.

Critical as of
1/1/2014

Critical as of
1/1/2013

(A) The employers' contributions to the plan represent greater than 5% of the total contributions to the plan for the most recent plan year available.
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2015 2014
Deferred tax assets
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 1.7 8§ 2.0
Insurance reserve 16.8 17.5
Net operating loss 176.5 1783
Capital loss carryforward 69.1 69.1
Accrued bonus and vacation 9.0 7.7
Stock compensation 1.9 1.8
Other comprehensive income 0.6
Tax credits i) 6.9
Other 214 21.1
Total deferred tax assets 303.6 305.0
Valuation allowance (95.2) (96.1)
Deferred tax assets less valuation allowance 208.4 208.9
Deferred tax liabilities
Fixed asset basis (110.8) (117.8)
Intangible basis (123.7) (127.2)
Landfill and environmental remediation liabilities (109.8) (113.8)
Other (3.1) (5.4)
Deferred tax liabilities (347.4) (364.2)
Net deferred tax liability 5 (139.0) $ (155.3)

The amounts recorded as deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 represent the amounts of tax benefits of
existing deductible temporary differences or net operating and capital loss carryforwards. Realization of deferred tax assets is
dependent upon the generation of sufficient taxable income prior to expiration of any loss carryforwards. A valuation allowance
has been recorded against deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2015 in the amount of $95.2. The valuation allowance for the
year ended December 31, 2014 was $96.1. The Company has established valuation allowances for uncertainties in realizing the
benefit of certain tax loss and credit carryforwards. While the Company expects to realize the deferred tax assets, net of the
valuation allowances, changes in estimates of future taxable income or in tax laws may alter this expectation.

The Company had available federal NOL carryforwards from continuing operations of approximately $417.4 and $432.5 at
December 31, 2015 and 2014 respectively. The Company’s federal net operating losses have expiration dates beginning in the
year 2019 through 2033 if not utilized against taxable income. The capital losses of $182.9 expire in 2017 and 2018, if not
previously utilized against capital gains.

In 2014, the Company recognized a decrease in valuation allowance of $51.4, which was primarily related to the completion of
a legal entity restructuring that was undertaken in order to drive administrative and legal efficiencies. As a result of the
operational restructuring, during the fourth quarter of 2014, the Company was able to project and support its ability to utilize
certain federal net operating losses that were previously limited under the Seperate Return Limitation Year ("SRLY™") tax rules.

The Company has grown through a series of acquisitions and mergers and has had change of control events that resulted in
limitations on the utilization of NOLs pursuant to Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”). Approximately $169.8 of
the NOLSs from continuing operations are limited under the SRLY rules of the IRC. These NOLs are only available to be
utilized against taxable income of the HW Star Waste Holdings, Corp. and subsidiaries thereof, a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. At this time, the Company expects to utilize these NOLs, as a result of the operational restructuring discussed
above.
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Cost approach
Amount that would be required to replace the service capacity of an asset (i.e., replacement cost); and;

Income approach
Techniques to convert future amounts to a single present amount are based on market expectations (including present
value techniques, option-pricing models, and lattice models).

The Company’s financial assets and liabilities recorded at fair value on a recurring basis include derivative instruments and
certain investments included in cash equivalent money market funds. The Company’s fuel derivative instruments and interest
rate caps are recorded at their estimated fair values based on quotes received from financial institutions that trade these
contracts and a current forward fixed price swap curve, respectively. The Company verifies the reasonableness of these quotes
using similar quotes from another financial institution as of each date for which financial statements are prepared. For the
Company’s fuel derivative instruments, the Company also considers the Company's and counterparty’s credit worthiness in its
determination of the fair value measurement of these instruments in a net liability position. The Company’s restricted cash
measured at fair value is invested primarily in U.S. government and agency securities.

All instruments were valued using the market approach. The Company's interest rate caps are valued using a third-party pricing
model that incorporates information about LIBOR yield curves, which is considered observable market data, for each
instrument’s respective term. Counterparties to the Company's interest rate caps are financial institutions who participate in the
term B loan. Valuations of those interest rate caps may fluctuate significantly from period to period due to volatility in valuation
interest rates which are driven by market conditions and the scheduled maturities of the caps. The Company’s assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis approximate the following:
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In February 2009, the Company and certain of its subsidiaries were named as defendants in a purported class action suit in the
Circuit Court of Macon County, Alabama. Similar class action complaints were brought against the Company and certain of its
subsidiaries in 2011 in Duval County, Florida and in 2013 in Quitman County, Georgia and Barbour County, Alabama, and in
2014 in Chester County, Pennsylvania. The Georgia complaint was dismissed in March 2014. The plaintiffs in those cases
primarily allege that the defendants charged improper fees (fuel, administrative and environmental fees) that were in breach of
the plaintiffs' service agreements with the Company and seek damages in an unspecified amount. The Company believes that it
has meritorious defenses against these purported class actions, which it will vigorously pursue. Given the inherent uncertainties
of litigation, including the early stage of these cases, the unknown size of any potential class, and legal and factual issues in
dispute, the outcome of these cases cannot be predicted and a range of loss, if any, cannot currently be estimated.

In November 2014, the Attorney General of the State of Vermont filed a complaint against the Company relating to the
Moretown, Vermont landfill regarding alleged odor and other environmental-related noncompliances with environmental laws
and regulations and environmental permits. In the complaint, the Attorney General requested that the State of Vermont Superior
Court find the Company liable for the alleged noncompliances, issue related civil penalties, and order the Company to
reimburse the State of Vermont for enforcement costs. While the complaint does not specify a monetary penalty, prior
correspondence from the Attorney General of the State of Vermont indicates that it may seek a penalty relating to the alleged
noncompliances which are not expected to be material. Given the inherent uncertainties of litigation, including the early stage
of this case, the outcome cannot be predicted and a range of loss, if any, cannot currently be estimated.

The Company is subject to various other proceedings, lawsuits, disputes and claims and regulatory investigations arising in the
ordinary course of its business. Many of these actions raise complex factual and legal issues and are subject to uncertainties.
Actions filed 